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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on
the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising
from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors (the ‘Directors”) of Neo
Telemedia Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief:

7. the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading;

2. there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this report misleading, and

3. all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at
after due and careful consideration and are founded on
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Neo Telemedia Limited (the “Company”), | hereby
present to the shareholders of the Company the annual results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s
operations comprised sales of telecommunications products and
services, peer-to-peer (“P2P”) lending platform business, and
transmedia advertising services in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”).

According to the “Opinions on the implementation of division
of work under the report on the work of the government”
issued by the State Council of the PRC on 25 March 2015, the
PRC government planned to, among others, (ij formulate the
“Internet Plus” action plan; (i) promote the integration of modern
manufacturing industry and the mobile internet, cloud computing,
big data and internet of things; (iiij encourage the development
of e-commerce business; and (iv) guide the expansion of internet
enterprises into the international market. In view of the potential
growth in the e-commerce business and the favorable support
from the PRC government, the Group is positioned to optimize its
resources and seize the opportunities brought by the Internet and
big data era, and has made several acquisitions of the related
businesses in trading of mobile phones and tablets, operation of
mobile and Internet WIFI platforms and P2P lending platform.

During the year under review, the Group completed the
acquisitions of R B7/8 % 8 & & B R 2 5] (Guangdong Bluesea
Mobile Development Company Limited*) (‘Bluesea Mobile”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Bluesea Mobile
Group”), B R ALiZH =18 & B 12 H R A 5l(Guangdong Avatar
Wealth Investment Management Company Limited*) (“Avatar
Wealth”), and Million Ace Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Million Ace Group”).
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Driven by the newly acquired businesses, the Group’s turnover
increased significantly to approximately HK$1,914.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015 from approximately HK$34.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. These newly
acquired businesses have contributed a positive profit stream of
approximately HK$47.0 million to the Group. However, due to the
burden of debt financing and unsatisfactory performance in the
Group’s other businesses, the Group recorded a loss attributable
to owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2015. In the absence of the impairment loss on goodwill arose
from various acquisitions completed during previous years,
the Group’s net loss attributable to owners of the Company
decreased significantly from approximately HK$567.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately HK$32.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2015.

SALE OF TELECOMMUNICATIONS
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Bluesea Mobile Group

On 1 April 2015, the Group obtained the control of Bluesea
Mobile Group through structured contracts. Bluesea Mobile
Group is mainly engaged in the operation of a mobile and
Internet commercial WIFI platform, a P2P lending platform and
a cross-border e-commerce platform. Bluesea Mobile Group’s
telecommunication business has contributed a positive profit
stream of approximately HK$5.2 million since being acquired by
the Group.

Million Ace Group

On 11 September 2015, the Group completed the acquisition
of the Million Ace Group which is mainly engaged in trading
of mobile phones and tablets. Million Ace Group has greatly
boosted the revenue of the Group and contributed a positive
profit stream of approximately HK$6.2 million since being
acquired by the Group.
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Hughes China Group

During the year under review, the performance of satellite-
related services has declined as compared to the year ended 31
December 2014. Hughes China Group continued to work on the
coal-mine surveillance projects, as well as the two other projects
namely “X it 2" and ‘& E".

CERNET Wifi Group

Due to (i) the non-cooperation of the former general manager of
ERESPERH (JtR) AR AF (CERNET Wifi Technology
(Beijing) Company Limited®) (‘CERNET Wifi"), and (i) the non-
cooperation of the holders of the non-controlling interests, the
Company had been unable to both (a) access the complete sets
of books and records together with the supporting documents
of CERNET Wifi and (b) maintain and operate the business of
CERNET Wifi properly. As such, CERNET Wifi has been de-
consolidated from the consolidated financial statements since
last financial year. During the year under review, CERNET Wifi
has recovered its common seal, contract chop and business
registration documents and its duplicate from its former general
manager. To resume the operations of and repossess control
over CERNET Wifi, the Company had been working on 1) a claim
against holders of CERNET Wifi’'s non-controlling interests who
own the brand name and network of CERNET which CERNET
Wifi has used for its operations pursuant to an asset leasehold
agreement, and 2) recovery of CERNET Wifi's complete books
and records together with the relevant supporting documents
during the year under review. CERNET Wifi remained de-
consolidated from the Group’s consolidated financial statements
as at 31 December 2015.

PEER-TO-PEER LENDING PLATFORM
BUSINESS

Avatar Wealth

On 1 April 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 70%
equity interest of Avatar Wealth through obtaining control of
Bluesea Mobile. Avatar Wealth is engaged in running P2P lending
platform business. It offers a full range of products to lenders and
on the other hand provides simplified, convenient and flexible
financing solutions to both SME’s and individual borrowers. Since
being acquired, Avatar Wealth has contributed a positive profit
stream of approximately HK$36.9 million to the Group.

*

for identification purpose only

Chairman’s Statement
FRBEE

RHr B &

REBFE HERARRENRERHE—"ZF
—mE+ = A=+ ALEFEHM TR RET
S EAEEEKEEAEE  ARE LM
EEE BN [RBE| R [BEE] -

e SEETETY

RROERESREAMR (ER)ERAA
(IEEESR]) NATRKIETEE R)FHER
BEFEATEE ARRIREQEREBE
AREVERERR B K B S RO 8k A R AR RE SR Ui
ROBEEEFREEBBBRNES Bt
BE-MBRFEEERERIBREAR
EMBEHRER -RNEBRFE ERERKCSAER
REEREAE ARERTHECXFRE
BN SIREEBEGNELRENESYHE
BEROEHIE  ARFREEFEERIM)
ANEREBMFEREERHEA (REEERE
RREEENEREANEZENERRE S
RS REBR - RN O BB BRI TE
REAMEHAMEREXF - R_F—0F
T-A=+t—8 EREXKDTHEEFALRE
B ER A MR -

P2PEE ¥ & %%

BTN ZME

R-ZZE-—AFHNA—B AEBEBESHE
7% B 1 122 1) 4 52 A U P B L 2 B = 70% A9 X
B-MLEMENRELEPPEREFEED
—THE#ETEMNERTHEA MHR—7
HARHEE RERBEEOBRESETH/)
EEERARBEABRA - B RRIIE AR
B ALER = B B AR B 436,98 BB TR
IEMH % A B A o

Annual Report 2015 —E—H £ £




Chairman’s Statement
FRBEE

Bees Financial

In addition to Avatar Wealth, the Group also launched a P2P
lending platform in JRJITMERLSREHHSBBRBEER A A
(Shenzhen Bees Financial Internet Financial Services Co Ltd.”)
(“Bees Financial”), a 45% owned subsidiary of the Company.
Bees Financial has entered into a funds depository business
cooperation agreement with & 5 % # #8177 (Guangdong Huaxing
Bank®) (“Guangdong Huaxing”) pursuant to which Guangdong
Huaxing agreed to provide funds depository services to clients
of Bees Financial’'s P2P online lending platform. Guangdong
Huaxing also agreed to continue to cooperate with Bees Financial
in the areas of payment and settlement, client resources sharing,
wealth management and other internet finance services. The
cooperation with Guangdong Huaxing promotes transparency
and significantly reduces the credit risk and liquidity risk of Bees
Financial’s P2P online lending business.

PROVISION OF TRANSMEDIA ADVERTISING
SERVICES

During the year under review, Ease Ray Group’s revenue
has decreased as compared to 2014 due to the temporary
suspension of its services in various cities as a result of the
policies implemented to regulate the traffic signboard advertising
by the municipal governments.

PROSPECTS

SALE OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Bluesea Mobile Group

Upon the completion of open offer, the Group is ready to expand
further in the telecommunication sector. An Internet data center
(“IDC”) in Panyu, the PRC with gross floor area of approximately
40,000 sg.m. and 3,000 server cabinets will be set up for
provision of, among others, value-added services including data
distribution and analysis and cloud related services.
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In addition to IDC in Panyu, Bluesea Mobile has entered into a
strategic cooperation framework agreement in respect of the
joint development of Zhuxishugu (Cloud Computing Center) to
further rigorous drive the joint development of information-based
industry with core big data in Jiangmen City. Pursuant to the
framework agreement, Bluesea Mobile shall be responsible for,
among others, the overall investment, construction, planning
and coordination of the development project. With the support
of Jiangmen Municipal Government, Bluesea Mobile shall jointly
develop and construct with FEIBERNERRAFERD A
7] (China Telecom Corporation Limited, Guangdong Branch®),
a main station of big data industrial base in Binjiang New Area,
Jiangmen City and the resource centre of big data industrial base
in Taishan City, introduce well-known enterprises and promote
the high-speed development of cloud services and cloud
application in Jiangmen.

Bluesea Mobile’s WIFI services network, “bluesea-free
WIFI”, will also be expanded to cover not less than 21
municipalities in Guangdong Province, the PRC. A cross-
border e-commerce integrated zone of at least 180,000 sqg.m.
is also being set up in Foshan International Furniture Expo Mall
in support of the Group’s cross-border e-commerce platform
“bluesea-gou.com”. Facilities of the integrated zone include
a Type B customs warehouse and an Online to Offline (O20)
experience zone.

CERNET Wifi Group

As the outcome of the legal proceedings had remained
uncertain, operations of CERNET Wifi and the Group’s control
over CERNET Wifi had remained suspended during the year
under review. With a view to saving time and costs involved in
the legal proceedings, on 17 February 2016, the Group entered
into agreements (the “Unwinding Agreements”) with 1t
X—e BRI AR AT (“A1 Net”), the immediate holding
company of CERNET Wifi and a subsidiary of the Company by
way of structured contracts (the “Structured Contracts”), the
shareholders of A1 Net and two independent third parties (the
“Purchasers”) to unwind the Structured Contracts. Pursuant
to the Unwinding Agreements, among others, 1) the Structured
Contracts under which the Group had obtained control over
CERNET Wifi would be unwound; and 2) the shareholders of A1
Net disposed of their entire interests in A1 Net to the Purchasers.
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In addition, upon the unwinding of the Structured Contracts,
while the Group will not incur further cost in relation to the legal
proceedings, A1 Net has undertaken to repay the Group its share
of any claimed amount received by CERNET Wifi if the outcome
of the legal proceedings is in favour of CERNET Wifi.

The Directors are of the view that the entering into the
Unwinding Agreements is in the interest of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole and would not result in any material
adverse impact on the operation and financial position of the
Group.

Hughes China Group

The management of the Hughes China Group will continue
to work on additional coverage of the coal-mine surveillance
projects and develop its “X# £” and “& & &” projects.

PEER-TO-PEER LENDING PLATFORM
BUSINESS

The Group is ready to expand further in the P2P business and
plans to establish a third-party payment company, develop
personal credit information platform, set up integrated service
shops in the Pearl River Delta and expand its customer base.

With the launch of the P2P lending platform business in Avatar
Wealth and Bees Financial, the Group aims to establish an
integrated data transfer, mobile marketing and sales, and financial
transactions system and become one of the leading P2P Internet
financial group in China.

OTHER PROJECTS

CNCC Logistics

In June 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 43% of
the equity interest in AEYRFEEFR A A (CNCC Logistics
Equipment Co., Ltd.*) (“CNCC Logistics”). CNCC Logistics
is principally engaged in the design, manufacture and sale of
logistics equipment, and the provision of relevant technical
advisory services. Through CNCC Logistics, the Group will set
up 50 skid mounted liquefied natural gas (LNG) filing stations
and related business, as well as manufacturing plants in Jinan,
Shandong Province and in Northwest China.
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Shenzhou Aerospace Institute

& 3 AR & BE &L ¥ B it B 95 BR (Guangdong  Shenzhou
Aerospace Manufacturing Technology Institute*) (“Shenzhou
Aerospace Institute”) has been set up as a private non-
enterprise entity of which Bluesea Mobile is one of the organizers.
The objective of Shenzhou Aerospace Institute is to, among
others, (i) promote aerospace technology amongst the general
public; (i) expand the aerospace technology industry; and
(iii) promote the manufacturing technology information within
traditional manufacturing industry in the Foshan region by
integrating aerospace related technology, for commercial use in
the Pearl River Delta region with a focus on industrial information
technology and communication, intelligent manufacturing
technology and the relevant manufacturing services. Further,
depending on the development and progress of various projects,
Shenzhou Aerospace Institute may establish future joint venture
companies with the Company.

OVERALL

The acquisitions of Bluesea Mobile, Avatar Wealth and Million
Ace Group have been important moves for the Group in
picking up its growth momentum. Moving forward, the Group
will continue to explore potential investment opportunities in
the telecommunication and Internet finance sectors. With the
favorable policies and support from the PRC government towards
these fast growing sectors, the management is optimistic that the
Group will regain its strength and be able to reward shareholders
with better results in the foreseeable future.

FINANCIAL POSITION

During the year under review, the Group completed an open offer
of 3,176,281,448 shares at the subscription price of HK$0.38
per offer share on the basis of one open offer share for every two
shares held on 7 December 2015 (the “Open Offer”). The Open
Offer was completed on 30 December 2015 and the net proceeds
raised from the open offer were approximately HK$1,089 million.
The net proceeds were intended to be used according to the
prospectus of the Company issued on 8 December 2015.
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As at 31 December 2015, the Group had interest-bearing bank
borrowings of HK$26.2 million (2014: HK$ nil) and other loan
of HK$27.3 million (2014: HK$27.3 million) which are repayable
within one year.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$1,384.1 million (2014: HK$48.5 million),
including cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$1,111.9 million (2014: HK$31.7 million), trade receivables,
prepayments and other receivables and payments in advance
of approximately HK$246.8 million (2014: HK$16.6 million);
and current liabilities of approximately HK$374.0 million (2014:
HK$95.3 million). The Group’s current ratio had been increased
from approximately 0.5 times as at 31 December 2014 to
approximately 3.7 times as at 31 December 2015.

The Group had total assets of approximately HK$1,729.6 million
(2014: HK$147.8 million) and total liabilities of approximately
HK$410.7 million (2014: HK$250.8 million), representing a
gearing ratio (expressed as total liabilities to total assets) of
approximately 23.7% as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 170%).

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2015
amounted to approximately HK$1,914.9 million (2014: HK$34.6
million).
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COMMITMENTS

Details of commitments of the Group were set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, there were no material charges on the
Group’s assets.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE AND
TREASURY POLICIES

Most of the Group’s cash balances and transactions are either
denominated in Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars, i.e. functional
currencies of relevant group entities. The Group does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise. As
at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group did not have any
outstanding hedging instruments.
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

THE COMPANY

Winding-up petition

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 October 2014 regarding the receipt of a winding-
up petition (the “Winding-up Petition”) by the Company on
15 October 2014, presented by Beyond Net Service Limited
(the “Petitioner”) at the Court of First Instance of the High
Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
“High Court”) against the Company. The Winding-up Petition
concerns a sum of HK$3,067,500 (the “Claim”), being the
amount of a cheque issued by the Company on behalf of Cloud
Computing Investment Limited (“Cloud Computing”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, to the Petitioner pursuant to
a consultancy agreement entered into between the Petitioner
and Cloud Computing on 1 August 2012 (the “Consultancy
Agreement”). In accordance with the Consultancy Agreement,
the Petitioner should provide certain consultation and services to
Cloud Computing within one year from the date of the agreement
but the Petitioner has failed to do so. Having reviewed the details
of the Winding-up Petition and the relevant facts, the Company
has instructed its legal advisers to apply for striking out and
dismissal of the Winding-up Petition (the “Application”), which
was heard at the High Court on 4 May 2015, and the Company
received on 12 May 2015 the decision (the “Decision”) from the
High Court that the Application has failed. The Company has
instructed its legal advisers to appeal the Decision. The appeal
was dismissed by the Court of Appeal of the High Court on 8
October 2015 (the “Order”). Pursuant to the Order, the sum of
HK$3,067,500 paid into the High Court by the Company had
been paid out to the Petitioner in satisfaction of the Claim and the
Winding-up Petition was dismissed on 19 October 2015.

The Company has further instructed its legal advisers to advise
and take action on behalf of Cloud Computing against the
Petitioner on the Petitioner’s failure to perform the Consultancy
Agreement. Pursuant to such instructions, the legal adviser has
issued a High Court Action on 5 December 2014 against the
Petitioner.
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Writ of summons

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
14 June 2015, a writ of summons (the “Writ”) was issued by
Arch Capital Limited and Hillgo Asia Limited against the Company
under Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong
Action No.1281 of 2015 (“Action”). In the statement of claim
under the Writ, the said two companies purportedly claim as
the holders for value of two convertible notes in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$144,000,000 issued by the Company
(the “Convertible Note(s)”), and claim for the principal amount
of HK$144,000,000 under the said Convertible Notes together
with interest and costs.

The Convertible Notes were issued by the Company in relation
to the acquisition of HCH Investments Limited in April 2013
as part of the consideration payable to Oberlin Asia Inc. (the
“Vendor”). The Vendor nominated the said two companies to
hold the Convertible Notes; and it was expressly provided in the
Convertible Notes that they were non-transferable. There are on-
going disputes between the Company and the Vendor regarding
the said acquisition. Further, subsequent to the said acquisition
and without the prior knowledge or consent of the Company,
the ultimate beneficial ownership of the said two companies
was transferred to Next-Generation Satellite Communications
Limited (“Next-Gen”), a company listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange. It is the Company’s position that the said transfer
was in breach of aforesaid provision of non-transferability, and
therefore the said two companies and Next-Gen are not entitled
to claim on the Convertible Notes.

The Directors have therefore given instructions to the Company’s
legal adviser to contest and defend the Action and to raise
a counterclaim against the said two companies. A Defence
and Counterclaim has accordingly been filed on behalf of the
Company on 26 August 2015, disputing the claim of the said
two companies and counterclaiming them for damages (the
“Counterclaim”).
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On 6 January 2016, an order for discontinuance of the
Counterclaim and a Tomlin order were filed with the High Court
that all further proceedings in relation to the Action be stayed
except for carrying out the terms that include the following,
among other things, into effect:

- The Company shall, within 3 business days after closing of
the Open Offer, pay to the said two companies the sum of
HK$10,080,000, representing the outstanding interest on
the Convertible Notes for the period from 5 October 2014
to 4 October 2015.

S The Company shall comply with all terms of the Convertible
Notes.

- The obligation of the Company to pay interest of the
Convertible Notes at the rate of 7% per annum from 5
October 2015 until full payment is expressly waived by the
said two companies.

The Directors consider that with a view to saving time and costs
involved in the Action and the Counterclaim, the filing of the said
orders is in the interest of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole and would not result in any material adverse impact on the
operation and financial position of the Group.

CERNET WIFI
ASSET LEASEHOLD ARBITRATION CLAIM

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
19 December 2014 in relation to the application by CERNET
Wifi to the China International Economic And Trade Arbitration
Commission (/1 BEEZESHPREES) (“CIETACY)
to claim against ERE R R4 AR AT (CERNET Company
Limited®) (‘CCL") and Ef& & B MR A7 (CERNET Investment
Company Limited*) (‘CERNET Investment”) for, inter alia, an
amount of RMB22,529,555, being the benefits after deduction
of tax generated from the assets leased by CCL and CERNET
Investment to CERNET Wifi pursuant to the Asset Leasehold
Agreement (the “Asset Leasehold Arbitration”).
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On 5 February 2015, CERNET Wifi received a counterclaim from
CCL and CERNET Investment claiming for, inter alia, a total
amount of RMB26,528,148.

On 13 February 2015, in addition to the claims made in the Asset
Leasehold Arbitration, CERNET Wifi has further claimed against
CCL and CERNET Investment for, inter alia, (i) the continuation
of the Asset Leasehold Agreement and (i) the benefits after
deduction of tax generated from the assets leased by CCL and
CERNET Investment to CERNET Wifi since 1 October 2014.

On 4 June 2015, CCL and CERNET Investment revised their
counter claim amount to RMB17,786,302.

On 15 June 2015, CERNET Wifi further revised its claim amount
to RMB23,330,550.

CIETAC has deferred its decision to 12 September 2015 in order
to gather more information before arriving at a conclusion. In
early September 2015, CIETAC further deferred its decision to 14
December 2015. In mid January 2016, CIETAC further deferred
its decision to a date to be determined as more time is required
to review the audit report on the financial information in relation to
this claim.
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CERNET Wifi's PRC legal advisor is of the opinion that the
outcome of the Asset Leasehold Arbitration will be based upon
calculation and settlement of cost, revenue and benefits under
the Asset Leasehold Agreement. As such, as at the date of this
report, the outcome is uncertain.

COMMON SEAL AND DOCUMENTS CLAIM

On 12 January 2015, CERNET Wifi filed a claim against
the former general manager of CERNET Wifi (the “Former
GM’), in dt R 8 E @ A KA (Beijing Haidian District
People’s Court*) (the “Beijing Haidian Court”) for, inter alia,
the return of CERNET Wifi's common seal, contract chop,
business registration, and license to carry out value-added
telecommunication business (“CERNET Wifi’s Documents”).
On 17 November 2014, the Former GM was dismissed in
response to CERNET Wifi's declining business by way of board
resolution passed by the CERNET Wifi's board. On 5 December
2014, CERNET Wifi passed a shareholders’ resolution that
CERNET Wifi's Documents be under the custody of CERNET
Wifi's legal representative, Mr. Zhang Xinyu, a director of the
Company. On 26 December 2014, CERNET Wifi requested the
Former GM for the return of CERNET Wifi’'s Documents but the
Former GM had failed to do so. Beijing Haidian Court issued the
judgement on 18 March 2015, pursuant to which the Former
GM shall return CERNET Wifi's common seal, contract chop and
business registration and its duplicate.

The Former GM has brought the claim to it R E —FH AR
7&Bt (Beijing No.1 Intermediate People’s Court*) as an appeal to
the Beijing Haidian Court’s decision. On 21 May 2015, Beijing
No.1 Intermediate People’s Court issued the final judgement
and upheld the original judgement. As at 31 December 2015,
the CERNET Wifi's common seal, contract chop and business
registration and its duplicate were received by CERNET Wifi.
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LABOUR ARBITRATION CLAIM

On 12 January 2015, notices of claim of 69 former employees
of CERNET Wifi were served on CERNET Wifi by 1t R /&€
R AERZMEZEZEE (Haidian District Labour Dispute
Arbitration Committee of Beijing Municipality*) (the “HDLDAC”)
pursuant to which, the applicants claimed for the amount of
RMB1,361,993.57, being the salary, over-time payment, meals
fee, disbursement, annual leave fee, and dismissal fees payable
by CERNET Wifi. CERNET Wifi has counter-claimed against 34
applicants for the return of company properties and payment of
commissions (the “Labour Arbitration Claim”).

The HDLDAC rendered its decision with respect to the Labour
Arbitration Claim and CERNET Wifi has brought the claim to the
Beijing Haidian Court as an appeal to the HDLDAC’s decision.

On 19 May 2015, Beijing Haidian Court upheld the decision
rendered by HDLDAC. CERNET Wifi has brought the claim to
Beijing No.1 Intermediate People’s Court as an appeal to the
Beijing Haidian Court’s decision.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately 320
staff (2014: 45). The total remuneration, including that of the
Directors, for the year under review is approximately HK$30.3
million (2014: HK$16.0 million). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performances, experience and the
prevailing industry practice. Employee remuneration, excluding
Director’'s emoluments, is reviewed annually. In addition to the
basic salaries, employees are also entitled to benefits including
bonus and mandatory provident fund. On 19 December 2012,
the Company had adopted a share option scheme under which
full time employees, including Directors, of the Company and
its subsidiaries, might be granted options to subscribe for the
Company’s ordinary shares.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my appreciation to the Group’s shareholders and
customers for their utmost support, and to the management and
staff for their dedication and contribution to the Group during the
year.

CHEUNG Sing Tai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 February 2016
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 54, was
appointed as an executive Director on 21 June 2013 and
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer on 20 March
2014. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Department of Thermal
Engineering of Tsinghua University and the Sun Yat-sen Business
School with a bachelor degree in engineering and a master
degree in business administration respectively.

Mr. Cheung was engaged in trade between Mainland and Hong
Kong in his early years. He had served as deputy manager in
Strategic Development Department of Guangdong Investment
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, while he was
also a director of Guangdong Tannery Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Cheung previously served as the managing director of CL
China Group Limited and the general manager of Coastland
Development (Int’l) Co., Limited, both are engaged in investment
in securities and real estate.

Mr. ZHANG Xinyu, aged 54, was appointed as an executive
Director on 15 June 2012 and Vice President on 1 May 2014. Mr.
Zhang Xinyu holds a Master of Business Administration degree
and is familiar with the securities market regulations in Hong
Kong. He was a licensed responsible officer under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and an advisor of the Management
Consulting Committee of China Enterprise Confederation. He
has over 20 years working experience in banking and investment
banking industries and accumulated extensive network resources
and experience in capital management. He has been engaged
in research and practice in listing, merger and acquisition,
reorganisation, spin-off and asset securitisation. In 1990, he was
appointed by the head office of Bank of China to hold senior
position in Bank of China (Hong Kong) in Hong Kong and mainly
to provide financial support to relevant Chinese entities under the
State Council based in Hong Kong.
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Mr. LIAN Xin (“Mr. Lian”), aged 60, was appointed as an
executive Director on 21 June 2013. Mr. Lian has over 30
years’ experience in accounting, auditing, legal practice and
management in PRC. He has held senior positions in the PRC
government, law firms and listed companies. Mr. Lian is currently
a director and vice president of Ef £ GB4E R (LX) BRA
7] (CERNET Wifi Technology (Beijing) Company Limited*).

In the 1990s, Mr. Lian participated in acquisitions of several
Mainland companies. In 2000, he took part in seminars held by
organisations including the Department of Legal Affairs of the
China Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC”) and the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange on the establishment of the Growth
Enterprise Market. In 2003, he was recorded in the talent pool
of independent directors which was created by the CSRC. He
was also rated as management professional by the Shenzhen
Expertise Federation in 2004.

Mr. Lian holds qualifications of China Commerce Operating
Manager, management professional, professional accountant and
lawyer in PRC.

Mr. XU Gang (“Mr. Xu”), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director on 17 June 2015. He graduated from School
of Economics and Management, Tsinghua University with an
executive master degree of business administration in 2006. He
obtained his double bachelor’s degree from Beijing University of
Technology in 1995. Mr. Xu is the general manager of /& & &/&7%#
g2 R AR A A (Guangdong Bluesea Mobile Development Co.,
Ltd.") (“Bluesea”). He has extensive experience in the strategy
planning, operation, marketing and capital management of
international high-tech enterprises and the strategy management,
risk management and concentrative management of large
financial institutions. Prior to joining Bluesea, Mr. Xu served as
the general manager of business intelligence division of F&
X (RE)EHFEREGEBR AT (Oracle (China) Software System
Company Limited®).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo, AICPA, aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director as 20 March 2014. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy from Seattle University,
Seattle, Washington, USA. He is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 15 years of
experience in auditing and accounting, and had worked as the
finance director and company secretary of ERA Mining Machinery
Limited (a company delisted from GEM since 4 October 2012
as a result of privatisation) and a manager for Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. He is currently a director and chief financial officer of
Hong Kong Jia Hong Investment Company Limited.

Mr. CHOU Jianzhong, aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 March 2014. He holds
a doctoral degree. He served as the vice president and senior
economist of ERFHMRK BB A F (Guangdong Securities
Co., Ltd."), a postdoctoral researcher of Xiamen University, an
independent director of FSPG Hi-tech Co., Ltd. (@ company
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange), an independent director
of BRE/MN B MEHRKMBRAF (Guangdong Guangzhou
Daily Media Co., Ltd.*) (@ company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange) and an independent director of Guangdong Golden
Dragon Development Inc. (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange). He is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Quality Management Association, a special consultant of &
HEENHTFEE (Guangdong Provincial Economic Restructuring
Research*), a master of business administration and a part-
time instructor of Jinan University, a part-time professor of
South China Normal University, a professor and doctoral tutor
of City University of Macau, an executive of ER £ & &
(Guangdong Finance Society*), a director of EINZEEREHR
fR A &) (Guangzhou Jinan Investment Co., Ltd.*), a director of
Guangdong Junfeng Spectrum Co., Ltd., an independent director
of the third board of Guangdong Alpha Animation and Culture
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and
an independent director of the third board of 7 3| 5 7R ¥ RH %
3 B BR A 7] (Shenzhen Infinova Technology Co., Ltd.*).

*
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Ms. Xl Lina, aged 33, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 May 2014. She graduated with
a degree in economics and international trade from Zhejiang
University of Finance and Economics and holds a master of
science in banking and international finance from the City
University, London. She has extensive experience in economics
and futures market.

Mr. HUANG Zhixiong, aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 13 May 2015. He holds a
master degree in business management. He is the senior advisor
of BREMRAHRE AW IR (Institute of Guangdong South
China Science and Technology Capital®) and was appointed as
the extramural tutor of the master programme of professional
accounting of the South China University of Technology in
November 2015. Mr. Huang obtained the Independent Director
Qualification awarded by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in
January 2015 and obtained the Board Secretary Qualification
awarded by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in April 2015. Mr.
Huang was certified with (1) the Securities Certificate Level
II'in 2005, (2) the Securities Institutions Senior Management
Personnel Qualification in 2003, (3) the Securities Investment
Fund Qualification and Securities and Futures Qualification in
2002, (4) the Securities Investment Analysis Qualification in 2001,
(5) the Securities Trading Brokerage Qualification and Securities
Issuance and Underwriting Qualification in 2000, and (6) the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange Initial National Debt and Futures
Qualification in 1994. He obtained the Intermediate Economist
Title awarded by National Ministry of Personnel in 1994. Mr.
Huang is currently the vice chairman and the board secretary
of Guangdong Macro Co., Ltd. which is listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 000533).

*

for identification purpose only

EEBLZL 3B R -_ZE—MWERA+H
BEAERBUIIFNTES - FEENMIHK
AREBHBQEEE 5B T80 - RiFE R
MALERSRIETEM - FREERAET

SLHRAEERR-

BEXMAE 8% R_T—AFAA+=H
EBRIRBUIFATER HIHELAEERA
T - RABREMPRE A= RE
AR _F—hF+ - ARERERETAS
BRI B -BERER T —AF— A
BERYBARSGMBUERERNN T —0
FOAERNEFRIMEETEWEER -&
FEONR TR FEIHFERKTF _RE
EQR-_ZT=FEEFUBESREREAR
EBEE QR_ZET_FEIFREELSN
XERMBEZHEREER OR_FFT—F
BESRENMUEXER ON_ZTTTFE
EHRDELMRERE REFHFBEITEABEE R
B ROR—NANOFERNESFZZME
HREHEREER - FR - AN FEEK
ABBE T 2 PR BB ERER - FE
ERR/BEREREERNDAR DA (RRYIES
R G L REARR000533) 2 BIEFE R
BEEgwE-

v/ /4 AN

24 | Neo Telemedia Limited T EH EEEEARAF
N A

e/

N—"



The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 (“Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the
state of affairs of the Group at 31 December 2015 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 218. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the identity of the shareholders to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on 1 April 2016 (the “AGM”), the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 31 March 2016
to Friday, 1 April 2016, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 30 March 2016.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
219 to 220. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” above.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 61 to
62.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company has distributable
reserves of approximately HK$395,833,000 available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company (31 December
2014: Nil). Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is distributable to
the Shareholders provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. The share premium may also be
distributed in form of fully paid bonus shares.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 31 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Movements in the Company’s convertible notes during the year
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as followed:

PURCHASES
- the largest supplier 32% (2014: 78%)

- five largest suppliers combined 82% (2014: 100%)

SALES
- the largest customer 30% (2014: 36%)

- five largest customers combined 64% (2014: 87%)

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong)
when the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the
Directors in the securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to the Company
and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO, including interests or short positions which they were
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO,
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
relating to securities transactions by directors, to be notified to
the Company and the Exchange, were as follows:

BN\ ERENRR
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RZE—RAF+ZA=+—H EFREAAA
S HAMMBE LR (ERREFHFRAEED
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LONG POSITIONS IN THE SECURITIES OF RAEARBRBEZHR
THE COMPANY
Number of
shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage of
Name of Director Capacity shares held shareholding
ARG BRER
EEHA 514 HERAGHE Bok
Mr. ZHANG Xinyu Beneficial owner 45,600,000 0.48%
RITFEE BEREAA (Note 1)
(MFEE1)
Mr. XU Gang Beneficial owner 1,422,000 0.01%
REEAE E=EA A
Interest of spouse (Note 2) 72,000 Negligible
e iE i (MEE2) A eE
Mr. HUANG Zhixiong Interest of spouse (Note 3) 17,034,000 0.18%
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Notes:

1. These 45,600,000 underlying shares are derived from the share
options granted by the Company.

2. Mr. Xu is interested in 72,000 shares of the Company held by his
spouse, Ms. Yang Jintong.

3. Mr. Huang is interested in 17,034,000 shares of the Company held
by his spouse, Ms. Gao Suzhen.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors did not have any other
interests or short positions in the securities of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 December 2012, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “New Scheme”) as the share option scheme
adopted on 22 July 2002 (the “Old Scheme”) expired on 21 July
2012. The purpose of the share option schemes is to provide
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the share option schemes include Directors of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, independent non-executive Directors and
employees of the Group, and suppliers of goods or services to
the Group. Upon the expiration of the Old Scheme, share options
granted under the Old Scheme remained outstanding until they
lapse in accordance with the terms of the Old Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the New Scheme and Old Scheme
(after considering the share options already granted under the
respective scheme) is 419,792,079 and 6,840,000 respectively,
representing approximately 4.4% and 0.07% of the Shares in
issue as at the date of this annual report.

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ Interests
and Short Positions in Securities” and “Share Option Scheme”
above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other corporate granted to any Directors, their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors,
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai

Mr. ZHANG Xinyu

Mr. LIAN Xin

Ms. YE Weiping
(appointed on 13 May 2015 and
resigned on 17 June 2015)

Mr. XU Gang
(appointed on 17 June 2015)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS:

Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo

Mr. CHOU Jianzhong

Ms. Xl Lina

Mr. HUANG Zhixiong
(appointed on 13 May 2015)
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Pursuant to Article 86(3) of the Articles, the Directors have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. HUANG Zhixiong who was appointed as a
Director on 13 May 2015 and Mr. XU Gang who was appointed
as a Director on 17 June 2015 shall retire from office and eligible
for re-election at the AGM.

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. LIAN Xin and Mr. CHOU
Jianzhong shall retire from office and eligible for re-election at
the AGM. Mr. LIAN Xin confirmed that he will not offer himself
for re-election at the AGM as he would like to commit more time
on pursuance of his own business. Mr. CHOU Jianzhong also
confirmed that he will not offer himself for re-election at the AGM
due to the increased commitment on his own business.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out
on pages 21 to 24 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, any of its fellow subsidiaries or its parent
company was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER
THE SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2015, the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more
of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors and
chief executives.

EENANIHER
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Long positions FAE
Number of Approximate
shares/underlying percentage of
Name Nature of interests shares held shareholding
FEERE, BARFR
£ EEME HEROHE Bk
LIE Haiquan Beneficial owner 1,769,724,000 18.57%
5 EREAA
Interest in controlled 2,091,323,357 21.95%
corporations (Note 1)
RS R E 2w (MEE)
YE Weiping Beneficial owner 300,000,000 3.15%
EET EnEAA
Interest in controlled 218,000,000 2.29%
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Notes:

1. 2,055,887,357 shares and 35,436,000 shares are held by Winner
Mind Investments Limited and Golden Ocean Assets Management
Limited respectively, both companies are wholly-owned by Mr.
LIE Haiquan. Thus, he was deemed to be interested in these
2,091,323,357 shares pursuant to the SFO.

2. 18,000,000 shares and 200,000,000 shares are held by Bluesea
International Group Limited and Blusesea Global Group Limited
respectively, both companies are wholly-owned by Ms. YE
Weiping. Thus, she was deemed to be interested in these
218,000,000 shares pursuant to the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has an interest in
a business which compete or may compete with the business of
the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Reference is made to the prospectus of the Company dated 8
December 2015 and the announcement dated 29 December
2015 in relation to the open offer at the subscription price of
HK$0.38 per offer share on the basis of one offer share for every
two shares held on 7 December 2015 (the “Open Offer”).
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Winner Mind Investments Limited (“Winner Mind”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
was the underwriter to the Open Offer (the “Underwriter”).
Winner Mind is wholly-owned by Mr. LIE Haiquan (“Mr. Lie”),
a substantial shareholder of the Company, and is therefore a
connected person of the Company. The allotment and issue of
1,425,887,357 untaken shares to Winner Mind and the payment
of the underwriting commission of HK$13,478,000 to Winner
Mind pursuant to the underwriting agreement dated 11 August
2015 (as supplemented by the supplemental agreements dated
11 and 22 September 2015 and 10 November 2015) entered
into between the Company, Mr. Lie and Winner Mind (the
“Underwriting Agreement”) constituted connected transactions
for the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. The allotment
and issue of the underwritten shares to the Underwriter is
exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements. However, the payment
of the underwriting commission to the Underwriter is subject
to reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements, which was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the adjourned extraordinary
general meeting held on 26 November 2015.

On 11 May 2015, the Company entered into a loan agreement
(the “Loan Agreement’) with Mr. Lie, pursuant to which, Mr.
Lie agreed to lend to the Company a loan of HK$100,000,000
(the “Loan”) for a period of one year commencing from the
drawdown date of the Loan at an interest rate of 5% per annum.
Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, Mr. Lie and the
Company agreed that the aggregate subscription price required
to be paid by Mr. Lie and his associates under their subscription
and/or underwriting obligation of the irrevocable undertakings
and the Underwriting Agreement would be deemed to be paid
by way of the full capitalisation of the Loan in the first place
and the remaining balance will be settled in cash (the “Loan
Capitalisation”).
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As Mr. Lie is a substantial shareholder of the Company, the Loan
Agreement and the Loan Capitalisation constituted connected
transactions for the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. As
the Loan Agreement was made for the benefit of the Group on
normal commercial terms where no security over the assets
of the Company was granted in respect of the Loan, the Loan
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
fall within Rule 20.88 of the GEM Listing Rules and thus was
exempted from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Other than the aforementioned connected transactions,
the related party transactions disclosed in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements also constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on
pages 37 to 52 of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2015.
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EEEHE

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”). The term of appointment of HLB
as auditor of the Company shall expire at the conclusion of
the AGM. A resolution will be submitted to the AGM for the re-
appointment of HLB as auditor of the Company.

Following the resignation of ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company
Limited as auditor of the Company on 11 November 2013,
HLB was appointed as the new auditor of the Company at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 16
December 2013 to fill in the casual vacancy.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditor
of the Company during the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
CHEUNG Sing Tai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 February 2016
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The principles adopted
by the Company emphasis a quality board, transparency and
accountability to shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, the
Company has complied with the Code for the year ended 31
December 2015, with the exception for the following deviations:

Under code provision A.2.1, the responsibilities between
chairman and chief executive officer should be divided. Mr.
Cheung Sing Tai is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person has
the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group
and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning
for the Group. The Board believes that the balance of power
and authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired
and is adequately ensured by current Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals with sufficient number
thereof being independent non-executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should
be appointed for specific term. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive Directors; however, they are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles
and the Code. Accordingly, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to deal with the requirement in
respect of the appointment terms of non-executive Directors as
required under the code provision.
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ExERBRE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(Continued)

Under code provision D.1.4, the Company should have formal
letters of appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment. Except for Mr. CHEUNG Sing
Tai, and Mr. ZHANG Xinyu, the Company did not have formal
letters of appointment for Directors. However, the Directors
shall be subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Articles. In addition, the Directors are required to refer to the
guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the
Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” and “Guide
for Independent Non-executive Directors” (if applicable) published
by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in performing their
duties and responsibilities as Directors. Besides, the Directors
are required to comply with the requirements under statute and
common law, the GEM Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the Company’s business and governance
policies.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company also had made
specific enquiry of all Directors and the Company was not aware
of any non-compliance with the required standard of dealings and
its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of accounts, which shall give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. Details of the basis of
preparation of financial statements are set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Board is also responsible
for formulating the Group’s long term strategy, determining and
approving the Group’s significant transactions and supervising
the management to ensure thorough implementation of the
Group’s policies and effective performance of their duties.
Other decisions are to be delegated to management. As at 31
December 2015, the Board comprised eight Directors, including
four executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors. The executive Directors are Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai, Mr.
ZHANG Xinyu, Mr. LIAN Xin and Mr. XU Gang. The independent
non-executive Directors are Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo, Mr. CHOU
Jianzhong, Ms. Xl Lina and Mr. HUANG Zhixiong. Biographies of
the existing Directors are set out on pages 21 to 24.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, 15 Board
meetings were held. Details of the attendance of Directors are as
follows:

ERERRE

#5E

EEXRAEBBEDREEAERAFRRAEE
PFIRRZFR B - MR R am HE R 2 15 H
RiZaMBERERMEII -EFGNRAEHEAR
SEZRRRE RERMEREEZEAR
HERERERE NWERNEZEHETARHE
ZIBR N B RETTE B - AMIRRAEET
EEERE R _T-AF+_A=1+—8"
Exgh/\REFEN BRUERTESER
MABYLIIFATEFS ATEFTR/RERT
S RETRLE RIS ERIRRE AL B
HITEERREMAL BEBELE EZBIF
LEREFEHEL BEEEZREHNE21
FE24H -

REBE-_T-AF+-_A=t—BLFEARA
MTISRESESH EFHFEABOT:

Directors’

Name of the Directors Attendance
EEpE EEHESR
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai REHEEL 15/15
Mr. ZHANG Xinyu RITFRAE 15/15
Mr. LIAN Xin AT TE 13/15
Ms. YE Weiping BEEFz+ 2/2

(appointed on 13 May 2015 and (RZE—RAFRAT=-HEZEW

resigned on 17 June 2015) RZE—RFANA+TEAET)
Mr. XU Gang HELE 4/4

(appointed on 17 June 2015) (RZE—RFAT+EAEZMT)
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKBITES
Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo RERMELE 14/15
Mr. CHOU Jianzhong HEEEE 13/15
Ms. X Lina Bt 15/15
Mr. HUANG Zhixiong o 6/6

(appointed on 13 May 2015)

(R—ZE-hFHAAT+=HEZE)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should
be appointed for specific term. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive Directors of the Company,
however, they are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Articles. Accordingly the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to deal with the requirement
in respect of the appointment terms of non-executive Directors as
required under the code provision.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
The Board held a board meeting for each quarter to discuss and
approve the Group’s results. The then board members attended
the meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report

CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1, the responsibilities between
chairman and chief executive officer should be divided. Mr.
Cheung Sing Tai is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person has
the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group
and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning
for the Group. The Board believes that the balance of power
and authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired
and is adequately ensured by current Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals with sufficient number
thereof being independent non-executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they received for
the financial year ended 31 December 2015 to the Company.
The Company has also continuously updated Directors on
the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

EEERME
EFERITHARE

REBT RGN FA21G TERITHRARN
BERTHM REREERARBIFERT
B EE2eR R AR —EAARETFE
TR AL BRRNERASEERNE
B FEREAMEMTE A EE 2 ERRE
B-EFERA RENTHTSEERAL
BAMERENTE MRKHEREE M
BEOAT (ERBERRHABEEBLIEHR
TER)ERNEST S RIAERBENENMR
EE T -

525

REBET A 2 T RIMEEABLG 2RESRY
ASNMFEEXRERR BREEHEABERK
B AEREEABEEEAMDAMENR
MTHEEGELRR

FMAEESEHALNBESERR YRARF
RH{HRENBE_FT-—AFt+_HA=+—HLt
B R P B I 2 RE 8k » AN R RN )
EERMHAEREMRANREMEREERT
RMERZEM BRRFETIEBETH#
REFEEERTER -

Annual Report 2015 —E—H £ £




Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE
DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (Continued) EE 2
The individual training record of each Director received for the HE-_ZT—RAF+_A=+—HILFE K&
year ended 31 December 2015 is summarized below: EWEABZEER AT
Attending or
participating
in seminars/
workshops
reading
materials
relevant to
roles,
functions, and
duties of
a listed
company
director
HER
smmseg,
HESME
BEHELETAT
BExAG.
Bae R
Name of Directors EENA BB R AR
Executive Directors HBITES
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai REHRLA v
Mr. ZHANG Xinyu RITRE v
Mr. LIAN Xin AT TE v
Mr. XU Gang RELAE v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKBITES
Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo BRI A v
Mr. CHOU Jianzhong BEeLE 4
Ms. Xl Lina Bt v
Mr. HUANG Zhixiong LA v
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GENERAL MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 3 general meetings
were held, being the 2015 annual general meeting of the
Company (2015 AGM”) held on 5 May 2015, the extraordinary
general meetings of the Company held on 5 June 2015 and 15
October 2015 (which was adjourned to 26 November 2015).

ERERRE

BRAE

REBEZTE—AF+ZA=+—HLEFE K
YNGIL: @TTS/A&%KQ BIRZZE—REFRA
hEBTZ_E-—RTEREEFAE ([=ZF
—HEERFRBERE]) RZE—HF AR
ArR=—E—RF+A+EB (EHE=-F—H
FT+—AZTARB)BITZRIEERRE -

Directors’
Name of Directors Attendance
(Note)
EEnE EEHER
(BsE)
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai RERLE 3/3
Mr. ZHANG Xinyu RETFRE 0/3
Mr. LIAN Xin RS 0/3
Ms. YE Weiping BEEYTL+ (RZZE—RERA+=R 0/1
(appointed on 13 May 2015 and BEZATHR_ZT—RF A +EHABET)
resigned on 17 June 2015)
Mr. XU Gang (appointed on 17 June 2015) BwrEEE 1/1
(RZE—HFAT+EAEZMAE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKBTES
Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo RRMESE 2/3
Mr. CHOU Jianzhong BB EE 0/3
Ms. Xl Lina ;%%Ezzﬂﬁzzi 0/3
Mr. HUANG Zhixiong EEMH A 0/2
(appointed on 13 May 2015) (R—ZE—HERA+=BEZMT)

Note: Attendance of the Directors to the adjourned extraordinary general
meeting held on 26 November 2015 was counted with the
extraordinary general meeting held on 15 October 2015.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue
with shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings
or other general meetings to communicate with them and
encourage their participation. The executive Directors and the
chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee attended the 2015 AGM to
answer questions and collect views of shareholders.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by three board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on
matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are (a)
to review the Group’s annual reports, interim reports and
quarterly reports; (b) to discuss and review with the auditor
of the Company on the scope and findings of the audit;
and (c) to supervise the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo, Mr. CHOU
Jianzhong and Ms. XlI Lina. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo, who possesses extensive
experience in finance and accounting.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year and
reviewed the Group’s audited annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and the unaudited quarterly
and interim results for the year ended 31 December 2015,
which is of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and
requirements and that adequate disclosure have been
made.

Apart from attending the meetings, the members of the
Audit Committee also by passing written resolutions
(1) reviewed the engagement of auditor for audit of the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
and review of the interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2015; and (2) reviewed the engagement of a firm
for conducting the internal control review for the year ended
31 December 2015.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

1.

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Details of the members’ attendance of the Audit Committee
meetings are as follows:

=
M

TtEERRE
SEEHELEDH)

Members’
Name of Members Attendance
REEER REHFEE
Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo RRMFEAE 4/4
Mr. CHOU Jianzhong FREBLAE 4/4
Ms. Xl Lina EEii+ 4/4

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) according to the
relevant provisions of the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference. Its primary duties are (a) to make
recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management; (b) to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives; and (c) to determine the
remuneration packages on individual executive Directors
and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive
Director and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo (as chairman), Mr. CHEUNG
Sing Tai and Ms. XI Lina as members.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held 3 meetings and (1) reviewed the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management, (2)
made recommendation on the remuneration of new
executive Director and determined the remuneration of the
new independent non-executive Directors, (3) assessed
the performance of an executive Director and discussed
and approved his remuneration, and (4) assessed the
performance of the independent non-executive Directors
and discussed and recommended their remuneration.
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2. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued) 2. #MZSE (@)
%Mé%%@%%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%@?r

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Details of the members’ attendance of the Remuneration
Committee meetings are as follows:

Members’
Name of the Members Attendance
REHA REHER
Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo RRMI&E 3/3
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai RERLE 3/3
Ms. XI Lina EBP it 3/3

SHE L gRZ FMEBEKE

Apart from attending the above meetings, the members bR
MBEARAECHRITESTETM -

of the Remuneration Committee by passing of written
resolutions determined the remuneration of the new
executive Director.

HTEERARBARANERERE -
ENRECHEAFTHEESERN TS
REE BERMERITTRARETE EFH
SO FH TR E M RERM T4

The executive Directors are considered to be senior
management of the Company. The emoluments payable
to them are determined by the Remuneration Committee
based on their qualifications, experience and the prevailing
market conditions. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) on 28 March 2013 with
written terms of reference in accordance with requirements
of the Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee
shall comprise at least three members with a majority of
independent non-executive Directors, and the Chairman of
the Board or an independent non-executive Director should
take up the role of chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee currently consists of one

REEES
RRRAR-_ZE-—=F=A-+N\HRE
MR RENLAREEBREE
REZEe([RERZEEE]) - REZEE
SAMKRD=RKEAN  METKRZH
AEUFMTESR YHEFSIFH—
EENFRTESTEREEZEGIRE
RAZESHAMBE —BRTESFKRE
A (FBEXRE) MMBBILIENITE
ERFZMEEREBF L REEE

executive Director, Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai (as chairman), e7RESEIRE HERBZTEAR
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. BEEER

LEUNG Ka Wo and Ms. Xl Lina. The terms of reference of

the Nomination Committee is currently made available on

the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

3.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Terms of reference adopted by the Nomination Committee
are aligned with the code provisions set out in the Code.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review
and monitor the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement of the Group’s
strategy; to identify qualified individuals to become
members of the Board; to assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors; and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief
Executive.

The Board adopted on 30 August 2013 a board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and delegated
certain duties under the Policy to the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee and the Board had
also reviewed on 26 March 2015 the structure of the Board
and is of the opinion the Board consisted of members with
different gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge,
which met the requirements under the terms of the Board
Diversity Policy.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
held 2 meetings and (1) reviewed the Board composition,
(2) reviewed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, (3) considered the re-election of retiring
Directors and (4) considered the nomination of Directors.

ERERRE
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T RS2 ARTE »
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tEERRE
BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZET®)
3. NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued) 3. BRBZEES @
Details of the members’ attendance of the Nomination TR ECSHRMKEHBERBNT

Committee meetings are as follows:

Members’

Name of Members Attendance
REESR REHEER
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai REREA 2/2
Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo ZRMEE 2/2
Ms. Xl Lina EEP+ 2/2
Apart from attending the above meetings, the members of BrfE Ll g@on IREREZEENKER
the Nomination Committee by passing of written resolution BEEARABREMNERTESNREEE
reviewed the biographical information of the proposed new U BERETHEEEREER -
Director and made recommendation on the suitability on
such nomination.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR EEFBGREMBMER BT

THE PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation EZMEH B ERBEANEE 2 P HHRE  WHE
of the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the (REBIFAEBRRIVBEATHEE RN ERASTE
financial statements are prepared in accordance with statutory — RIfR& - EE MERAE BB KRR ERRE D
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors ~ f °

also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of

the Group.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, ZEEHER &KIEE—AEEME  REZH
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they %1 Fr & & & K F{2 - #2530 T #1236 {7] 7] 8
are not aware of any matters uncertainly relating to events or ¥ AN RHHEL LN EREAEE 2 EMH
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s s I&R 2 THEERE X »

ability to continue as a going concern.

177 N
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions were performed by the
Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance to comply with the Code and other legal or
regulatory requirements, to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors, and to review the Company’s disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the Board
held 1 meeting for reviewing the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management
and reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code for the
year ended 31 December 2014 and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The responsibility statement of external auditor of the
Company, HLB about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 53 to 56. During the year, auditor’s
remuneration for audit services was HK$1,080,000 and non-
audit services for review of financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2015 was HK$120,000. Save as disclosed
above, there was no other significant non-audit services
assignment undertaken by the external auditor during the year.
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ExERBRE

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external professional company
secretarial services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited
(“Uni-1"), to provide compliance and full range of company
secretarial services to the Group in order to assist the Group
to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit
difference commercial needs.

Mr. TSE Kam Fai (“Mr. Tse”), the representative of Uni-1, was
appointed as the named Company Secretary of the Company.

Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai, the Chairman of the Company, is the
primary point of contact at the Company for the Company
Secretary.

According to the requirement of Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing
Rules, Mr. Tse, being a person who was a company secretary of
a listed issuer before 31 December 1994, will take no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training for the financial year
commencing on 1 January 2017.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each
year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may convene an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company according to the provisions as set out in the
Articles and The Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The procedures shareholders can use to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are set out in the document
entitled “Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director”, which is currently available on the
Company’s website.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS
TO THE BOARD

To ensure effective communications between the Board and
the shareholders and the investment community at large, the
Company’s information is communicated to the shareholders
and the investment community mainly through the Company’s
financial reports (quarterly reports, interim reports and
annual reports), and its corporate communications and other
corporate publications on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders and the investment
community may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.
Any such questions shall be first directed to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting
forward a proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@ any number of members holding not less than one-
twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company as
at the date of the requisition carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall
be deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution
or circulating any necessary statement, at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong in the case of:—-

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than
six weeks before the meeting; and

(i)  any other requisition, not less than one week before the
meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with
the necessary procedures.
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ExERBRE

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company’s general meeting is a
valuation forum for the Board to communicate directly with the
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board as well as the chairman
of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee together with the external auditor
are present to answer shareholders’ questions. The annual report
together with annual general meeting circular is distributed to
all the shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the
annual general meeting.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 17.47(4) of the GEM Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a proper
and effective system of internal control of the Group. The
internal control system includes safeguard of the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated
to management the implementation of all relevant financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management function
without a defined framework.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board appointed
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Risk Assurance Limited, an international
professional consultancy firm, to conduct a review of the
internal control system of the Group’s three major operating
units and made certain recommendations to the Company on
improvements of such systems. The results of the internal control
review together with the recommendations were submitted to
the Board for consideration. The Board has reviewed the results
of the internal control review and is considered that the Group’s
system of internal controls is sound and adequate.

The Board will continue to review and improve the Group’s
internal control system, taking into account the Group’s business
development, interests of shareholders, the prevailing regulatory
requirements and technological advances.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NEO TELEMEDIA LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Neo Telemedia Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to
218, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended 31 December 2015, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

I ENHRE (F)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
persons for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHERFEEERA A
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

OPENING BALANCES AND
CORRESPONDING FIGURES

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014, which form the basis for
the corresponding figures presented in the current year’s
consolidated financial statements, included disclaimer of opinion
related to, i) the de-consolidation of a subsidiary, CERNET Wifi
Technology (Beijing) Company Limited (‘CERNET Wifi”); and
ii) appropriateness of using going concern basis in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Details of the disclaimer
opinion was set out in the independent auditors’ report dated 26
March 2015 which was included in the Company’s annual report
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

As disclosed in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements,
on 17 February 2016, the Group entered into the agreements
to unwind the structure contracts with the immediate holding
company of CERNET Wifi.

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to enable us to assess the possible effect of de-consolidation
of CERNET Wifi for the year ended 31 December 2014. Any
adjustments found to be necessary to the opening balances as
at 1 January 2015 may affect the balance of accumulated loss
as at 1 January 2015 and the results and related disclosures in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015. The comparative figures
showed in the consolidated financial statements may not be
comparable with the figures for the current period.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

I ENHRE (F)

QUALIFIED OPINION

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Shek Lui

Practising Certificate Number: P05895

Hong Kong, 18 February 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss cmd O’rher Comprehensive Income

meRmkEtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

2015 2014
—E-—0EF —E—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5 FER FHET
Turnover = X 7 1,914,902 34,550
Cost of sales SHE AR (1,813,983) (23,628)
Gross profit EF 100,919 10,922
Other income and gains o N & 8 537 755
Change in fair value of MESRMEEZ
derivative financial assets NEEE 29 - (711)
Selling and marketing costs $H 6 N T 45 1 A AR (18,775) (2,718)
Administrative and other expenses TB R HEAE R (87,695) (118,345)
Impairment loss recognised MEREERRZ
in respect of intangible assets BIEEE 20 (6,378) (84,802)
Impairment loss recognised REERRZRERE
in respect of goodwiill 19 - (254,966)
Net loss on de-consolidation of BUB#RE ABR—ME
a subsidiary fi B~ ml BRIFER 35 - (174,024)
Finance costs & AR 10 (24,541) (28,373)
Loss before tax BR A A& 1R 12 (35,933) (647,262)
Income tax (expense)/credit TR (Ax) #H& 11 (8,322) 14,770
Loss for the year FNEE (44,255) (632,492)
Other comprehensive loss FREMZEEE
for the year, net of tax ($0BR%iIE)
Exchange difference on translating of ~ FEREGINEREEL 2
foreign operations MW R
Exchange differences arising during FRNEECZIERZES
the year (7,435) ©973)
Reclassification adjustment FRNEMBEINET
relating to foreign operation BUBARE ABRZ
de-consolidated during the year EFOEAR - (355)
(7,435) (1,328)
Total comprehensive loss for the year — F RN & HE E B4 5 (51,690) (633,820)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued|

GAEERHEMEEWESR (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

2015 2014
—E-HF —ET-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B E FET FHTT
Loss for the year attributable to: DTATEMFEAREE
Owners of the Company PINNETEZ =N (32,227) (567,394)
Non-controlling interests IR S (12,028) (65,098)
(44,255) (632,492)
Total comprehensive loss DTATEMEZEER
attributable to: PR
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEF =N (38,998) (568,242)
Non-controlling interests e AR A = (12,692) (65,578)
(51,690) (6383,820)
HK Cents HK Cents
AL il
(Restated)
(KeEF)
Loss per share BREE 13
Basic and diluted BEARK#E (0.47) (9.31)
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Interests in an associate

Goodwiill

Intangible assets

Deposit for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Derivative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Receipts in advances

Bank borrowings
Convertible notes

Tax liabilities

Net current assets/(liabilities)

HRBEE

WE-BE R&E

Sk NG e

B

BEE

WiEME BB K
R RE

RBEE
FE
B 5 RUARR

BNRIR ke AR

A
ITEEREE
AeMREEEY

REBEE
B SR RR

HAth & 5 SR IR K FE R R IR

TR U AR X
RITHER
AR IR
BIRAE

REBEE(AfE)FHE

Total assets less current liabilities #2EERABEE

Notes

B &

17
18
19
20

42

22
23

24

29

26

28
29

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wra MBI R

As at 31 December 2015 RZ-ZF—aAF+=-HA=1+—H

2015
—E-FHE
HK$’000
FTET

28,880

121,741
194,866

345,487

25,286
91,235

155,613

1,111,947

1,384,081

46,093
120,971
8,688
26,271
157,364
14,584

373,971
1,010,110

1,355,597

2014
—T—OF
HK$’000
FHET

11,957

6,403
59,206

21,693

99,259

277
891

15,680

31,668

48,516

10,326
84,870
76

95,272
(46,756)

52,503

///,“\
V. N
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

rAaMBARRE (F)

As at 31 December 2015 R=-F—A%F+=-HA=+—H

2015 2014
—B-EHF —FE—-mEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B FET T
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Convertible notes Al % R 29 - 148,768
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIARE 30 36,737 6,804
36,737 155,572
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(AB)FE 1,318,860 (103,069)
Capital and reserves EXRR#E
Share capital A& A 31 952,884 275,492
Reserves M 337,189 (406,934)
Equity attributable to owners of RATIHEEB ANEMLER
the Company 1,290,073 (131,442)
Non-controlling interests JEIZ AR = 28,787 28,373
Total equity A 1,318,860 (103,069)

The consolidated financial statements were approved and #FAMBBREN-_ZE—RE-_A+/\BHEE=S
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 February &@H#L/ENFZHETIZS  WH T EEKREE:
2016 and signed on its behalf by:

CHEUNG Sing Tai ZHANG Xinyu
RER 3R FF
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHERFEEERA A



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mAEEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EAAERAEE
Share Convertible Non-
Share Share options Warrant notes  Translation Statutory Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total

AREE  TRRRE
Rx  ROEE BRERE fi# e RERR  iERR  RiER Nt FBRRES &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T T FiEL FiEr FiEr TR TR TR TR TR TR

(Note)
(i)
At 1 January 2014 R=E-ME-A-A 265,492 1,024,031 47,084 14,600 7,131 1,908 1375 (960,545) 397,076 104,488 501,564
Loss for the year ERER = = = = o = = (567,394) (667,394) (65,098) (632,492)
Exchange difference on BEBNEREEY
translating of EXZE
foreign operations - - - - - (493) - - (493) (480) 973)
Exchange differences FREEZELZR
arising during the year
Reclassfication adjustment  FRAHENERIH
relating to foreign SRR ENAR
operation Eild
de-consolidated
during the year - - - - - (355) - - (355) - (355)
Other comprehensive loss ~ £RE 2 EHE
for the year - - - - - (848) - - (648) (480) (1,328)
Total comprehensiveloss ~ £R2EBELE
for the year - - - - - (848) - (667,394) (668,242) (65,578) (633,820)
Share options lapsed BRuERE - - (26,427) - - - - 26427 - - -
Placing of shares RERH 20,000 19,724 - - - - - - 39,724 - 39,724
Warrants lapsed ; - - - (14,600) - - - 14,600 - - -
De-consolidation of
asubsidiary - - - - - - - - - (10,637) (10,537)
At 31 December 2014
7549 1,043,755 20657 - 7131 1,00 7375 (1488912) (131440 28373 (103,069
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
GRAREEEER (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRARAAEE
Share Convertible Non-
Share Share options Warrant notes  Translation Statutory ~ Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
AREE  TERRE
e RHER  BRERE @ E1 BERE EERE RitEE Mt FERER &t
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEn TEn TEn Tan Tan T Tt Tt T T
(Note)
ik
At1 January 2015 RZ2-1%-f-H 275,492 1,043,755 20,657 - 7,131 1,060 7375 (1,486,912 (131,442) 28,373 (103,069)
Loss for the year ERER = = - - = = = (82,227) (82,227) (12,028 44,255)
Exchange difference on RAEENEBELEL
ranating of EXZE
foreign operations = = = = = (6,771) = = 6,771) (664) (7.435)
Total comprehensive loss ENEEFREE
for the year = = - - - 6,771) - (32207) (38998 (1269) (51,690)

Issue of shares inrelationto ~ SMEHBARDE RN
acquisition of subsiclaries 49,972 208,639 - - - - - - 268,611 - 268,611
Non-controling interests arising ~ WEHBAFZE2

from acquisition of subsiciaries 31575 - - - - - - - - - 4,685 4685
Capital contrioution by non-~~ FERRER 2 FE

controling interests = = = = = = = = = 8421 8421
Isste of shares upon exercise of {7 ERRER TR

share options 2,000 16,177 (5617) - - - - - 12,560 - 12,560
Bonus issue of shares Bk 307,792 (307,792) - - - - - - - - -
Open offer of shares AREERR 317,628 889,359 - - - - - - 120697 - 1,206,987
Transaction costs atibutableto  AREEEEZFMA

open offer - (17,645) - - - - - - (17,645) - (17,645)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-R%+-A=1-R 952,884 1,832493 15,040 - 7131 (6,711) 7375 (1519,139) 1,200,073 28,787 1,318,860
Note: Bt 5 -

According to the relevant rules and regulations in the People’s Republic ~ BiEd = AR LFE ([HE ) HEEG KER -
of China (‘PRC”), subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are  ZN /2 &) AR Bk 37 2 I B A A BB B H 45 | 2 10%
required to transfer 10% of their net profit, as determined in accordance  (ZHRA B+ R ERI KB EET ) DA T AH
with the PRC accounting standards and regulations, to the statutory f# BEEZHE AR ERESA 2 EMEARAZ
surplus reserve until the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of their  50% BB EZFE BV ERRAZSEWNEARIZHE
respective registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made A7 KA S AIEL o A FE B HEE R BIEREBE
before distribution of dividends to owners of these subsidiaries. Statutory ~ EE 2 Ei8 (14 ) WAl IKBAESEA A 2
surplus reserve can be used to set off previous years’ losses, if any, and B 2 LR AR A BEITEZ EHTEER
may be converted into capital in proportion to existing equity owners’  EFEME R 225% °

equity percentage, provided that the balance after such issuance is not

less than 25% of their registered capital.

Neo Telemedia Limited FEFEEEBBRA A




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
CEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FiETT
Operating activities reE K
Loss before tax B 56 A ES 18 (35,933) (647,262)
Adjustments for: JHEIEE -
Finance costs & A A 24,541 23,373
Interest income ) B U A (86) (65)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BE REETE 6,084 5,771
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EHEE 34,613 34,874
Net loss on de-consolidation of a subsidiary BUB&GS & ABR—ME
(Ri= PNl bk - 174,024
Fair value change of derivative financial assets PTEEMEEZ A TEZS - 711
Impairment loss recognised in respect of IE - BE&
property, plant and equipment REERZREEE 2,366 454
Loss on disposal of property, EEDE BEREEZ
plant and equipment 518 - 538
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill — Ft &2 R 2 J8 (B &5 18 - 254,966
Impairment loss recognised in respect of NEFEEERRZ
intangible assets B E1E 6,378 84,802
Impairment loss recognised in respect of LA FE B FERR
other receivables B E1E 1,552 26,190
Operating cash flows before movements EEESEHAZ
in working capital REBESRE 39,515 (41,624)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables Z SRR () R (80,733) 6,045
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FENFIE  Re REMmEY
deposits and other receivables IR (1) A (108,177) 48,675
Decrease in inventories FERD 649 337
Increase in trade payables B 5 ERFIE 20,760 5,070
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and Hh e RIE
accruals fERTERIAE ORld) /1200 (5,611) 22,920
Decrease in deposits received B iz £/ - (149)
Increase/(decrease) in receipts in advance FEUBR I, Cri ) 8,612 (86)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations wERK (A EEf2
Be (124,985) 41,188
Income tax paid BEAFEHE (1,350) (40)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEK (FTA) BEE2
operating activities HEFH (126,335) 41,148
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

GERaRER ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

Investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries
(net of cash and cash equivalent acquired)
De-consolidation of a subsidiary
Deposit paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities
Net proceeds from placement of shares
Net proceeds from issue of shares
upon exercise of share options
Bank borrowings raised
Loan advanced from a substantial shareholder
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests
Net proceeds from open offer of shares

Interest paid
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year

Analysis of balances of cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the year
Bank balances and cash

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHERFEEERA A

REZEH
WEE KB A R (R P
WERe MESEEY)
HUHtR A ARR—RME AT
WM B E &
REC RS
BEWE BELRE
BEETEE
WEMBARENEZS
HEME BERREZ
FT1S5RIR
2 KA 8
REFHMARS FE
BMEEH
Fo SRR P 1S SRIRF R
TTIER D B T B AT A D
Z TS RIRE R
L& ZRITER
TERRBNZER
IR RIEE
INGE: - &
PSSR 8
BN E
METHELE RS TR
ReEkBEESEYEMNFR

FNRERREEEY

[EXREHTE

FRATRREEEY

FRASTRRE
EENEHRIAN
RITEBR NS

2015
—g-5%
HK$’000
T

4,267

(3,951)
(7,171)
(20,000)

86
(26,769)

12,560
26,271
100,000
8,421

1,089,342
(66)

1,236,528
1,083,424

31,668

(3,145)

1,111,947

1,111,947
1,111,947

2014
O
HK$'000
FH&T

(8,368)
(21,693)

(1,781)
(27,497)

18
65

(59,256)

39,724

(1,813)
37,911
19,803

10,966

899

31,668

31,668
31,668



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Neo Telemedia Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The address of the registered office of the Company
is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, and
its principal place of business in Hong Kong is located at
Unit 1504, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). Other than those subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
whose functional currency is Renminbi (‘RMB”) and some
subsidiaries’ functional currency in US Dollars (“‘USD”),
the functional currency of the Company and its remaining
subsidiaries are HK$. The reason for selecting HK$ as
its presentation currency is that the Company is a public
company listed on the GEM, where most of the investors
are located in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the provision of
transmedia advertising services, sale of telecommunication
products and services and operation of peer-to-peer
lending platform business.

AR

FEHEEEEERAR ([F27])T)
ERERBEMRLZEHREERAT
EBRNREBBBARZMARRAT ([
X)) BIZER (TRIZEMR]) £ e

XX B HY 5 A 3 =5 BR b 4k iz 7 Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands R EF B X ZEE MR ER
B & TITE39 B KNE1504% °

HEMBmERAET ([BR]) 25k
RAEARKXME (THE )RS
BRANMEEERARE ([AR%])
RETHWBARNMREEERET ([X
T RRARERGHE QRN
REBRET BEETELAEZIEY
MREEAQBNERIFER EMHAR
RE MEIXRZBREERENE S -

ARTB-BRAERAT HHBL
AEE B R A R SRR S R -
HEBAERRBHAREEEAYE
NEBF BT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (‘HKASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) for the first time in
the current year.

HKAS19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
(Amendments) Contribution

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
(Amendments) 2010-2012 Cycle

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
(Amendments) 2011-2013 Cycle

The application of these new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and position for the current and prior
years and on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new or
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
(Amendments) Associate or Joint Venture®

Neo Telemedia Limited P B EEFEEBERL A

RG] MR B BT
HE £ ([BEHHRELE
)

AER AKERAFEERERAUT
MAEBEAE ([(BEREEAE])
MR 2 FE] MR BT B M B E 2R
REAGER ([EESEL]) -

B g ER RERAFE B BN
E19%, (1BFTA)

EREMBREEN —F-ZFE-_F——FF
(1BETA) HERMEREEAFE
B
ERUBHREEN 2 —FE-T -4
(B3TA) HERMEREENFE
i

RAFERBLENRT REETZ2EE
MHRELNHARERANFE BT
FEZMBRE TN R FERE M5
B KBS BBEATE -

AEEY KRR EA THIEB/MERK
R SAIERT BB R E R -

BAMBHREER SRTA
FI5
BEMBREER REFAEPENFNAE

FIORRER PEZANEELERT
giERIEL &S
(BFT%)



Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

R RS RSl

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS  Investment Entities: Applying the

12 and Consolidation Exception’
And HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
(Amendments) Interests in Joint Operation’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers?

HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'
(Amendments)

HKAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods
HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation’
(Amendments)

HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants!

HKAS 41
(Amendments)

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

(Amendments) 2012-20141

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier applications permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier applications permitted.
g Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements

beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available
for adoption.
J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.

2.

FER ] MHE R BB TS
WEEL ([ F BB REAE
811 @

BERUBREEN REER ERGEARZ
F10%  ABHE  PUMER

AR 1257

REEGEL

£28%% (B3TA)

ARMBREEN WESEEBREENETA
FNH (BFIA) &
ERMBREEN RAZPANMNNE
L

ERerERE1R REAE

(faﬂ$)

BEgT &R BRI E R BN ERN S
ERE & P

S54RI 385

(BETA)

B G EL B AEIEY

EAG &

G ERIFA1R

(BFT%)
BRMBREER —T-—FE-T-NFE
(EFTA) MEBHHREEAFE

B

y R-T—RNFE—A— B HEBMABZF
FEEARI AR AT R A -

2 RZT—N\F—A—BARHEEBFRABZF
FEHAM AR AT IR R R o

@ ng*/\\ifﬁfaﬁﬁ?éﬁfﬁﬁémé

NEERBTERE LG IERERE

B o

4 AR A B B TR

s RIS EEE 2 B sk A& fth 2 F E 2
EXe
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

FERXTE] NS E] BB I 15
WG] ([ BT BmELE

A1)

78 i 7 8 & 22 B SE05% & Mt

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

TH
HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements RZZBEZNFREM 2B BT BREEL

for the classification and measurement of financial assets. FORSERRERMEES ERETEZH
HKFRS 9 was amended in 2010 to include requirements ER-RZE-—ZTFBI2EBUBR
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities HEAFSRMAHSREE D ERR
and for derecognition. Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are ERRIEERZRTE - BAEMBERSE

described below: BIZEOS v F EM MM T

All recognised financial assets that are within the e EEFBGHERZEIR[&mI
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition B ER afij HENAZAE

and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that

B R %wﬁﬁ?ﬁfﬁi’]bﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬂi
RN TFEFE-FRIZBNA/K
MENRETRE 2 FHBEAX A
B REaHNBRERBERAE RF
REBXRS ZHNBMNRZBEERK

are solely payments of principal and interest on the & - — RN H B E BRI K
principal outstanding are generally measured at Kﬂri FrBEMEERE R
amortised cost at the end of subsequent reporting MREHRER ST HAREATAE

periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

Neo Telemedia Limited P B EEFEEBERL A

FPE- MM ER BB RS ER
’W%EIET BRI {ERARIREZ

EE REMEEbET 25 #a
HRE (XIFFIEEE)AFELZ
Hig#2g) ERAREBABER
B R HER -



Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ - =

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities” credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning 1 January 2018 and that the
application of the new standard may have a significant
impact on amounts reported in respect of Group’s financial
assets. However, it is not practical to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

2.

R RS RSl

—AFt—A=1+—HIFE

FERFE] MRS EI BB 1%
AR ([ BB IFRELE
a11) @
BB IR EXER ER S mt
TR (#®)

o REFEVHHRSEFSR 3
EERAFEIRREBRREE
ZEBAGBME RIFNEMEE

WaEthERREZEERRNE
FE SERNBERRPEEIEKR

it RARABEZEERR
&mﬁ%ﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁz
SEINEMEAKETEN &

BMAEZEER A@ﬁ§ﬁ23@
BEATFEEFHHEIENEEE
TEHOE RAREFEGHE
AI2£395% - S E R A FETIR KA
BaXREZeRABZ A FEE
8 HEENEBEmRTE-

BEMBREEFORN T~ N\F—
A—BEERRZFRERRER 1
FHRFEM -

BESEAHR=_F-\F—A—BH%
ZFEHREARBNGE M B RRE
REB PR E ERIFIW - RAFTER
HEHAGESREEMERSTEK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

FER ] MHER]I BB TS
WEEL ([ FEMBERELE
811 @

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BB RS X SEoRE S mt

(Continued) TH (@)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure EE G ERF1 BT A H
Initiative EEXEH
Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus BB AERFE15E 2ASF] A A L%

#ﬁi‘%E’inﬁ&ﬁ&é%ﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ’\?ﬁ@ﬂﬁ

EoREBAER:

improvements in respect of the presentation and disclosure
in financial statements. The amendments clarify:

e the materiality requirements in HKAS 1; e  HEGHENZEIRAMNERMR

that specific line items in the statement of profit or
loss and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated;

that entities have flexibility as to the order in which
they present the notes to financial statements; and

that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method must be presented in aggregate as a
single line item, and classified between those items
that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to

;E

o BRIRLMBARRAZKERR
AT

o  ERENRFERIMERERMEAE
FHRAEBREE: &

o  EREREARNDEEERRN
BERRIMEMEEKEMBEES
BEEEAEAZY YAERKEX

TEEREN D BEERNZFR
BREETTRE-

profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements SN Z BRI BB M AR R R &8
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in the mRAEHEEINNETRE AR E © 5%
statement of financial position and the statement of profit LIRS EUAEEN T B BmKRE
or loss. The amendments are not expected to have any ERMBETE-

significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ - =

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs
2012-2014 CYCLE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance
in HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or
disposal group) from held for sale to held for distribution
to owners (or vice versa), or when held-for-distribution
accounting is discontinued. The amendments apply
prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance
to clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing
involvement in a transferred asset for the purpose of the
disclosures required in relation to transferred assets and
clarify that the offsetting disclosures (introduced in the
amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities issued in December 2011
and effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013) are not explicitly required for all interim periods.
However, the disclosures may need to be included in
condensed interim financial statements to comply with
HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs
2012-2014 CYCLE (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for
post-employment benefits should be issued in the same
currency as the benefits to be paid. These amendments
would result in the depth of the market for high quality
corporate bonds being assessed at currency level. The
amendments apply from the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented in the financial statements
in which the amendments are first applied. Any initial
adjustment arising should be recognised in retained
earnings at the beginning of that period.

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements
relating to information required by HKAS 34 that is
presented elsewhere within the interim financial report but
outside the interim financial statements. The amendments
require that such information be incorporated by way of
a cross reference from the interim financial statements to
the other part of the interim financial report that is available
to users on the same terms and at the same time as the
interim financial statements.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
which collective term includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, HKASs and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of the Growth Enterprise Market of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing rules”).

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “new CQ”) regarding preparation
of accounts and directors’ reports and audits became
effective for the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2015. Further, the disclosure requirements set
out in the GEM Listing Rules regarding annual accounts
have been amended with reference to the new CO and
to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 have been changed to comply with these new
requirements. Comparative information in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based
on the new requirements. Information previously required
to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or GEM Listing
Rules but not under the new CO or amended GEM Listing
Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated financial
statements.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk
of material adjustments in the next year are discussed in
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realizable value in HKAS 2 or value in
use in HKAS 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EA@=HEE (&)

(Continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) mBLE X (@)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value AN BB mEm S AFEFFED B
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 FE—H B_RAE=H LEFRAE
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value D HIRBEASBE A FEFTENAH
measurements are observable and the significance of the REERBASEBEHATETENERE
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which EEMW-EBMMAT

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active D F—REASBERRTEHH
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity AIEEREER B ER GRS
can access at the measurement date; Frep(Etg (RFAE)EFH

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices o  FEIRMABUIRNE—RFTERE
included within Level 1, that are observable for the AN At EES B E Rk EE
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and R ABBSENEASE: &

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset o FEoHWMABEBINEEXAGEEZE
or liability. B AU -

The principal accounting policies are set out below. FESFTBEREIIMAT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

De-consolidation

Due to i) the non-cooperation of the key management
of CERNET Wifi Technology (Beijing) Company Limited
(“CERNET Wifi”), and ii) the non-cooperation of the holder
of the CERNET Wifi’'s non-controlling interests who owned
the brand name and network of CERNET, which CERNET
Wifi had used for its operations pursuant to an asset
leasehold agreement, the Company had been unable to
both (a) access the complete sets of books and records
together with the supporting documents of CERNET Wifi
and (b) maintain and operate the business of CERNET Wifi
properly. As such, the directors of the Company consider
that the Company has lost its control over CERNET Wifi.

As a result, CERNET Wifi had been de-consolidated from
the consolidated financial statements of the Group from 1
January 2014. The de-consolidation of CERNET Wifi had
resulted in a net loss on de-consolidated subsidiary of
approximately HK$174,024,000.

The Group had consolidated the assets and liabilities of
CERNET Wifi as at 30 June 2014 and their results from
the period from 1 January 2014 to 30 September 2014
in its interim report for the six months ended 30 June
2014 and the third quarterly report for the nine months
ended 30 September 2014 based on the unaudited
management information received. As the Directors had
not been provided with the complete set of books and
records together with the supporting documents for them
to prepare proper consolidated financial statements and
to make the appropriate disclosures under the annual
report requirements which are more comprehensive than
the disclosure requirements of the interim report and the
third quarterly report, the Directors considered that it is
more appropriate to de-consolidate CERNET Wifi from the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as from 1
January 2014.

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHERFEEERA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Finoncial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

De-consolidation (Continued)

The following detailed the unaudited financial information,
before intra-group balances and transactions elimination,
of CERNET Wifi whose assets and liabilities and results
had been consolidated in the Group’s interim report for
the six months ended 30 June 2014 and third quarterly
report for the nine months ended 30 September 2014
respectively, but was excluded in these consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Unaudited

9 months ended
30 September
2014

RICERZ
HEZZ—F
NA=+A8I
JE A
HK$'000

FAET

Sz

Revenue U 25

8,969

Loss for the period
Other comprehensive expenses

HINE 1
H {th 2 [ 7 X

(2,219)
(1,145)

Total comprehensive loss

EEERER

(3,364)

Unaudited

30 June 2014
R EZ
—E—F
NAZ=TH
HK$'000
FAT

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

FRBEE
mEEE
mBAIE
FRBAE

129,620
11,764
(444)
(25,040)

Net assets

BEEFHE

115,900
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Annual Report 2015 —E— R £ £ 77




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 prepared on the aforementioned basis
present more fairly the results and state of affairs of the
Group as a whole in light of the aforesaid incomplete
books and records of CERNET Wifi. However, the
de-consolidation of the CERNET Wifi from the beginning of
the year is a departure from the requirement of HKFRS 10
“Consolidated Financial Statements”.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other
vote holders;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interest even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income
to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ - =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (jii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognise as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When
assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts
or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquire
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the
basis specified in another HKFRSs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments made
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39 with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 or when the investment is designated as at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

Under equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes and long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinued recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of an associate recognised at
the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment.
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R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company directly
or indirectly controls more than half of the voting power,
or controls the composition of the board of directors.
Investments in subsidiaries are carried in the Company’s
financial statements at cost less impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

Revenue from sales of telecommunication products is
recognised when goods are delivered to customers which
generally coincides with the time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue is recorded after deduction of any
trade discount.

Network and satellite telecommunication services income
based on usage of the Group’s network and facilities is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Telecommunication services provided for fixed periods is
recognised on straight-line basis over the applicable fixed
period.

Traffic signboard advertising income is recognised when
services are provided.

Income from licensing and sub-licensing of distribution
rights over films is recognised upon delivery of the
prerecorded audio visual products and the materials for
video features including the master tapes to the customers
in accordance with the terms of the contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress (“CIP”), held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method at the following rate per annum:

Leasehold improvements 25%
Office equipment 25%
Furniture and fixtures 25%
Motor vehicles 25%
Traffic signboards 20%

Buildings Over the unexpired lease
terms of land on which the

building is erected
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

LEASING (continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy
on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straightline basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Nonmonetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Nonmonetary items are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, such exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gain
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 July 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity under
the heading of translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

r & B T R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees in the Company’s subsidiaries operating
in the PRC are members of retirement benefits scheme
(the “PRC RB Schemes”) operated by the local municipal
benefits. The local municipal government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligation of all existing and
future retired employees of the PRC subsidiaries. The only
obligation of the PRC subsidiaries with respect to the PRC
RB Scheme is to meet the required contributions under the
PRC RB Schemes. The contributions are charged to the
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Equity-settled share-based payment

Share options granted to directors and employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the goods or services
received, unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the goods or services received are measured
by reference to the fair value of the share options granted.

The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve), when the Group obtains the
goods or when the counterparties render services, unless
the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

3.

BANZETHBER (#)

BB (@)

EEREABORERHBATIRES
B SRR R 2 TR A
o B A R A O B
EHENATE RO KT T T e RE
B BB S o {2 7E BT A8 36 15 12 75 2 FE SR
S5 ) T 24 F A BELE B 1 22 B U 25 AR T4
A TBHE A AT RS RIS e R E K
BRT FERBMELRTERIES
75 B8 ) AT 40090 2 B 14 2 4 T A OB
BIESE-

RERSHREHELEHRBEENRE
BTV Z A ERENBA TR
TR FE Rt ) T {58 15 35 e 120 2 P =X AP
MEEMNRE

EXERBREERBBNRBEHRENE
BEHEREE K ERNTRTE
(ERHERSHARCEALELCEM
MR (RBOE) ) °

EERARBEREENTEERRAR
£ B IEHIRN RS B R A8 A A Mk [l s fE A
HEERABEREEMNT S SIEHH
MIGRER -

BNEA R AE B IR 48 25 A RERR - HEER L
heEmBAREER ERERNEBE
BT RUBR SN - FEURIFI T - BDEA ROR AR
ANMEDRRNEMEER SR ERNE
P RE AR o fi BD EA B TR SO FE B TR A 5
BeaMzNSestREMEL G
BEFEETARKAMZETRE-

Annual Report 2015 —E— R £ £



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
being their fair value at the date of the revaluation
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
asset with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives.

Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

r & B T R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately in profit or loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories, representing finished goods for resale, are
stated at the lower of costs and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using first-in, first-out method. Net realizable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES ACQUIRED
IN A BUSINESS COMBINATION

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are
initially measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. At
the end of the subsequent report periods, such contingent
liabilities are measured at the higher of the amount that
would be recognised in accordance with HKAS 37 and the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortization
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of asset within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, loan and loan interest receivables and
cash and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
accumulated impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period ranging from 90 to 180 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

r & B T R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible notes and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the notes into
equity, is included in convertible note reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible note reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
note reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible note reserve will be released
to the accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible loan notes are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of the
gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible notes using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”)

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes at fair value arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Neo Telemedia Limited P B EEFEEBERL A

BANZETHBER (#)

€@I AR ®m)
EHEBERBRATE (&)

BRR RN FEARZ /A A
([# 1B R IE 2N FIEARR])
HEmB BRI HEREEE /L ER
EREAFEAR AZEREEIER
RERBRRATEAR-

RTIER eReE (FIEEEZSR
BERRIN) IRV R R IEE RIE B
R A FEARK:

o  AREEHHIARRDAIELIR
P2 BRI R 5

s REAKERERAMEEXRER
BREREXK —HEREEXETREA
BEMEEFRONSHEE I
BMAFEEEFGERE  BAH
DREMERTDRZELER AR
H®iX

e SRABBEKRES -HIALBRA
ATETAEZANESEHL BE
B ERTERIEIGREF BN AHE
M(BERAB)EERRKESR
BRAFEARK-

RERFERAFEARZEREERA
FEAE EFNFEMELEZATES
PRELEDHRERERREPER-
R R 2 Wk ERFETBREM
ERERAEMNZHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liabilities classified as at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), of which the interest
expense is excluded in net gains or losses.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

RELATED PARTIES

A related party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(viy a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision for inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories
of the Group at the end of each reporting period and
makes provision if considered necessary. Management
estimate the net realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. At 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of inventories was approximately HK$25,286,000 (2014:
HK$277,000) after netting off the allowance for inventories
of approximately HK$800,000 (2014: HK$800,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 4. &E Ke=tH6 &Gt T~EEA

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net
selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset, which required significant judgment
relating to level of revenue and amount of operating
costs, The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections
of revenue and operating costs. At 31 December 2015,
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment was
approximately HK$28,880,000 (2014: HK$11,957,000) (net
of accumulated impairment loss amounted to approximately
HK$2,310,000 (2014: HK$454,000)). Details are disclosed
in Note 17.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets are
impaired requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value-in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of goodwill amounted to approximately HK$121,741,000
(2014: HK$6,403,000) (net of accumulated impairment
loss amounted to approximately HK$1,104,316,000 (2014
HK$1,104,316,000)) and carrying amount of intangible
assets amounted to approximately HK$194,866,000
(2014: HK$59,206,000) (net of accumulated amortisation
and impairment loss amounted to approximately
HK$379,406,000 (2014: HK$347,147,000)). Details are
disclosed in Note 19 and 20.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 4. &E Ke=tH6 &Gt T~EEA

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Determination of fair values of identifiable
intangible assets arising from the
business combination

The acquired identifiable assets and liabilities had to be
measured at their respective fair values as at the date of
acquisition. The difference between the cost of acquisition
and the fair value of the Group’s share of net assets so
acquired should be recognised as goodwill at the end of
the reporting period or recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. In the absence of an active market for the
business combination/acquisition transactions undertaken
by the Group, in order to determine the fair values of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the directors of
the Company had made their estimates according to the
valuation results produced by external valuers. During year
ended 31 December 2015, the fair value of identifiable
intangible assets arising from the acquisitions of Bluesea
Mobile Group and Million Ace Group are approximately
HK$100,947,000 and HK$69,749,000 respectively. Details
of the identifiable intangible assets are disclosed in Note
21.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade
receivables and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of
trade receivables and other receivables are approximately
HK$91,235,000 (2014: HK$891,000) (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately HK$41,000 (2014:
HK$41,000) and HK$95,302,000 (2014: HK$3,332,000)
(net of allowance for doubtful debt of HK$26,309,000
(2014: HK$25,983,000)).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimate are required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

B R HE &b Er T EARA
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M THBE RN EERIF
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JE U 318 2 BR 1B 9 Bl 49 A91,235,000
BT (ZZ — U4 891,000/ 7t) (0
Br REEBE X A41,0008 T (ZF—Y
% : 41,000/ 7T) ) 95,302,000 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes convertible notes disclosed in Note 29, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associates with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the new share issues
as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of the
existing debt.

BN[E B

AREEAER Y AEAREETER
BB AR E R AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. @I A
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL SRTEER
INSTRUMENTS
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E-RfF =
+=ZA=+—-8B +=-—A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
At amortised cost R SH A AR
Loan and receivables ER R B GRIE
Trade receivables B 5 RIWER 91,235 891
Deposits and other receivables Ze RE M EUGRIA 122,553 5,113
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEEY 1,111,947 31,668
1,325,735 37,672
At fair value through profit or loss KERKRZATE
Derivative financial assets METMERE - =
1,325,735 37,672
Financial liabilities cRAas
At amortised cost SRR
Trade payables 2 SR 46,093 10,326
Other payables and accruals H 1‘M‘§H AR
FEEtIE 120,971 84,870
Bank borrowings RITERK 26,271 -
Convertible notes AR =R 157,364 148,768
350,699 243,964
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial instruments include trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, loan and loan interest
receivables, cash and cash equivalents derivative financial
assets, trade payables, other payables and accruals,
deposits received, and convertible notes. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial
risks of changes in foreign currency, interest rates and price
risk.

Market risk exposures are further measured by sensitivity
analysis. There has been no significant change to the
Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which
it manages and measures the risk. Details of each type of
market risks are described as follows:

ST E @

cREREEREEREE

AEBzeRMTABREREZRUWIRR
Be ME MR FOR - USSR &R
B ReRRSEEY MTEERMEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. T HE )

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ctREREEBEEZERBER (@)
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) ™ 5 EL B (&)

Currency risk =gy

Several subsidiaries of the Group have certain foreign AEBZETHBRARBEESR TINER
currency transaction, which expose the Group to foreign 5 LAEBEEEINE R

currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s USD denominated RMER AEEUETIHEZER
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of BERESBENER@DAENT
reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
a& EE

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014

—B-1E —T-mE —B-RE —I-mE

tZBZ+-B TIZA=t-H +tZAZt-B +ZA=t-H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AR FEL THR TEL

UsD e 5,200 5,200 225 48
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency 7R 65 [ 3R BE P AR AT (] INEE SR R ER o A
hedging policy. However, the management has closely M BREEEREEERNER ZINER
monitored the Group’s foreign exchange exposure and will B BN ERGERERERINER

consider hedging significant foreign currency risk should the % o

need arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. @R ITHE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As HK$ is pegged to USD, the financial impact on
exchange risk is exposed to be insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to the fixed-rate loan receivables, convertible notes,
and cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable rate
bank balances for both years.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

Price risk

The Group did not have investments in equity securities for
treasury purpose and therefore is not exposed to equity
price risk. The management has a policy to monitor the
Group’s exposure to price risk by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return profiles and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arises.

tREREEEZERBE @

™ 15 B B (&)

BURE DT

B A5 7T B3 35 7T 40 + O K A Bk B0 B 7
FEUTEX-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties provided by the Group is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 26.2% (As at
31 December 2014: 83.8%) of trade receivables due from
the Group’s largest customer of the Group in the PRC.
The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is in the PRC, which accounted for 82.6% (As at
31 December 2014: 100%) of total trade receivables as at
31 December 2015.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has reviewed the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables, other receivables, loan and
loan interest receivables at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
to irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group deposited its cash and cash equivalents with
approved and reputable bank. Bankruptcy and insolvency
of the bank may cause the Group’s right with respect to
cash and cash equivalents held to be delayed or limited.
Management of the Group monitors the credit rating of
these banks on an ongoing basis, and considers that the
Group’s exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014 were minimal.

Further qualitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables disclosed in
Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

6.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s

operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted

ST E @

tREREEEZERBE @

nEE & E R
EERRDEASARNBESR ALH
RELTEBERERATHNRER
ReSEYKT AAREERNLERHE
ESVRERSRRDOTE -

TRFMIBASEFTECRA G
TEHANIHAR -ZXNEEHER
RARE R LR ERKEENRTF B K
ABBRBRSRE/REERHE RS
THERAERERE -HEMBREZE
BMERAEWAET  AEBESEIR
BREMROM X RFTES L

amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.

RBBEMNERAZHESRE - WH S
MERFHEE AREBSBEREN
BEPR MR MRFESL -

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at
the end of the reporting period.

Weighted Within More than More than Total
average 1 year 1 year but 2 years but More contractual Total
effective oron less than less than than  undiscounted carrying
interest rate demand 2 years 5 years 5years cashflow amount
mETE 1ER 1E)E 25N L AORER BEE
ERNE RER B2EHT BSENT S5E0E  BEREAE ag
% HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% T TR T TR TEn TR
At 31 December 2015 ZE-EE+-AZ+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities HrEeHAR
Trade payables EFEMAERN - 46,003 - - - 46,003 46,093
Other payables and accruals At EAREREHSE - 120,011 - - - 120,071 120,071
Bank borrowings BAER 5.52% 26,271 - - - 26,271 26,271
Convertible bonds TRRES 11.29% 162,937 - - - 162,997 157,364
356,272 - - - 356,272 350,699
At 31 December 2014 “I-MEF-A=1-A
Non-derivative financial iabities HiTELRER
Trade payables BHEFER - 10,326 - - - 10,326 10,326
Other payables and accruals it AR HH - 84,870 - - - 84,870 84,870
Convertible bonds MARES 11.29% 1,177 162,937 = = 174,114 148,768
106,373 162,937 - - 269,310 243,964
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRITEH (&
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ERMIBEZA¥E
INSTRUMENTS
The fair value of financial liabilities are determined as SRMEBBEZAFEETNOT
follows:

o the fair value of financial liabilities with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices and ask prices respectively;

o the fair value of financial liabilities (excluding
derivative instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis;

° the fair value of derivative instruments is calculated
using quoted prices. Where such prices are not
available, use is made of discounted cash flow
analysis using the applicable yield curve for the
duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives, and option pricing models for optional
derivatives; and

° the fair value of financial guarantee contracts is
determined using option pricing models where the
main assumptions are the probability of default by
the specified counterparty extrapolated from market-
based credit information and the amount of loss,
given the default.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRITEH (&
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ERMITAEZAFEE M@
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Except for the liability component of convertible notes MrE\ TRl RIBAEKNEERSHD (BT
which recorded at amortised cost as below, the directors NIABSEAARARR) N KRRAIEERA
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of AGEVBRERNeREERSRSE
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the EMERERENEREAFE-

consolidated financial statements approximately to their fair

values.
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
“E-RF+ZAZt-H “E-mE+ZA=T-H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
FAEE AFE FEE ATE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT FHL FET
Convertible notes THRRREE 157,364 163,538 148,768 162,292
The fair value of the liability component is the present value BEBHHNAFENENEEARRS
of the contractually determined stream of future cash flows MEEZRHITELREAMRRT REHR
discounted at the interest applied at that time by the market AERBF 2R E R IERE SRR E
to instruments of comparable credit status and providing MITERERAMSHEIRIRE-

substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms, but
without conversion option.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The following table provides

an analysis of financial

instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3
based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

6.

Level 1
E-R
HK$'000
THx

TERERRNFERRRATFEAEZ

ERMIAZHH DHIRBEAFERER
BEIRFE—REF=A-
Level 2 Level 3 Total
-/ =R @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TEx THI

31 December 2015

Assets
Derivative financial assets

31 December 2014

Assets
Derivative financial assets

—$-If
t=A=t-H
BE
MERRAE

—2-mF
t=A=t-H
BE
fEEREE

There were no transfer between
year and period.

Level 1, 2 and 3 in both

R ESE MR £ FE R/ RE
= TR A T S R
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)

Some of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets
and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these financial
assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at

RT3EHz2AVE

31 December 31 December  Fair value

Financial assets 2015 2014 hierarchy
—2-1% —2-mE
tREE +ZA=+-A +tZA=1+—H ATEE#R
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THT
Derivative financial - - Level2
assets
TEemEE E-H

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHERFEEERA A

SR T H ()

NEEMET (@
AEBERARRZBHLREERSR
R E R R AT E B TR
BN A BT ZECREERS R
BEZ AFE (AE2MERMGER
MRBAE)ZEHR -

N

ﬂtm

Valuation
techniques and Significant
key inputs unobservable inputs
RERMR
TEBAE EXFUERGAE
Binomial Option Risk-free rate, applicable
Pricing Model stock price, volatility,
dividend yield, credit
spread and liquidity risk
premium
“EABEEE  ERRMNX GERKE
5 KiE - REWHE FE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

TURNOVER 7. EXH
Turnover represents the net amounts received and EEBERAEE IR HEEY S
receivable for goods sold or services provided by the Group IR 2 B W % B FRIBFRE - 444
to outside customers, less returns and discounts and sales BRARE TR IHERETIE -
related taxes.
An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as REBFERNEEBONAT
follows:
2015 2014
—E-RE —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Sale of telecommunication HEBEMERRRS
products and services 1,842,157 33,776
Transmedia advertising services BEEESRY 426 774
Peer-to-peer lending platform BAHBEAEEFES 64,064 -
Others HAh 8,255 -
1,914,902 34,550
OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8. EMUg AR Uas

An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains for the

years as follows:

REBEFAEMPARKzESTAT

2015 2014

—E-HEF —ET—OF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

Bank interest income RITFIB A 86 65
Sundry income HIEWA 451 690
537 755
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. DEEH
Information reported to the board of directors of the HEIRD R D ERBF TG EARF]
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for Exg(xrEBLERRE)RECE
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment B SRR Rt 2 BEms RS <
of segment performance focuses on types of goods or A N ARNEEEAB N ERE 2 EE

services delivered or provided. This is also the basis upon
which the Group is organised and managed.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments BERME AEERBEESVEHRE L
under HKFRS 8 are as follows: B8R 2 A 2| BLE M T -

—  Sale of telecommunication products and services — HEFMEMERE

- Transmedia advertising services - BEBESRY

- P2P lending platform — PPEETA

The Group reportable segments are strategic business AEBZAIZHDENKENRES 2
units that operate different activities. They are managed RIS ETF B B’:‘%%ﬂ‘%%& B1E
separately because each business has different markets Mm% ERTRzMIGHERE S 2
and requires different marketing strategies. WoBITER B -

Vo "‘~\
N
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEEM
SEGMENT REVENUES AND RESULTS THEWREREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and BAZ2REKENEE S 2 AEE &
results by reportable and operating segments: EBREBSTHOT
Sale of telecommunication Transmedia
products and services P2P lending platform advertising services Others Consolidated
HEERERRER PPEETA EREEERE i b
215 2014 215 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

- S Z3-1f CE-MF Z%-1F —2-mE Z2-1F T I2-1F CF-MF
HKS$000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FEn TiEn FEn Fin TEn FiEn TER FER F#n TEn

Turnover €28 1,842,157 33,776 64,064 - 426 74 8,255 - 1,914,902 34,550
Segment resuls AEER (23814) (¢85.849) 46428 = (15,370) (84281) 02 = 7,946 670,130)
Interest income HEHA 8 65
Unallocated corporate expenses AARLAAF (20,223 (63,918)
Unallocated finance costs AARBERA (23,742) (23219
Loss before tax BRAEE (35,933) 847,262)
Income tax credit fiEhES (8,322) 14,770
Loss for the year EREE (44,255) (632,492)
Note: Others represent other operating segments that are not MizE: HaigEMEESE BREEEMH

reportable segments under HKFRS 8, which include logistics WMELAESRWIERAZ|MOE B
related business and cross-border e-commerce business. %#@ MAAEESREREE FREE-

EROBPRBERBINGEP Z

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue

generated from external customers. There was no inter-
segment sales in both year. The accounting policies of
the operating segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment results
represent the loss suffered from each segment without
allocation of interest income, central administration costs,
directors’ emoluments and finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

HSZEOEWIEWE%M“* FIHE - L&D
M et BOREMESFMil s AEE s
EAZ“*HE D RRBIRENEAZZE
B WESEFSWA  PRITHER -
EEMeRBMEKN W IR EIRS R

MoERBAFEMMEBLERREE
TE2MzHE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

TREERER
AEBRT WA 2 AERAEH

liabilities by reportable segment: /I lNE
Sale of telecommunication Transmedia
products and services P2P lending platform advertising services Others Consolidated
HEERERRER PPEETA EREEERE i b
31December  31December  31December  31December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Z%3-1fF Z2-RE -1 “2-RmE “R-iF “B-mE %-1F —2-pf 2-1% “3-mE
tZB=t-B tZA=t-B tZB=t-B tZf=t-B tZA=t-B {-A=t-B 1A=t-B f2A=1-B t2A=t-B f2A=1-H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Tn Tién TEn Titn TEn Titn TEn TiEn Fin Tn
Segment assets AREE 562,029 121,245 145,617 = 170 15,059 5,535 - 713,351 136,304
Unallocated corporate assets FARAAEE 1016217 11471
Consolidated assets GRRE 1,729,568 147,775
Segment liabities AHEfE 165,562 51,154 16,963 = 1,676 1,685 729 - 184,930 52,839
Unallocated corporate fibliies FARAAAE 205,118 198,005
Consolidated liabilties Ga8f 410,708 250,844

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than unallocated corporate assets (mainly comprising
certain of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, and derivative financial assets); and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly
comprising receipts in advances, contingent
consideration payable, other payables and accruals,
and convertible notes).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

=S

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. PEEF

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hittp BER
Sale of telecommunication Transmedia
products and services P2P lending platform advertising services Other Unallocated Consolidated
HEEAERREY PPERTA ERERERE it S &4
2015 014 2015 014 2015 014 2015 014 2015 2014 2015 014

c§-Bf  F-MF C®-EF CF-MF C®-5F CR-ME C®-3F CR-MF C¥-3F RO C¥-3F CR-OF
HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK§ 000
TER FhL TEn TEn TER TEL Tin FRT ThRL TR TER T

Amount included in the measure of HEABRERAENEE:
segment results
Capital expenditure 178,351 227 2472 = 2 = 476 = - 2 203550 2218
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,664 el 112 = 4092 4617 3 = 185 183 6.084 5T
Amortisation of intangble assets 3252 27,300 1,764 - 325 1574 - - - - 34613 34874
Loss/{gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment - 1 - - - 537 - - - - - 538
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment - 454 - - 2,366 - - - - - 2,366 454
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
intanglble assets 913 28712 - - 5465 61,090 - - - - 6,378 84802
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwil 5 - 254,966 - - - - - - - - - 254,966
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
other receivables - 18,364 - - 1,652 7826 - - - - 1,552 26,190
Net loss on de-consolidafion of a subsidiary
- 174024 - = - = - = - = - 174024
Capital expenditure for the year ended 31 December  E T -—RAF+A=1+—HLEEE
2015 includes additions resulted from acquisition through MNERFZBREEEBEGRE FETI
business combinations, amounting to approximately BEMEEANAE  ©%4AH172,273,000
HK$172,273,000 (2014: HKS$nil). BR(ZT—mE:THT) -
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision FHREHTFTEFELEAREEBTIEESR
maker but not included in the measure of segment results DEEEINDBEETENS TR
or segment assets:
Sale of telecommunication Transmedia
products and services P2P lending platform advertising services Others Unallocated Consolidated
BETRERREH PPEETA BRERERE ife *38 &A
2015 2014 2015 2014 015 2014 2015 014 2015 2014 215 2014

-8-1f -T-0F C-®-BF _I-0F C%-E§ -5-DMF C%-Bf  _T-MF  C$-3fF _T-ME Z%-5F  T-OE
HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOD  HKSO0D  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO0
TETL TAL THL ThL THL THL THL TAL THL ThL TR TAL

Interest income 61 2% 2 = - % 2 = 1 1 86 65
Finance costs 799 u - = - = - = 2,742 2219 2454 2313
Income tax credit/[expense) 1,39 12631 9,718 - - 2189 - - - - (8322 14770
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R E

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. PEEF
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION HiorEER (@)
(Continued)
Information about major customers FEERZER
Turnover from major customers of the corresponding year REEFEMAEERAEETEBBI0%
contributing over 10% of the total turnover of the Group are MREBEEREFCEEENT:
as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RE —ZT—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHET
1.2Customer A REEA 574,212 -
.2Customer B RSB 348,854 =
1.2Customer C REEC 198,031 =
1.3Customer D 1RZ S0 - 12,461
. 8Customer E IR RE - 6,550
1.3Customer F LRSS - 5,664
1,121,097 24,675
i Sale of telecommunication products and services ! tHE TAE M MRS
2 No information on revenue for last year is disclosed for 2 HRZERFBRIBEH B AR &
these customers since these customers belong to a newly WEREBEZERFLE—FEMNRRE
acquired subsidiary. o
8 No information on revenue for current year is disclosed for < EREE—Z—RF+=-A= Jr =Nl
these customers since none of them contributed 10% or FEZERPIFEAEE M =AI10%
more to the Group’s revenue for year ended 31 December AL BAFENERBEZZERTFPH
2015. W & ko
Geographical information it [ & 3l
The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong AEEBZEBTEMNRNBESRFEH-
and the PRC.
Information about the Group’s revenue from external REBREIBEE 2 WHEERTIIER
customers is presented based on the geographical location FREZHEZY] RIERBDEEZE
of the customer, and non-current assets information is BhRZEEMR 2@ Z7] -
presented based on the geographical location of the
assets.
The Group’s revenue from external customers and ZiEE D o AEEKRBIINBE S 2K
information about its non-current assets by geographical mhBBEERBEE 2 ERFINT

location are detailed below:

" 136 | Neo Telemedia Limited = B # & {5 & B4 R A &
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HEER #)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION HipEER (@)
(Continued)
Geographical information (Continued) EEM 8
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets*
REMNBEFHEA FhBEE"
31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZB-%f —T-mE
~2-1% “2-Mm% +ZB=t-R TZA=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHL TER FEL
Name of the region HES
Hong Kong BE 1,730,654 = 133,391 226
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) R (TREEE) 184,248 34,550 212,096 99,033
1,914,902 34,550 345,487 99,259
* Information about the Group’s non-current assets, other . BAREEZIERDEE (RS
than interest in an associate, is presented based on the RNElZERBRIN) 2 BER TR EE 2
geographical location of the assets. REID 25
FINANCE COSTS 10. B & AR
2015 2014
—EB-AHF —EF-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Effective interest charged on AT ZRE 2
convertible notes (Note 29) EBEA S (FFzE29) 17,362 17,728
Interest on short-term loans REE T L 7,113 5,551
Bank loan interest expenses IRITEFF B 66 94
24,541 23,373
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R E

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

11. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT 1. PEH (FAx) HBE
2015 2014
—B-afF —ZT—mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Current tax: B AR IS -
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BAENEN 1,800 -
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HR B EATEE 13,335 =
— Over-provision for prior year —BEFEBEEE - (5,248)
Deferred tax BRERIR (6,813) (9,522)
Total tax expense/(credit) HIERAX (ER) B5E 8,322 (14,770)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the B BTG T B R E G 8 b 5T B R
estimated assessable profit for both years. Yin K IR FE R 16.5%5TE »
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the BREFBECEMSEE(RERSH
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, ZDRGEFRGRZERESN BZ=F
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January ZENF—A—BR FRNBARIZM
2008 onwards. R E25% o
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, RIEF B ED ROER - AN A E—ME
a subsidiary of the Company, being qualified as a new MBARKITERARTRMERE 68
and high technology enterprise, is eligible for a preferential BEE15%MERLEMSHME -

Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31

11. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT

(Continued)

The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be
reconciled to the loss before tax from continuing operations
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

AR RME

December 2015 #ZE_—F—AF1+-A=1+—HIFE

1. FTER (X)) % @

FRMBHRAX (BR) BEaBaE R
Ht2HKRERAKREHELEELK L
BRIZATEIBE BRI

2015 2014
—B-IfF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Loss before tax B 7% Bl 5 18 (35,933) (647,262)
Tax at domestic income tax REBRVEERES R
rates applicable to profits in HERR AT FRE X
the respective jurisdiction (note) ATERFIE (M) (2,208) (116,372)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for RIS S A kR
tax purpose FZ BB E 4,082 113,950
Tax effect of income not taxable for MBS = BAERD
tax purpose WA B 5 8 (1,763) (6,042)
Over-provision for prior year/period BEFEHEZ
TR - (5,248)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTEEBEZ
MR8 11,646 10,363
Utilisation of tax losses previously FABAERERL
not recognised 18 B 18 - (1,899)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RER G K
differences not recognised ERIBETE (3,435) (9,522)
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year FRAEHEAL (EE) 8,322 (14,770)

Note: As the Group operates in several different jurisdictions,

the tax rate applied in the tax reconciliation represents the
weighted average domestic tax rates of the individual tax

jurisdiction.

Details of deferred tax are set out in Note 30.

PSRRI H

et : MRAKERS ERERELERE Bk
AR 2 R RE A A AR 2 N

AR IA 2 BN MIFE30 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

12. LOSS BEFORE TAX 12. BRI E 18

2015 2014
—B-IfF —E-mE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Loss before tax has been arrived at after BREAISEEIBRIA TS
charging: 1A
Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration 8 T4 BEE &
(Note 14) (BzE14)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits — & TENEMEF 29,048 15,277
- Contributions to retirement — R FIFH B 51
benefits schemes 1,280 113
Total staff costs #E TR 30,328 15,390
Depreciation of property, ME - ENEETE
plant and equipment 6,084 5,771
Amortisation of intangible assets B A Y 34,613 34,874
Impairment loss recognised EREERR
in respect of intangible assets A E R 6,378 84,802
Impairment loss recognised HHERERACRESSE
in respect of goodwill - 254,966
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FE A IR RER
other receivables REEE 1,552 26,190
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HUE - BB MR EER
property, plant and equipment BEEE 2,366 454
Net loss on de-consolidation of a subsidiary ~ BUBAR & AR — [
MEAR < EEFE - 174,024
Exchange difference, net MR ERE F5 280 595
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEREEZ
equipment, net B8 F5 - 538
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEE
— audit service —EZRE 1,080 1,080
- non-audit service —EBRRH 120 166
Minimum lease payments under operating HEME CEHERN
lease in respect of rented premises SEBE MK 5,810 6,118
Cost of inventories recognised as expense D HER AR S 2 F &K A 1,721,026 10,131
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AR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BREE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the SREREBTIREARNDAES AR
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company and FABEEBRINEFES L ERREGHE -

the weighted average number of ordinary shares.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share ARAHEBAELEFASRERLEE
attributable to owners of the Company for the year is based BB TR T 8RR E -

on the following data:

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHAT
Loss for the year attributable to owners of RAREE ANEIEEA
the Company and loss for the purpose of EERARTESR
basic and diluted loss per share EARAREEBHE BB 32,227 567,394
2015 2014
—E-afF —T-mF
’000 ‘000
TR T
(restated)
(&E5)
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EGRERK
shares for the purpose of basic and BEEB LAk
diluted loss per share hnFE 52 6,913,795 6,096,321
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

13. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 13. R EIE ()
The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume AEEREEEERT AMRELBAR
the conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible Al BAEINAT AR R IR I AR A B BB AR i
notes and the exercise of the Company’s share options EE BREBSIBEREEZRES
since it would result in an anti-dilutive effect on loss per 2
share.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the FRRER R#E E 8 2 Bl g T
purpose of basic and diluted loss per share has been HEAES AN =_ZE—RF A +NAB
adjusted for bonus issue and open offer that took place EZZ—hF+A=THETIAR
on 19 June 2015 and 30 December 2015 respectively. BORAHEEELIAZ it &=
Accordingly, the basic and diluted loss per share for the Z-NE+TA=T—HLEFENETR
year ended 31 December 2014 have been restated. BEARBEEBRELE-
The denominators used are the same as these detailed FrA ot EXFF BIEsT B EREAR
above for both basic and diluted loss per share. FE#EEIE 2D AR -

N\

W W
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS EEE
2015 2014
“EB-1f% it Sif:3

Salaries, Contributions Salaries, ~ Contributions

wages to retirement wages o retrement

and other benefits and other benefits
Names of directors BEEpg Fees benefits schemes Total Fees beneits schemes Total

$¢ 18R EHRER H$ THER ERER
ik EthER SR &zt ik E AR BE [ @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TiEx FTER TAT TAT TAT TEL

Executive directors: HTES:

Mr. Theo EDE (Note a) Theo EDE 4 (fff3ta) - - - - 5 286 - 291

Mr. Zhang Xinyu (Note b) REFAE (M) 60 931 18 1,000 46 1,010 12 1,068

Mr. Lian Xin (Note ¢) R (M) % - - 2% 18 127 - 145

Mr. Cheung Sing Tai (Note c) REREA (M) 211 1,542 18 1,771 126 1,299 17 1,442

Ms. Ye Weiping (Note d) EETLT (Mikd) 12 - - 12 = = - =

Mr. Xu Gang (Note €) kL (Mite) 65 - - 65 - - - -

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEES:

directors:

Professor Song Junde (Note f) ~ RIBEHR (i) - - - - 8 - = 8

Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark (Note g) ~ #FE23k %2 4 (FizEg) - - - - 13 - - 13

Dr. Jih Chyi Leu (Note f Jh Chyi Leut £ (st - - - - 7 201 - 208

Mr. Leung Ka Wo (Note h) 2RM%E (HzEh) 182 - - 182 13 - - 113

Ms. Xi Lina (Note | ZEB L (M) 120 - - 120 75 - - 75

Ms. Lu Zhuo (Note ) RELt (M) - - - - 19 - - 19

Mr. Chou Jianzhong (Note k) BEALE (Mikk) 145 - - 145 94 - - 94

Mr. Huang Zhixiong (Note |} ErfaA (M) 76 - - 76 - - - -
895 2473 36 3,404 524 2923 29 3476

Notes: B 5

a)  Removed on 18 March 2014 a RIT—NF=A+/\BHE2H

b)  Appointed on 15 June 2012 by RZ=ZZT— _f?/\ﬁ +HBEZRT

c)  Appointed on 21 June 2013 ) RZ-ZZE—=FXA-+—HEZ®EF

d)  Appointed on 13 May 2015 and resigned on 17 June 2015 d RZZE— ﬁiﬁﬁ T=HEZARRZ

T—RAFNATEHEHT

e)  Appointed on 17 June 2015 e) RZZ—RAFAA+tHEZE

f) Retired on 17 March 2014 f) R-ZTE—MNE=A+tARME

g)  Removed on 18 March 2014 9 RIZT—HEF=A+tNAE2E

h)  Appointed on 20 March 2014 hy RZE—NEF=A=-+HEZE

i) Appointed on 16 May 2014 i) R-ZTE—NEFRA+NAERE

) Appointed on 20 March 2014 and resigned on 16 May 2014 ) RZZE—NF=A -+ HEZELR =

T—NFRA+NHET

k)  Appointed on 20 March 2014 k) R-E—NEF=A=-+HEZE

1) Appointed on 13 May 2015 l) RZZE—RFRAT+=REZE

Mr. Cheung Sing Tai was also the chief executive officer of %E%%%?ﬁij‘r#,$/‘ﬂﬁﬁﬁz%@t% " EX

the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include FriE s A iEERNEE—2—H

those for service rendered by him as the chief executive ENR—_E—NWE+-_A=+—H Ltifg

officer for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. PEETTERAB R TR AR 75 O S B -

Of the five highest paid individuals, two (2014: three) were IEZESTMALTH MEZ(ZFE—

directors of the Company and remuneration has been F =ZB)RERRAEE FHMENX LEX

disclosed above. W
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

14.

15.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS

(Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: nil).

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015,
no emoluments was paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2014: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures above.
The emoluments of the remaining three (2014: two) highest
paid individuals during the year/period were as follows:

14,

15.

EEHM )

HE-_E—RE+-A=1+—HItFE-
MESEREXARERETAHE 2L
E(ZZE—HF: &) -

HE-_T—NFER_FT—hHF+=A
=S+—HLEFE AEBUERARF
ESXMEAME  ERMASKENA
B 2 REN S E AR E

= = o B Bl A

AEBABRSFMENALTA M
(ZF—F: =R) REARAES  BF
ZHMER EXRE - FR,/ MR Hif
R (ZF-EF WA ) &5 M E R
AL ZFHBanT :

2015 2014

—E-A1F —E—[UF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, wages and other benefits He IEREMRET 2,740 1,741
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes 3R VR 4@ 7 5T 2 7% 54 29
2,794 1,770
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

15. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 15. &= #r B E Rl A £ ()
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
The emoluments of the remaining three (2014: two) highest HEBR="R(ZF—UF WA )&= 5 o
paid individuals fell within the following bands: BERALZEHMATUATHER :
2015 2014
—B-afF —T—-mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Emolument bands i E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0018 L&
1,500,000/ 7T 2 1
During the year, no emolument was paid to the five highest FA-AEBEER AL &S 5 HEH
paid individuals as an inducement to join, or upon joining AT EARS| BEMALRER
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2014: Nil). LMARERERER RS SIERBERM

B(ZE—HF:&)-

At 31 December 2015, the directors of the Company held RZZE—RF+T_A=+—H ARAE
share options under the Company’s share option schemes. ERBAACBRESTEIREBERE-
Details of the share options are disclosed under the ERERECHFEIRESTSRS (B
paragraph “Share option schemes’ in the report of the BREEST & —EX R Ee2h iR o

directors and Note 32.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

16. DIVIDENDS 16. ix &

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended HE_ZT—RAFT+_HA=1T—HILFE
31 December 2015, nor has any dividend been proposed I 48 S 15F 3k 4R R Hﬁ,u B RS HRBIT
since the end of the reporting period (2014: nil). ERORTARE (ZE—OF &) -

Al A
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % BEKMEZE
Leasehold
Leasehold Office Furniture Motor Traffic  of network
Buildings improvements  equipment  and fixtures vehicles  signboards  equipment Total
BT HENELE BOZRE  GAREE RE  RBETH BEREEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin T Ti#n T Tir T Ti#x T
Cost
At 1 January 2014 - 1,215 15,138 4,296 567 26,124 38,819 76,159
Exchange realignment - ©) (237) 1,672 (126) (385) - 916
Additions - - 286 1,495 - - = 1,781
De-consolidation of a subsidiary /El GAANE—RNE
(Note 35) Rl (HizE35) - - (407) - - - (28819 (29,226)
Disposals heE = = (10) = = (1,296) = (1,306)
At 31 December 2014and 1~ R=F—EF
January 2015 +=A=1+-
—E-RE- ﬂ H = 1,207 14,770 7,463 441 24,443 = 48,324
Exchange realignment EX ﬁ% (512) (32 (112) (459) 1) (1,153 - (2,289
Additions "E 21,181 190 1,183 1,833 745 - - 25,132
Acaquired on acquisition of AYENBARMEA
subsicleries (Note 34) (BizE34) - - 146 1431 - - - 1577
At 31 December 2015 RZ2-1E
+-A=t-H 20,669 1,365 15,987 10,268 1,165 23290 - 72,744
Accumulated depreciation R TEREE
and impairment
At 1 January 2014 RZE-NE-A-H = 494 13,784 185 19 14,982 = 29,565
Exchange realignment A% - (136) 561 1,883 174 (1,136) - 1,346
Provided for the period BHER = 325 162 686 84 4,514 = 5771
Impairment loss recognised ~ FABEAMERR
during the year - 390 64 - - - - 454
De-consolidation of a subsidiary  FUE4&A A& —EH B
(Note 35) A7 (Hi335) - = (19) = = = = (19)
Eliminated on disposals HERHR - - © - - (741) - (750)
At31December 2014and 1~ R-E—-W%&
January 2015 +ZA=t-Bk
“Z-n5-f-B = 1,078 14,643 2,754 317 17,620 - 36,367
Exchange realignment E3EE (12 (30) (68) (147) {19 677) = (953)
Provided for the year FRER 503 204 165 1,084 91 4,037 - 6,084
Impairment loss recognised FRERRAEHE
during the year - - 7 27 22 2,310 - 2,366
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1%
+-A=t-8 491 1,247 14,647 3,718 471 23290 = 43,864
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1F
+=F=+-8 20,178 118 1,340 6,550 694 = > 28,380
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-M%F
+=A=+-AH = 134 21 4,709 64 6,823 = 11,967
1 \\
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - BB R a& M ()

(Continued)

Depreciation charge of approximately HK$4,092,000 (2014: MAERE RAREE RERRBE ?a

HK$4,878,000) with respect to office equipment, furniture
and fixtures, motor vehicle and traffic signboard has been
included in cost of sales and administrative and other
expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income during the year ended 31
December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the directors
conducted a review of the Group’s office equipment and
determined that a number of these assets were impaired,
due to physical damage and technical obsolescence.
Accordingly, impairment losses of approximately HKS$nil
(2014: HK$390,000) and HK$nil (2014: HK$64,000)
respectively have been recognised in respect of office
equipment and other assets, which were used in the
segment of sale of telecommunication products and
services. Impairment losses of approximately HK$7,000,
HK$27,000, HK$22,000 and HK$2,310,000 respectively
have been recognised in respect of office equipment,
furniture and fixtures, motor vehicles and traffic signboard,
which were used in the segment of transmedia advertising
services.

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

TR E R X 494,002,000 7T (= F
—PO4F : 4,878,000/ ) EFTABE S
—hAFE+-_A=+—RBILFEZLHEEE
m R EMEER SR ZHEERAR
THEREMAS -

EE—RF+_A=1+—HLFE"
EFHASERAERBEETHHITE
EaTZEEEDRE  REZMIEIEE
REMRE - Al EstAREEEME
uu&}%&a“%’hﬁa’];jmz&ﬁﬁﬁm;éF
ERREREDBILAZET ( _?
% :390,000%8 L) R T BT (= E
F 1 64,0007 7T) ° E?xﬁﬁéﬁ%‘ﬁ%ﬁ&&%
RIS D BOMAERME R REE R
BRBIETEERBREBES O A
7,000/% 7T * 27,0007 7T * 22,0007 7T &
2,310,000/ 7T °

8. R—HBERrR cEm

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

—E—FREF —E—E

+=ZA=+-8 +=ZA=+—8”

HK$°000 HK$’000

FTHERT FAT
Cost of investment in an associate R—EE AR 2

Unlisted REMKAK (FELT) 335 335
Share of post-acquisition loss and JEIEWERBE R

other comprehensive income Hitv2E e (335) (335)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

)\Iy\ e | AN / .
18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continved) 18, I — Bt & A &) 2 #Ewm (4)
At 31 December 2015, the Group had interest in the R-EBE—RFE+_A=+—H &A5EE
following associate: AT B A R e
Nominal value Proportion of
Country of Principal of paid up nominal value of

Class of incorporation/ Place of issued issued capital held Proportion of

Name of entity shares held registeration operation share capital by the Group voting power held Principal activities
r5E

b2l R/ E3: BRE® BREEER b2

.52 R BRI ZREAR EEHY TRAEE RAREELA RERLH TEER
2015 2014 2015 2014

—g-5f -—E-ME Zg-1f -—ZT-QNF

China Orient Space Ordinary British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong USD100 33% 33% 33% 33%  Investment holding
Communications Ltd
LRk EERAES ik 100%7T REER
Ordinary PRC PRC = - = 40% - Applications of
Cloud Computing
and e-commerce
business
RRAREEHE LRk HE HE EEEARET
EBEN k) i
Note: B 5
BEORMENEE5E AR AT was incorporated during the year ERRHENEEAEERAREEZE—Z—H
ended 31 December 2015. Up to the date of this report, the Group F+ZA=+—RALEFEFMKL - BEARR
has not completed the capital contribution, for detalil, please refer SHE AEBRARTHREE  BEEREE
to Note 37 for the amount of capital commitment. 22 B2
The summarised financial information in respect of the BEHEAEBEEE AR HBEER 2 B E
Group’s associate is set out below: FaA
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—g-5F  —T-mF
t=A=t+-8 +-A=t+-~
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAET
Total assets BEE 2,738 2,738
Total liabilities BEE (10,864) (7,901)
Net liabilities BfEFHE (8,126) (5,163)

Group’s share of net assets of the associate 7 5= [ fB (5 Bt & A &)
EEFEH - -

Neo Telemedia Limited FEFEEEBBRA A
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AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 18, 1A — B B & R 5] 2 #E %= (@)
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FAT
Total revenue U - -
Total loss for the year FANLREE (2,963) (2,633)
Total comprehensive loss THEEBEE (2,963) (2,633)
Group's share of loss and FAREE BN
other comprehensive loss of /NG ol =958
associate for the year HihzmEEE - -
2015 2014
—E-1F —E-OmF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
The unrecognised share of REREMBEAREHE
loss of the associate 978 869
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E-EE —T—UF
+=ZA=+—-B +=-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cumulative share of loss of the associate BRI E A REE 2,182 1,204
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

19. GOODWILL 19. &
HK$ 000
FAT
Cost BN
At 1 January 2014 RZE—WMF—H—H 1,178,367
De-consolidation of a subsidiary (Note 35) BUB4R A ABR—RKEB AR (H3E35) (67,648)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZZE—MOF+—A=+—HK
—E—h¥—H—H 1,110,719
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note) EUEEN B A e FTEE (&) 115,338
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-—RAF+-_A=+—8H 1,226,057
Accumulated impairment ZiEE
At 1 January 2014 R-—ZT—NF—H—H 849,350
Impairment loss recognised for the year FRNERRBERE (HiE21)
(Note 21) 254,966
At 31 December 2014, 1 January 2015and A -_Z—W&+_-_A=+—H8"
31 December 2015 —E2—hF—HA—HBK
—E—RF+=-A=+—H 1,104,316
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2015 R=ZB-—AF+=A=+—H 121,741
At 31 December 2014 RZE—mF+=-_A=+—H 6,403
Note: B 5
During the year ended 31 December 2015, goodwill amounted to HE-_ZT—RAF+-_A=+—HLEE"
approximately HK$50,150,000 and HK$65,188,000 were arisen WEERRECBERERAFARENRBA
from the acquisition of ERENEZEEEGR AR (Guangdong A ([BYEBEEE]) URBEERER AR
Bluesea Mobile Development Ltd Co.*) and its subsidiaries REMBAR([BEXREE] S REELAEE
(“‘Bluesea Mobile Group”) and Million Ace Limited and its #950,150,000/% 7t %65,188,0007% 7T ° 5 B &
subsidiaries (“Million Ace Group”) respectively. For details, please & 234 -

refer to the Note 34.

*

for identification purpose only

" 150 .| Neo Telemedia Limited B E = EBE AR A
W\
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AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BIL B E

Exclusive
right on
Contracted purchase
And Lottery andsales  Brand name
Wireless  uncontracted software of satellite and Technical
network customers  development communication  distribution Computer know how
platform relationships system equipment network software  technology License  P2P Platform Total
BREE
BHSRAKT ¥aan EARR RRER
BRARTE H2EFBAE RRZLE  2BEZBE  RABES EHEH &l Fa# P2PTA @it

HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK8'000
T T Tt TEn TET L TiEn THL T T

Cost
At 1 January 2014 23430 27,722 - 58,967 100,160 - 76,317 - - 476,59
De-consolidation of a subsidiary

(Note 35) (Hizt5) = s s - (l00160) = = = - (100,160)
Additions AE = = 1,010 - - 26,487 - - - 27,497
Exchange alignment EXAE (216) - ® - - (202) (1,154) = = (1,580)
At31 December 2014 and R-B-mE+-A=1+-BR

1 January 2015 —E-7%-A-R 23214 27,722 1,002 58,967 = 26,285 75,163 - - 402,353
Additions AE o = = = = 6,325 = = 846 71
Acquired on acquistion of RYEHBARMEA

subsidiaries (Note 34) (Kizk3s) = 139,975 = = = - - 7,662 23,069 170,696
Exchange alignment ERER (1,095) - (@7 - - (1,240) (3,546) - (20) (5,948)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+A=t-H 2,119 357,697 955 58,967 - 31,370 817 7,662 23885 574,272
Accumulated amortisation it MR HE

and impairment
At1 January 2014 -mE-F-H 3,033 206,332 - 13,608 - - 636 - - 223,609
Provided for the period BARE 4,667 3,254 67 18,144 = 1,168 7,574 - - 34,874
Impaiment loss recognised  BACERHEFE

for the period 15,676 8,136 - - - - 61,090 - - 84,802
Exchange alignment ER % (62) - - 1) - 9 (66) - - (138)
At 31 December 2014 and

1 January 2015 23214 27,722 67 31,751 = 1,159 69,234 = = 343,147
Provided for the year - 7,592 - 18,144 - 6,213 325 575 1,764 34,613
Impairment loss recogrised FRERDHEER

for the year (Note 21) (Msto1) - - 913 - - - 5,465 - - 6,378
Exchange alignment EX A% (1,005) - (25) - - (204) (3.407) - 0] #739)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-R%+t-fA=t-H 22,119 225,314 955 49,895 - 7,168 71,617 575 1,763 (879,406)
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2015 R=2-2§+=B=1+-B - 132,383 - 9,072 - 24,202 - 7,087 2,122 194,866
At 31 December 2014 RZF-RE+=A=1-H = = 935 27,216 = 25,126 5929 = = 59,206
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 0. BB E (#)

The above intangible assets, other than brand name and
distribution network, have finite useful lives. Such intangible

A EEEEE (mERTHERDHBKER
SN 2RI RFHAR - RFEBTLEETIA

assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the BRI AT G B #E S -
following periods:
Wireless network platform 5 years mERETEe 5%
Contracted and uncontracted customer 4-10 years BRIANRRETH 2B PR 4-10%
relationship
Lottery software development system 3 years KRR BEIERR 3F
Exclusive rights on purchase and sale of 3.25 years BEBERME  BERS X 3.25%F
satellite communication equipment and AENBEREE R EE
related services and trademark
Technical know how technology 10 years Ay 104
Computer software 3-5 years EHEdES 3-54
License 10 years FFal 104
P2P platform 5-10 years P2P & 5-10%F

The brand name and the distribution network is endorsed
by Ministry of Education of the PRC to provide personal
broadband services and various products to the end users
in the higher educational institutions in the PRC. As a result,
the brand name and the distribution network is considered
by the management of the Group as having an indefinite
useful life. The brand name and distribution network will
not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be
finite. Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired.

The brand name and distribution network had been written-
off upon the de-consolidation of a subsidiary. For details of
the de-consolidation, please refer to note 35.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, in view of
the uncertainties and risk factors of the internet lottery
and advertising industry in the PRC, such as changing
government policy to suspend online lottery sales in the
PRC, and restrict or curtail advertising services, fierce
competition in outdoor advertising market and rapid
changes in technology, the management conducted
a review on the recoverable amounts of the Group’s
lottery software development system and a technical
know-how technology. As a result, an impairment loss
of HK$6,378,000 were recognised in respect of the
abovementioned assets.

Neo Telemedia Limited P B EEFEEBERL A

iR RN R A AR T B At
JEVA R B = S B A AR o R P AR i ELA
RERBLREEER At AEEEE
JE 7% m ke 5 18 & 2 $H MR A% 2 7T A 5
ER - mE 2R HBEE T e #E
EEHAERAFHEERERBL-E
ERRBREAEERE IesFE
TTREAIF ©

BUBS & ARk — BB 2 5 2 s m
MRS HBE ARBUERE AR
2B 2RSS -

BE_ T AFt-A=1—BLHFE"
fﬁ*EAEPIEH‘; BREERESITENTH
PR = R B B B 5 - ) 40 2 2B A IR SR
Eizh BN EBAEYRHEARRGIX
HIBLE & IR 75 - P ONE & 5 5 5 AR
REfirEEl EREERAEEF
ERHRBERFR LR AIRE S EE
T&EZ - it - 3t Ll B EwRIRER R
6,378,000/ T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill with
indefinite useful life set out in note 19 has been allocated to

AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

the following groups of cash-generating units:

o Transmedia advertising services — Ease Ray Group

o Sale of telecommunication products
China Wimetro Group

o Sale of telecommunication products
Smart Long Group

o Sale of telecommunication products
CERNET Wifi Group

° Sale of telecommunication products
Hughes China Group

o Sale of telecommunication products
Bluesea Mobile Group

° Sale of telecommunication products
Million Ace Group

and

and

and

and

and

and

services

services

services

services

services

services

° P2P Lending platform business — Avatar Wealth

21.

EE N ER B E R EAH

SURE RGN S - 19 A H ER
EAERAFHNBEEIRENTRE
EEBEAER :

e BHEBEERBE-Ex

i

o  HEBEMEMRNMRE - BEELM
mEE

s HESHEMMERE-SHEE
s HEBMERMRE -—EBRERKE
R

EEMEm MRS — KT E &

i

L[]
EH
iy

i EEMERLRE -—FEBSHE

i
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

21. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL ~ 21. @& R & E 2 R E R
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) (%)

R IREE (K 2R EESE R

The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses and effect of de-consolidation of a SHEAARE—HNBRARZRE) pEE
subsidiary) allocated to these units are as follows: TR S EESM:

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—E-RfF —Z—MmF
+ZA=+-8B +=-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBERT FHAT
Transmedia advertising services 5 15 B8 & 25 AR 7%
— Ease Ray Group —Hx&E - =
Sale of telecommunication products 355 BAE m R R
and services — China Wimetro Group — R B4R 4RI T & - -
Sale of telecommunication products $HE A Em R R
and services — Smart Long Group —ER% - =
Sale of telecommunication products SHE BE®RMRY
and services — CERNET Wifi Group -~ ERERRREE - -
Sale of telecommunication products 358 BAEm KR
and services — Hughes China Group —{REFR B & 6,403 6,403
Sale of telecommunication products and $HE A Em R R
services — Bluesea Mobile Group —BgBES 36,246 =
Sale of telecommunication products and SHE BAERMRE
services — Million Ace Group —BREE 65,188 =
P2P Lending platform — Avatar Wealth PPEET A
—P LEME 13,904 -
121,741 6,403

Neo Telemedia Limited P B EEFEEBERL A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ - =

. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Bluesea Mobile Group

The recoverable amount of Bluesea Mobile Group has
been determined based on value in use calculation. Such
calculation is based on 1) profit forecast prepared by
Bluesea Mobile Group’s management covering a five year
period and 2) a discount rate of 16.7% per annum which
reflects current market assessment of the time value of
money and the credit risk specific to the cash-generating
unit. The cash flows beyond 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based
on the relevant industry growth forecast and does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the relevant
industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are related to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales with a compound
average growth rate of 8.5% and stable gross margin, such
estimation is based on the CGU’s past performance and its
management’s expectations for the market development.
The management believes that any reasonable possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of Bluesea Mobile Group to
exceed aggregate recoverable amount of Bluesea Mobile
Group.

Based on the valuation report issued by Asset Appraisal
Limited (“Asset Appraisal’), the recoverable amount
exceeds the carrying amount of Bluesea Mobile Group and
no impairment charge was necessary.

R RS RSl

—AFt—A=1+—HIFE

. Fﬁéﬁ&,mﬂ/ ﬁ?Z/UME/” ul\

(#&)
SHEERERKRK

HiBBHEHE

FABBEEZATKRESRDREER
EBEFEEAMERE - %t EATRE)
FEBBRERE D FRENEAR
K2) BE16.7%NFRE (ARRETS
HEREBERHEEENFEARRESE
EEMNRBEEERR)ME - 5F A L
ZHE IR TIE FAB3%HI IR E 18 £ K HEE -
ZBEREXDREMEBEERERTN B
TEBLEBEENRAFIHERE
EREBFEIAZEMEIERRERS
MA/ ML hET AR BRTFHEAER
ER8E5%MBHIBERRBENER
ZbF DR EZRTELEEM ZBER
EREEEERMBSRER AN -BE
BHEE ERZFRE TZEMEER]
REHH IS EHF B RE AR
HEBEFNEBHEE Z AT KREEEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

21. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 21. B2 REEEE 7 REA R

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Million Ace Group

The recoverable amount of Million Ace Group has been
determined based on value in use calculation. Such
calculation is based on 1) profit forecast prepared by Million
Ace Group’s management covering a five year period
and 2) a discount rate of 15.6% per annum which reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money
and the credit risk specific to the cash-generating unit.
The cash flows beyond 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based
on the relevant industry growth forecast and does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the relevant
industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are related to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales with a compound
average growth rate of 3% and stable gross margin, such
estimation is based on the CGU’s past performance and its
management’s expectations for the market development.
The management believes that any reasonable possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of Million Ace Group to exceed
aggregate recoverable amount of Million Ace Group.

Based on the valuation report issued by Asset Appraisal,
the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount
of Million Ace Group and no impairment charge was
necessary.

Neo Telemedia Limited P B EEFEEBERL A
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FHEAMETE et BEHATNREN S
ERERE . AFE R ATEA - k2) &
F15.6%MITH X (KRR B THHE R
EXRREENFGEARRESELEM
MEFEEERR)ME 6FULEZRE
I EFR3%M IR TE I & Rl - 2B &
RRBAABERERIER - B BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ - =

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Hughes China Group

The recoverable amount of Hughes China Group has
been determined based on value in use calculation. Such
calculation is based on 1) profit forecast prepared by
Hughes China Group’s management covering a five year
period and 2) a discount rate of 19.69% (2014: 28.31%)
per annum which reflects current market assessment of
the time value of money and the credit risk specific to
the cash-generating unit. The cash flows beyond 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2014: 3%)
growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecast and does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the relevant industry. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations related
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales with a compound average growth rate of
16.91% (2014: 18.10%) and stable gross margin, such
estimation is based on the CGU’s past performance and its
management’s expectations for the market development.
The management believes that any reasonable possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of Hughes China Group to
exceed aggregate recoverable amount of Hughes China
Group.

Based on the valuation report issued by Greater China
Appraisal Limited (2014: Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited),
the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount
of Hughes China Group and no impairment charge was
necessary (2014: impairment loss of HK$205,435,000).

21.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

21.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Hughes China Group (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the two major
projects, namely “X #th 2" and “& & &”, which the Hughes
China Group had been working on since previous financial
period, had not been carried out as originally scheduled
due to the continuous delay in obtaining funding by
HughesNet China Company Limited (4K 27 48 4% & fi7 &
[®A 7)) (‘HughesNet China”), a subsidiary that is 45%
indirectly owned by the Company and the operating entity
of Hughes China Group, from its shareholders for the two
projects. As a result, the Group was not able to develop
the business of Hughes China Group as originally planned
and its profitability has been adversely impacted. Based
on the valuation report issued by Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited on Hughes China Group, the Group has recognised
an impairment loss of approximately HK$205,435,000 on
goodwill arose on the acquisition of Hughes China Group
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

As the cash generating unit has been reduced to its
recoverable amount of approximately HK$88,641,000, any
adverse change in the assumption used in the calculation
of recoverable amount would result in further impairment
losses.

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHERFEEERA A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ - =

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

P2P Lending platform
Avatar Wealth

The recoverable amount of Avatar Wealth has been
determined based on value in use calculation. Such
calculation is based on 1) profit forecast prepared by Avatar
Wealth’s management covering a five year period and 2) a
discount rate of 17.7% per annum which reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and the
credit risk specific to the cash-generating unit. The cash
flows beyond 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecast and does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the relevant industry. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations related
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales with a compound average growth rate of
14.93% and stable gross margin, such estimation is based
on the CGU’s past performance and its management’s
expectations for the market development. The
management believes that any reasonable possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of Avatar Wealth to exceed aggregate
recoverable amount of Avatar Wealth.

Based on the valuation report issued by Asset Appraisal,
the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount of
Avatar Wealth and no impairment charge was necessary.

R RS RSl

—AFt—A=1+—HIFE

21. Fﬁéﬁ&,mﬂ/ ﬁ?Z/UME/” ul\

(#&)
HEERERKRE &

P2PIEET &
P AL R =
FAENE 2 lRE e EEREFERE
BFFEEMERT - ZetE A ETIRED)
AL ERERE 2 AFEEMTEA - &2)
BF17T7%MNE R (ERBETSHEE
REEKEEENTHARBESELS
NHBFEEERR)ME 5F U EZR
BT FA3%M 5 TE 18 & & HEH o 5238
E%Bﬁﬁﬁ%é%%%ﬁﬂvﬂﬁﬁ
BEOEAEXNRATHERE-FH
BEFELAZEMEEBRRERSR
SREEE AR RRETEHEAERE
A14.93%MTEH HERMIEENEF -
ZEFDREZEeEEEN 2 BT R
BREERERMSEE B 12
B ARNZEBRE T Z2EAAER
REHETIEERMAENE 2 AKRE
BB LE = 2 e A8 o

REZEENFEEMLENGERS W
REMEHRKRE BB BREE ®
EFELRMESH-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

22. INVENTORIES 22. 7 8

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

—F-1f —T-mF

t=A=t+-8 +-A=t-H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTERT FET

Finished goods A o 26,086 1,077
Less: Accumulated impairment W BRHRE (800) (800)
25,286 277

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the directors RBE-_Z—hFET+_A=+—HILF
of the Company conducted a review of the Group’s B RARAREFHASENTEETR
inventories and no impairment loss has been recognised B ERRERERERE (ZE—1
(2014: HK$nil). F:THL) o
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. B 5 AR
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E-1F —FT-F
+=ZA=+-8 +=ZA=+—8”
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Trade receivables E ZREBERR 91,276 932
Less: Accumulated allowance W RER RETEHE
for doubtful debts (41) (41)
91,235 891

Neo Telemedia Limited FEFEEEBBRA A
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AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days
(2014: 90 days) to its trade customers. The following is an
ageing analysis of trade receivables net of accumulated
allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

23. E 5 ENIRI (1)

AEESTHESEFPFHWOA (=F
—M4F:90R)MEEH RIREMRR
BERZAMMEINNZE S RURR (K
RR RAR R B 2 BRI DT AR T ©

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

—E-AfF —T—MF

+ZA=t—-8B +ZA=1+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTER FET

Within 30 days 308K 86,449 333
31 to 60 days 31£60H 4,269 539
61 to 90 days 61£290H 243 —
Over 90 days HBB0H 274 19
91,235 891

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$274,000 (2014: HK$19,000) which are past due at
the end of the reporting period for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered to be recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The ageing of these
receivables is over 90 days (2014: over 90 days).

AEBEE SRR EHESHREH
RERMEAREX A274,0008 7T (ZZ—Y
£ 19,0007 7T ) B 80 B FE UL BR 50 - AN &
By mp R ESEEBELRE HER
EEEEREHITESANE AW
RAEMNMKE -RNEBEWERZELEHET
BEMEIRGD - Z 5 EUER R 2 Rk B
#@O0H (== — U4 : #B3R90H ) °
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R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. B EMERR (@)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not BB ERBENE 5 EIRRR BRI -
impaired:

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—E-FE —F—JuF
+=A=t—-A +tZA=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FET

Overdue by: BH7
Over 90 days B0 H 274 19
Movements in the accumulated allowance for doubtful BHRWEER 2 RIERTBEE

debts for trade receivables:

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—OF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHERT FHAT

At 1 January m—HA—H 41 41

Impairment loss recognised during the year R 2 R BIEE B - =

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 41 41
In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the RIETEE 5 EWER KR B Al Bl R - 7R
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the SEeEZREEEARLEEZARBRER
trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up EHREFGBRBIRER ZEEEZNER
to the end of the report period. The concentration of credit BE) o N EPEAEKBTREE  Alts

risk is limited due to the customer base being large and FiEERRER -

unrelated.

Neo Telemedia Limited FEFEEEBBRA A
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AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Gontinued) 23. BESREMNERER (@

Included in the Group’s accumulated allowance for doubtful RZE—RHFERZZT-—NF+=H
debts of trade receivables are individually impaired trade =+—H ARENEFEUERRER
receivables with an aggregated balances of approximately TR ER SR 441,0008 T2 B @
HK$41,000 as at 31 December 2015 and 2014. The ARELEIERBER RAREER
directors of the Company considered that the Group B BARZEEFRAREEZSA —F K
was unlikely to recover these debts as they were long EEEENEZERE AEEWES
outstanding over one year. The Group does not hold any ZEEARFBEMAE AR

collateral over these balances.

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 24. TERTEIE - & R E A E I

OTHER RECEIVABLES KIE

THE GROUP xE

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—UF
+=ZA=+—-8A +=-A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx F&T
Current assets MENE E
Prepayment At 5RIA 33,060 10,567
Deposits bieeia 21,716 1,781
Other receivables (Note a) H e Y kI8 (M ata) 127,146 29,315
181,922 41,663
Less: accumulated allowance for B H A EUGRIE Rt B
other receivable (26,309) (25,983)
155,613 15,680

Notes: B &

(a)  As at 31 December 2015, other receivables include certain @ RZZE—AF+=—A=+—H HtfE
amounts advanced to independent third parties. In the WHIEBERAN TEIE = 2&TK
opinion of the directors, this amount is fully recoverable and H - BEFRA S AEBEKE - I
no impairment is considered necessary. EERAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 24,

OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movements in the accumulated allowance for doubtful
debts for prepayments, deposits and other receivables:

BT FRIE e M E A E Y
FXIE ()

IR RIE RS R H MR KRR R
RARBREED:

2015 2014

—E-hF —=—MmF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TER FET

At 1 January R—H—H 25,983 =

Exchange realignment b (1,226) (207)
Impairment losses recognised FAERRHEEBE

during the year 1,552 26,190

Written off of impairment losses s F R B E 18
during the year - -
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 26,309 25,983

Included in the accumulated allowance for doubtful debts
are individually impaired receivables with an aggregated
balances of HK$26,309,000 (As at 31 December 2014:
HK$25,983,000) in which the directors of the Company
consider that the Group is unlikely to recover these debts
as they are long outstanding. The directors of the Company
have been taking all reasonable steps such as legal
procedures, to recover those outstanding debts. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Neo Telemedia Limited P B EEFEEBERL A

AR RETEE B B #2454 /526,309,000
BLT(RZE—ENFEF+=ZA=+—8:

25,983,0007% 7T ) 2 18 Bl 5l (B 2 FE W AR
FARREERR BRZEEB R
REE AEESERBIZEER - ARQ
RIESEERMAMBEEERE (AR
B WEIZERERES ANEE &
HZEERFEEAERR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. Me MRS FEEY
The Group
rEH
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—EB-AHF —EF-mF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—8
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash in hand and at bank FERERTES
HKD BT 1,073,366 6,866
RMB ARE 38,356 24,754
usD ETT 225 48
1,111,947 31,668
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and RENREEBYBIEFERRITE

balance with banks.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranged from RZE—RF+-_A=+—H BT
0.001% to 0.46% (As at 31 December 2014: 0.001% to %5 F | RN F0.001%20.46% (A
0.46%) per annum at 31 December 2015. —E—NHFE+ZA=+—H:0001%=

0.46% )&t & °

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies; ARENGERLBAEMEY - A -
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control R 35 A B A ) I GE B R (A1) R A B -
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and EERMNEERRT ARAaBEERA
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Company REETINEZEFHRITHARE LR
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through REAME

authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange business.

:r,://, . i‘;;~ 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. B ZEMRRK
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E-1F —TQmF
+=—A=+-8B +ZA=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FET
Trade payables B ENER 46,093 10,326
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables RRERRILZEZAHZETNE ZEN
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the IRIREBRBR DT L0 T ¢

reporting period:

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

—E-hF —ZE—mEF

+=ZA=+—-8B +=-—A=+-—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHEIT

Within 30 days 30BN 25,561 -

61 to 90 days 61290H 487 10,289

Over 90 days B iE90H 20,045 37

46,093 10,326
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 BEERMNTEHEEHROB (R=F
days (As at 31 December 2014: 90 days). The Group has —ME+=ZA=1+—H:90R) - A& E
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all BRI B RREREBR  BRAEE

payables are settled within the credit timeframe. HIBR & BB RIS 3RIE -

Neo Telemedia Limited FEFEEEBBRA A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 7. B b FEAS FXI8 N B 5T FX A

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—B-afF —E—F
+=ZA=+—-HB +=ZA=+—8
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Other payables H A e~ 308 79,785 59,736
Accruals FEST IR 41,186 25,134
120,971 84,870
Included in other payables as at 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+-_A=+—Hit A&
is a short term loan from an independent third party of ENRENARE —ZBIFE=F 2R
approximately HK$27,320,000 (2014: HK$27,320,000) to HA Y 5 #927,320,0005% 7T ( = — P04 -
finance the acquisition of subsidiaries. 27,320,000/ 7T ) * LA AU ST B A B4R
HES -
The loan is unsecured, denominated in HK$ and carries BERAEEE OB TEHE @ IREE B 7
a fixed interest rate at 1.2% per month and is repayable E12%aT B WHRREHRE —FR
within one year from the end of the reporting period. & -
Included in accruals are interest payable of approximately T AERT AR B EAR A R EITH A
HK$22,635,000 (2014: HK$13,869,000) in relation to the A% 2= 45 48 B8 B9 JE 11 1) 2. £922,635,000/%
convertible notes issued by the Company. 7 (ZZF—MH 4 : 13,869,000/ 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

28.

29.

BANK BORROWINGS 28. SRITIE K
2015 2014
—E-RF — M4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Bank borrowings repayable: FEEBIRITETR:
Within one year or on demand —FRHREREEER 26,271 -
At 31 December 2015, the bank borrowings of —E-RAFTZA=T+—H RITEX
approximately HK$26,271,000 (2014: nil) are denominated %’926,271 L0008 7T (Z & — M4 : /%) A
in RMB and carry fixed interest at 5.52% per annum (2014: ARBEHE  REEFHEL52% (—F
nil) and are repayable within one year from the end of the —POF - E)FHE - W R HRE RS —
reporting period. FAERE-
The Group’s banking facilites amounting to approximately AEE Z IR1TRE #935,808,000/8 7T (=
HK$35,808,000 (2014: nil), of which approximately T-FE) RNBEBHAREHAL
HK$26,271,000 (2014: nil) had been utilised as at the end 26,271,000 L (ZF —MF: &) K
of the reporting period, are secured by the pledge of certain SEZRITRMETUARRRIZEERRE
properties of a company substantially owned by Mr. Lie, a WEEBEHRBE 2 —MRARZETYE
substantial shareholder of the Company. TEHRELR -
CONVERTIBLE NOTES 29. AIR R IE
CONVERTIBLE NOTES DUE 2016 —E-ARFIHzURBRERE
(“CN 2016”) (F_g—/\ﬁiUEQZ—J@Hﬁ:—,‘—E
B1)

On 5 April 2013, the Company issued convertible notes
with a nominal value of HK$160,000,000 due on 5 April
2016. Each convertible note carries interest at 7% per
annum payable semi-annually in arrears with the first
interest payment due on 5 October 2013 and the last
interest payment is due on 5 April 2016. The CN 2016
entitles holders to convert the notes into new ordinary
shares of the Company at a conversion price, subject to
adjustment, of HK$2.5 per share during the period from
5 April 2013 to 31 March 2016. If the CN 2016 have not
been converted, they will be redeemed at par on 5 April
2016.

Neo Telemedia Limited P B EEFEBER LA

RZE—Z=ZFNAARH  ARAA)ELT
R-ZE—AFMNARRIBrEAEBEAS
160,000,000/ 7T 2 Al #A AR T2 4% - & A #2
xﬂﬁﬁz%’ru??%ﬁ% HEFIRE

F—HANER_T—=F+AEAH
ilj,ﬁsﬁ RiE— Hﬁ%UEHIJﬁA—%f—/\iE
BHREHBEE —ZT—RNFHH 7 Al # %
SEETHERAEAEN IR_Z—=
FNMARBE-_ETE—"F=A=+—H
HIR AR ESR2.58 T (7] FHEE) B
ERERRBANTZHEBR -MEZ
T NFHHZIRBREEILAER
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

CONVERTIBLE NOTES DUE 2016
(“CN 2016”) (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the conversion
price has been adjusted to HK$1.10 per share following the
bonus issue (Note 31(f)) and open offer (Note 31(h)) of the
Company’s shares.

The CN 2016 is not redeemable at the option of note-
holders. In addition, the Company has the right to redeem
any portion of the CN 2016 at its principal amount at any
time prior to the maturity date.

The CN 2016 contains three components, liability,
redemption option derivative and equity component. The
equity element is presented in equity heading “convertible
notes reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 11.29% per annum. The redemption option
derivative is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

Upon the issue of the CN 2016, an amount of
HK$138,627,000, HK$6,206,000 and HK$7,131,000 were
recognised as liability, derivative financial asset and equity,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no redemption
of the CN 2016 was made by the Company (2014: Nil).
At 31 December 2015, carrying amount of CN 2016
of approximately HK$157,364,000 (principal amount
of HK$160,000,000) remained outstanding (2014:
HK$148,768,000).

29. AR RE ()

NFEHzTRREE
U E-ARERHzTRKRE

%Dun

HE-_ZT—AF+=-A=*1— Emiﬁ
%ﬁﬂqh¥ﬁ<W?mm> NHEE
(BHFEES1(h) ) AR AR D% BIRER A
Eéﬁﬁmm@no

TE-RFHHZ A BRERBEAA IR
ﬁhﬁAm%@%@wwk$Aﬂﬁ%
REHAZABEREZASERN —F—X
FRH 2z TR RR 2 ERIEMD

ZE-AFEHHZAIMRERREAE
FECIRIEEITA T B R =317 - e
k=2 R [T RREREE] -
BEBMDHOERNEBIEF11.20% &
EIRERTETADNRAFEFE A
TEZEHNIEEER -

RBETZE—AFHH2TBRRER
1%+ 138,627,000/% JT * 6,206,000/ 7T &
7,131,000 L2 D RIERASEE
MTESREEM#ERS-

REBEZZT—AF+_A=+—HIEHF
07N ﬂTﬁﬂﬂﬁi‘é’@fa —NFRHZ

RREBE(ZTE—NF &) - R=T
—RAF+ZA=1+—H8 ZZT—~FIH
2 IR IR BRI (B 49157,364,000% 7T
(ZA4%8160,000,000/8 70 ) A #E i (=
T —[O4F : 148,768,00076 7T ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE
29. AJ IR (&)

FRATREREN B E B0 REEE
BETETAEMEHFIWNT

29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The movements of the liability component and redemption
option derivative of the convertible notes during the year are
set out below:

Redemption
Liability option
component derivative Total
EEEEE
BERG fTETR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
At 1 January 2014 RZZT—NF
—H—H 142,240 (711) 141,529
Effective interest charged (Note 10) F R 2 B A S
(BfzE10) 17,728 - 17,728
Coupon interest EAEWF AER
accrued and included MEZEEFE
in interest payable (11,200) — (11,200)
Change in fair value of TESMEEZ
derivative financial assets NEEES - 711 711
At 31 December 2014 and R-_T—MF
1 January 2015 +-A=t—HRK
—ZT-h¥—H—H 148,768 - 148,768
Effective interest charged (Note 10) FT R 2 EEFI 8
(F3E10) 17,362 - 17,362
Coupon interest EAEWET AEN
accrued and included FEZREFE
in interest payable (8,766) - (8,766)
Change in fair value of TEERMEEL
derivative financial assets NSRIEE-E)) = = =
At 31 December 2015 R=-ZB-HF
+=ZA=+—H 157,364 - 157,364
The fair values of CN 2016 at 31 December 2014 and at “E-RFIH2UBRBRERER T

—mNFE+—_A=+—HEZ=ZZE—F1F
T+ A=+—B2Z2AFEDERB LG
ERMRZEBBHEL ZMEE-

31 December 2015 are based on valuations carried out on
those dates by independent valuers.
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AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. IRIEFLIA

Detail of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and FHAERRELCHIEABRRAZHFE

movements thereon during the year is as follow: W
Intangible
assets
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2014 R-_ZT—MFE—-—HA—H 41,366
De-consolidation of a subsidiary (Note 35) BUH4R& ABR—RMHE A A (HEE35) (25,040)
Credited to consolidated statement of FTAGEBm R EMEE R K
profit or loss and (MgE11)
other comprehensive income (Note 11) (9,522)
At 31 December 2014 and R-E-NFE+=-A=+—-HEK
1 January 2015 —E—HEF¥—H—H 6,804
Acquisition of Bluesea Mobile Group WHER B B &R B (5E34(a))
(Note 34(a)) 25,237
Acquisition of Million Ace Group Wi Sk & B (FI5E34(c))
(Note 34(c)) 11,509
Credited to consolidated statement of FFAGREEmREMEERER
profit or loss and (HF3E11)
other comprehensive income (Note 11) (6,813)
At 31 December 2015 R=Z—AF+=H=+—H 36,737

Annual Report 2015 —E— R £ £

V4

A\
N

7\,

171

,»7/,{;
=




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 30. IEIERIA ()

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$182,062,000 (As at 31
December 2014: HK$130,281,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Group
did not have any deductible temporary differences. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statement in respect of temporary difference
attributable to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
as the Group is able to control the timing of reversal at the
temporary difference and it is probable that will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Neo Telemedia Limited P B EEFEBER LA

RIEEHR NEBMARB AR EEIE
#9182,062,0008 L (R=ZZE—MHF+=
A =-+—H 130,281,000/ 7t) A A 7
8 AR 25 A1 o B R SR AR 0 ) 7 2 DA TE
B - B EFERIRIE TR IE B EE - A& 18
Sk Al fER B4 8 o

R-—_ZE—HE+_A=+—HBHEK=Z
—MFE+=-—A=+—8 AREBEFEA
BE R = B o R T AT RE G AT HRLE B
ERE A I ERTUR R - S R RX
ER RS R EERERREERIBEE -

REPECEMASHE FEMERR
AE_ZTNF—H—BEREKRAN
M PTEIRH IR S BMTEI - AR A
SEREMEHIE R E AR QR
B WL AR 6 M SRR A A B BB
AR BEEEEREEZRELER
ERIREE MEKEERAETISE
A B R R o
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AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. &
Par value Number of
per share shares Amount
BREE R E B x|
HK$ HK$'000
BT FET
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2014 R-—ZT—MFE—HF—H 0.1 4,000,000,000 400,000
Increase of authorised S TE R AN AN
share capital (note a) (FtEEa) 0.1 6,000,000,000 600,000
At 31 December 2014 and R-E—NF
1 January 2015 +ZA=+—Bk
“E—hF—A—H 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Increase of authorised share capital SRR A (M sEb)
(note b) 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
At 31 December 2015 R-ZZE-1F
+=B=+—H 0.1 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAT:
At 1 January 2014 RZE—F
—H—H 0.1 2,554,920,793 255,492
Placing of shares (note c) TR D (MisEc) 0.1 200,000,000 20,000
At 31 December 2014 and RZT—F
1 January 2015 TZRA=+—HK
—Z—H%—H—H 0.1 2,754,920,793 275,492
Issue of shares on 1 April 2015 (note d) R =—Z—HFMAE—H
BITRD (BiisEd) 0.1 303,000,000 30,300
Exercise of share options (note e) IR R (Hiske) 0.1 20,000,000 2,000
Bonus issue of shares (note f) BATAII (M 5ES) 01  3,077,920,793 307,792
Issue of shares on 11 September 2015 R -ZE—HFHA+—H
(note g) BITR G (FisEg) 0.1 196,721,311 19,672
Open offer of shares (note h) NRAEERD (Hih) 0.1 3,176,281,448 317,628
At 31 December 2015 R-E-HF
+=B=+—H 0.1 9,528,844,345 952,884
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R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

*

Notes:

(@)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on the annual
general meeting dated 17 March 2014, the authorised share
capital was increased to HK$1,000,000,000 divided into
10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on the
extraordinary general meeting dated 26 November
2015, the authorised share capital was increased to
HK$2,000,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each.

Pursuant to a placing agreement entered into with Kingston
Securities Limited dated 15 May 2014, the Company
placed out 200,000,000 new ordinary shares of par value
of HK$0.10 each at HK$0.201 per share to independent
third parties. Net proceeds from such issue amounted
to approximately HK$39,724,000 (after deducting the
placement expenses of approximately HK$476,000), out of
which approximately HK$20,000,000 and HK$19,724,000
were recorded in share capital and share premium
respectively. The placing was completed on 29 May 2014.
The net proceeds were intended to be used for the general
working capital of the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of the agreement dated 30 January
2015 entered into between NEO Mobile Holdings Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and an
independent third party in relation to Guangdong Wei Hai
Xiao Yuan Mobile Network Company Limited* ( <87 &R
FERBERSHMKER D ANHE) ) (the “Agreement”),
the Company issued 303,000,000 ordinary shares on 1 April
2015 upon the completion of transactions contemplated
under the Agreement. The fair value of the ordinary shares
issued was determined by the available published price of
HK$0.425 each at the completion date of the acquisition on
1 April 2015.

During the period, the Company issued 20,000,000 ordinary
shares of par value of HK$0.10 at the exercise price of
HK$0.628 per ordinary share upon exercise of the share
options granted by the Company.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution duly passed at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 5 June 2015, a
bonus issue of 3,077,920,793 new shares were issued and
credited as fully paid at par by way of capitalisation of an
appropriate amount in the share premium account of the
Company on 19 June 2015.

for identification purpose only
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32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

Pursuant to the terms of the agreement dated 14 August
2015 between NEO Cloud Computing Holdings Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and an
independent third party in relation to the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of Milion Ace Limited, the
Company issued 196,721,311 ordinary shares of par value
of HK$0.10 each on 11 September 2015 as the acquisition
consideration. The fair value of the ordinary shares issued
was determined by the available published price of HK$0.66
each at the completion date of the acquisition on 11
September 2015.

On 30 December 2015, the Company completed an open
offer of 3,176,281,448 shares at a subscription price of
HK$0.38 per offer share on the basis of one open offer
share for every two shares held on 7 December 2015.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a annual general
meeting of the Company held on 19 December 2012,
a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company.

The previous share option scheme of the Company (the
“Old Share Option Scheme”) was expired on 21 July
2012, no further options can be granted under the Old
Share Option Scheme thereafter. All outstanding share
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme
remained outstanding until they lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Old Share Option Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 32. IR EET 2 ()

The Company operates the New Share Option Scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the New Share
Option Scheme include the Company’s directors (including
independent non-executive directors), other employees
of the Group, and suppliers of goods or services to the
Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the New Share
Option Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the New Share
Option Scheme within any 12 month period is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after a
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later
than 10 years from the date of the offer of the share options
or the expiry date of the New Share Option Scheme, if
earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s share for
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

RABAITH BB ETE S EHAKE
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BELEFR-FEREFEZABRS
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B ATTERBE R R 1T 2 &= IR B
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1% » #E— TR OEFBRZ LR ZBR
B HRERRERRAE Ltk
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MR - AR A ERRBRERENE
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HIMERETE  YaESR THBRRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Gontinued) 32. BhixtERT 2 ()
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to BRI AR T H A AR B 3
dividends or to vote at shareholder’s meeting. The following RERAE EREZERN - FA - ARFIR
table discloses details of the Company’s share option in BT a7 2 MR EF B ER TR

issue under the Scheme during the year:

Number of share options
BREHE
At
Exercise  Outstanding 31 December
price per at Lapsed 2014 and Exercised  Adjustment  Adjustment At
Name of category share 1 January during 1 January during for bonus for open 31 December
of participant Date of grant  Exercise period (note) 2014 the year 2015 the year issue offer 2015
R=2-mE
+=h
RZB-IF =t-BR R-Z-1F
BRTEE -B-H “E-1f RER AR NRRE +=h
SRERRER RUBH fii 2 (GES HRTE RERER -A-H % iokeES E:ES Er=Ff
Directors 8.4.2011 8.4.2011 10 1.070 15,000,000 (15,000,000 - - - - -
Bz 7.4.2021
34.2013 34201310 0.275 34,000,000  (14,000,0000 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 5,600,000 45,600,000
242018
49,000,000  (29,000,0000 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 5,600,000 45,600,000
Employee and others ~ 8.4.2011 8.4.2011t0 0469 35,000,000  (32,000,000) 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 840,000 6,840,000
EEREM 7.4.2021
342013 34201310 0.275 60,000,000  (10,000,000) 50,000,000  (20,000,000) 30,000,000 8,400,000 68,400,000
242018
16.5.2013 16.5.2013 to 0.275 20,000,000  (20,000,000) - - - - -
15.5.2018

115,000,000  (62,000,000) 53,000,000  (20,000,000) 33,000,000 9,240,000 75,240,000

Total 164,000,000 (91,000,000 73,000,000  (20,000,000) 53,000,000 14,840,000 120,840,000

@t

Weighted average 0.732 0.856 0.646 0.628 0.327 0.286 0.286

exercise price (HKS)

MELHTEE (ER)

Note: the exercise prices of the share options have been adjusted MeE: BREZTEEESRIIN=-F
for bonus issue and open offer that took place on 19 June —AF~NA+NABR=ZZ—2F
2015 and 30 December 2015 respectively. T A=+ HETHARETEA

FREEMmMELARE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 32. IR EET 2 ()

The fair values of options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme measured at the date of grant during
the period ended 31 December 2013 was approximately
HK$30,490,000. The following significant assumptions
were used to derived the fair value using the Binomial

BE—_Z—=F+-A=+—HIHH"
R I B AR A 5T B % 2 B AR P IR
B 85t = 2 A F{E#) A30,490,00078 7T ©
AT T A Z BB e R EEE N
EAFERNRAZEERBK:

Option Pricing Model:

16 May 3 April
2013 2013
Total number of share option 20,000,000 94,000,000
Option value HK$0.2045 HK$0.2809
Option life 5 years 5 years
Expected Tenor 5 years 5 years
Exercise price HK$0.628  HK$0.628
Stock price at the date
of grant HK$0.460  HK$0.600
Expected volatility 87.11% 88.00%
Risk-free rate 0.427% 0.525%

Expected volatility was reference to Bloomberg calculated

—E-—=f ZZT—=f%f

AA+AH mMA=H
g H 20,000,000 94,000,000
EREER 0.20457% 7T 0.28097% 7T
BREFH 5% 5E
FREFH 5% 5%
110 E 0.628%7C  0.628% 7T
RELBZRE

046087t  0.600%87T
THR R 87.11% 88.00%
2 o e 1 0.427% 0.525%

BHRED2BREZBEMAETELR

from the weighted average historical volatility of weekly
return of share price of comparable companies and the
Company. Risk-free rate represents the yields to maturity
of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note with respective
terms to maturity as at the share options granted date.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects
of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considers.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
issued 20,000,000 ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.1
at the exercise price of HK$0.628 per ordinary share upon
exercise of the share options (2014 nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

33. WARRANTS

On 5 November 2012, the Company entered into warrant
subscription agreements with six independent third
parties (“Group A Subscribers”), pursuant to which
the Company agreed to issue and Group A Subscribers
agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of 200,000,000
unlisted warrants at an issue price of HK$0.01 per warrant
(“Warrants (A)"). Each of Warrants (A) carries the right
to subscribe for one new share of the Company at the
initial exercise price of HK$0.54 per share (subject to
adjustment) during a period of two years commencing from
(and inclusive of) 5 December 2012, the date of issue of
Warrants (A).

On 3 December 2012, the Company entered into warrant
subscription agreements with another six independent
third parties (‘Group B Subscribers”), pursuant to which
the Company agreed to issue and Group B Subscribers
agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of 254,000,000
unlisted warrants at an issue price of HK$0.05 per warrant
(“Warrants (B)”). Each of Warrants (B) carries the right
to subscribe for one new share of the Company at the
initial exercise price of HK$0.59 per share (subject to
adjustment) during a period of two years commencing from
(and inclusive of) 21 December 2012, the date of issue of
Warrants (B).

Net proceeds from these issue amounted to approximately
HK$14,600,000 (after deducting the related expenses
of approximately HK$100,000) were recorded in warrant
reserve.

Warrants (A) and Warrants (B) lapsed on 4 December
2014 and 20 December 2014 respectively, and the warrant
reserve was released accordingly.

33.

R AL R
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AR E R4 5200,000,00017 IE LR
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INRBEE=77 (IBEARBAL) T
RREFRB R Bl ARFRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(A) ACQUISITION OF BLUESEA MOBILE
GROUP

On 1 April 2015, the Group acquired the 100% equity
interest in BRENEREERABR A A (Guangdong
Bluesea Mobile Development Ltd Co.*) (‘Bluesea
Mobile”) through structured contracts with a total
consideration at fair value of HK$128,775,000.
Bluesea Mobile and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Bluesea Mobile Group”) is principally
engaged in the operation of a mobile and Internet
commercial WIFI platform and a cross-border
e-commerce platform. And through its 70% owned
subsidiary ERM L EZETZREEEER A A
(Guangdong Avatar Wealth Investment Management

34. WEEHT B 2 A

WEREBEHEH

R_ZE—RAFNA—B AEEE
BEBEAHNBERENEREE
BRERAR([FEBH]) 2K
7 R EI%R A T{E /128,775,000
B -BERERENE AR (4
BE HSBHEE]) EZHEE
ERBEGBABMAWFTA RE
BETEETE BERDHEES
BEBEBT0%RINE A RIERMA
ENEREAEEARAT ([MAE
BE ) I EE [ A A A P2P) G
BEYa¥i-

Co., Ltd*) (“Avatar Wealth”), Bluesea Mobile Group
also operates a peer to peer (P2P) lending platform

business.
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities Fr R #R EERBE 2 A FE
acquired and the goodwill arising are as follows: REEZEHBET:
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment ER NS e 1,401
Intangible assets BLEE 100,947
Inventory lE3= 849
Trade receivables B 5 AR 3,980
Other receivables H At e YR IE 1,055
Cash and cash equivalents Re KRS EEY 2,015
Trade payables B 5 R RR (389)
Other payables H b 3008 917)
Deferred taxation BRI (25,237)
Non-controlling interest IR = (6,079)
Total identifiable net assets acquired Fri il R F B EL R 78,625
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEE EmE 50,150
128,775

* for identification purpose only
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(A) ACQUISITION OF BLUESEA MOBILE
GROUP (continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Bluesea Mobile
Group because the cost of acquisition included
a control premium, in addition, the consideration
paid for the acquisition effectively included amounts
in relation to the benefit of expected synergies,
revenue growth, future market development and
the assembled workforce of Bluesea Mobile Group.
These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition
criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purpose.

The consideration of the acquisition is satisfied by
way of allotment and issue of 303,000,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company. The fair value of the
ordinary shares issued was determined by referring to

34. WHEM B A 7] (&)

(A) WEREBHEE #)

AR U IE R AN B R R s (B - B
BREBHREELRHE UL
ENBBEREEREEARENY
RIZEFE - WA R - KRR T IHER
EEBBEHEENES S HHR
HeEMETHEFBORER
RREEIL NS A #B BT EE
B e SRR A o

WiEFTEL M BRI SR
5B ey m &R -

WERENEZE RZETARA
303,000,000/ %7 & 8 iz 8 77 = 32
T T MR ATELRE
ZE—AFMNA—BZAMERE

the published price of HK$0.425 per share at 1 April [%0.425/8 JLEE JE °
2015.
HK$ 000
AT
Net Cash outflow arising WEBEEZRSRHETFE
on acquisition
Consideration paid in cash BENRERE =
Less: Cash and cash equivalent BT ER e MR e EBYWEH
balances acquired 2,015
2,015

Acquisition related costs amounting to HK$406,000
have been excluded from the cost of acquisition and
have been recognised directly as an expense in the
year and included in the “administrative and other
expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Uz B2 48 B 5K 45406,000/% T E B I
BRARSIG WEEERRAT
WX Rt AGZEBEERT [1TH
REMAST R
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(A) ACQUISITION OF BLUESEA MOBILE
GROUP (continued)

Included in the loss for the year is profit
of HK$42,038,000 attributable to Bluesea
Mobile Group. Revenue for the year includes
HK$162,056,000 attributable to Bluesea Mobile
Group.

(B) ACQUISITION OF CNCC LOGISTICS

On 25 June 2015, the Group acquired 43% of
the entire equity interest of A& REHEBR A
Al (CNCC Logistics Equipment Co., Ltd*) (‘CNCC
Logistics”) at a consideration of HK$3,505,000.
CNCC logistics is principally engaged in the design,
manufacture and sale of logistics equipment, such
as containers, road transportation vehicles and
emergency rescue equipment, and the provision of
relevant technical advisory services.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired and the goodwill arising are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Inventory FE

34. WEEMT B R A (8

(A)

(B)

Other receivables H b & W |
Cash and cash equivalents bR &iﬁﬁﬁﬁqﬂ@
Other payables H b & 5 30T
Non-controlling interest JETE Hx’f&ﬁn

Total identifiable net assets acquired

The consideration of the acquisition is satisfied by
cash consideration of RMB2,765,000.

* for identification purpose only

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHERFEEERA A

P U B R] 3B B B EE AR R

WEFSEHEE (@

BY /& 7% B) 5= B FE {h )i F1/42,038,000
BT AFAEE - FRBARE
BT 8% B) & B FE {h #9162,056,000
BT ©

WP EYR
RZZ—RF~A=-+HBA &%
EiER =R EaR AR ([
SYR) 2 BRENI3% RER
3,505,000 7T c REYIREER S

MEBHER  REREE A
MERM - ERERTIARSHH
1 RIBE AR E AR o

PR R BB EER BB 2 AVE
MRELXZEEMT:

HK$'000
TET
146

5

51
3,024
(115)
394

3,505

U B& R (B LA A R #52,765,0007T 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(B)

(€)

ACQUISITION OF CNCC LOGISTICS
(Continued)

34. WEEHT B 2 A

Al ()

(B) WEHREYR (@)

HK$ 000
T
Net Cash outflow arising WBEE2RESRHEFE
on acquisition

Consideration paid in cash BENRERE (3,505)

Less: Cash and cash equivalent BT ER e MR e EEBYEH
balances acquired 3,024
(481)

Acquisition related costs amounting to HK$50,000
have been excluded from the cost of acquisition and
have been recognised directly as an expense in the
year and included in the “administrative and other
expenses” line item in the condensed consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Included in the loss for the period is profit of
HK$702,000 attributable to CNCC Logistics.
Revenue for the year includes HK$8,255,000
attributable to CNCC Logjistics.

ACQUISITION OF MILLION ACE
GROUP

On 11 September 2015, the Group acquired the
100% equity interest in Million Ace Limited with a total
consideration at fair value of HK$129,836,000. Million
Ace Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “Million Ace Group”) is principally engaged in
the trading of mobile phones and tablets.

Y B 18 RE A A50,0008 7T 2 B W
R Gk - WE BEERR/FA
A Rt ABBREARERZ (1T
BN EAMFE] A

FR & WD FE A & F 702,000/ T T
ABAEE - FRBABEFEYD
i FE 15 898,255,000/ T °

C) WEBMEE

RZZ—RFNLA+—B F&EH
WHEEKEE2BRE REA
129,836,000/ 7L 2 A FE - B KX
SEERARRENB AR (518
[BERER])NEFHANFRE K
B5-

>

\
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 34. WEEHKTE A~ 7] ()
(Continued)
(C) ACQUISITION OF MILLION ACE (C) WEEBREH @)
GROUP (continued)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities FTKEE R BRI EE KRB R 2 2 FE
acquired and the goodwill arising are as follows: REEZEHBNT:
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment ER YN 30
Intangible assets BREE 69,749
Inventory & 24,804
Trade receivables B 5 W R 5,631
Prepayments and other receivables Ta k1B M H At e M k1B 13,428
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEYD 2,733
Trade payables 2 5 RT (14,618)
Other payables H AT RUE (24,246)
Temporary receipts A (555)
Tax payable eI (799)
Deferred tax liabilities BEHRBAEE (11,509)
Total identifiable net assets acquired FT Bl BRI F B LR 64,648
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEEZEE 65,188
129,836
Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Million Ace Group R U BB A AN B FE AL I M (B - T
because the cost of acquisition included a control WHEKNEBEERZ - LIN B
premium, in addition, the consideration paid for the HNBEREERBEA EERRE
acquisition effectively included amounts in relation to R WA R RRTIHEE D
the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, HRBNEKEBHNES S IR
future market development, distribution channels and HeZEMmTHEESHAER
the assembled workforce of Milion Ace Group. These RARELNFE A #MAELEE
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill O W SRR 2E o
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is WHEFTE AN EEAH TS

expected to be deductible for tax purpose. 75 B A& R o

Neo Telemedia Limited P B EEFEEBERL A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(C) ACQUISITION OF MILLION ACE
GROUP (continued)

The consideration of the acquisition is satisfied by
way of allotment and issue of 196,721,311 new
ordinary shares of the Company. The fair value of the
ordinary shares issued was determined by referring

34. WHEM B A 7] (&)

(C) WIBERER @)

WERENEZEREITARQF
196,721,311 ¥ L @R A 75 A\
FoTBTERARMNATELRE
ZE-RFNAA+—RAZAMER

to the published price of HK$0.66 per share at 11 FH0.66/8 TLEE °
September 2015.
HK$’000
FAT
Net Cash outflow arising WBEEZRESRHEFE
on acquisition
Consideration paid in cash BENRERE =
Less: Cash and cash equivalent BT ER e MR e SEYEH
balances acquired 2,733
2,733

Acquisition related costs amounting to HK$310,000
have been excluded from the cost of acquisition and
have been recognised directly as an expense in the
year and included in the “administrative and other
expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Included in the loss for the year is profit of
HK$6,198,000 attributable to Million Ace Group.
Revenue for the year includes HK$1,730,654,000
attributable to Million Ace Group.

Uit % 18 B8 B A8310,00078 T E B
BRATHIG YEEERERSF
WA R AGZERERT [T
KREMFEZIA-

& Ak & B JE b & 416,198,000/ 7T
SFAFAEE - FAKRABIEEK
£ [E fE (R #91,730,654,00058 JT °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(C) ACQUISITION OF MILLION ACE

GROUP (continued)

Had the acquisition of Bluesea Mobile Group, CNCC
Logistics and Million Ace Group been effected at the
beginning of the year, the total amount of revenue
of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 would have been HK$7,609,197,000, and the
amount of the profit for the year would have been
HK$143,892,000. The proforma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed at the beginning of
the year, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of
the Group had the above mentioned subsidiaries
been acquired at the beginning of the year, the
directors calculated depreciation and amortisation
of plant and equipment based on the recognised
amounts of plant and equipment at the date of the
acquisition.

35. DE-CONSOLIDATION OF A SUBSIDIARY

As mentioned in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s subsidiary & B £ & 49 48 &l
B (dEm) AR 2D E) has been de-consolidated from the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as from 1
January 2014.

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHERFEEERA A

34. WEEMT B R A (8

(C) WIBERER @)

W RSB R E R ER &
BREENFIEETT AEEH
E_E-—RF+-_A=+—HItHF
E & A 85815 57,609,197,000
PIT - M s F Al A&143,892,000
BT -EEEREHKARE X
AR 7T fiki W S 55 T A 4 7] T K B AR
%l%ﬁ?@%*ﬂ%%k&%

fief - 2t B/ 2 B A AR - A
EEREBEEAKENHEEI WA
Koot B TOAR B R B B st 0 WU
BN RSB ERE LRE
T8 B 3H o

35. BUHARE ABR—EMHE R A

n

eV BHRRMEIME 8 —F—0

F-A—REAKENHNERRERE
AR (L) BER AR BH AR
SENRAPBERE -
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AR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

35. DE-CONSOLIDATION OF A SUBSIDIARY  35. BUB#R& AR —EMI B A A

(Continued) (&)
Details of the aggregate net assets of the abovementioned LB R RRE EFENFIEE
subsidiary are set out below: ™~
HK$ 000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment Y - B K& 29,207
Goodwil B 67,648
Intangible assets | EE 100,160
Trade receivables E 5 REBER R 2,533
Prepayments, deposits and TERTSRIR - S R H Ath FE G IR
other receivables 2,685
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 8,368
Other payables and accruals H b e~ 5B R ERT5IR (545)
Deferred taxation R E TR IE (25,040)
184,916
Translation reserve PE W (1 (355)
Non-controlling interests JEE R S (10,537)
Net loss on de-consolidation of BUB&R A AR—RNEB AR 2 BB FE
a subsidiary 174,024
Analysis of net outflow of cash BUB# & AR—HMBARIELER
and cash equivalents arising from RekBAFEMRLFRELN
de-consolidation of a subsidiary 8,368
Reference is made to the announcements of the Company ZIRMARRBHA T —NF+=A
dated 19 December 2014 and 20 March 2015, the TAEBRZZE-—RF=A-+HZAMH"
abovementioned subsidiary has several legal proceedings FMERRFES T EEETHIER
undergoing. As at the date of this report, the outcome AR e ARG BH AR FDNERD
of the legal proceedings remained uncertain. As the THETE - A Ll if B A R BUEL S
abovementioned subsidiary has been de-consolidated, R EERA AEFAEISHEESH
the Directors considered the legal proceedings will not BmMAEKEETE -
have any adverse impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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R E

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

35.

306.

DE-CONSOLIDATION OF A SUBSIDIARY 35. BUH#A & ABR—MEME A 7
(Continued) (&)
However, after taking into the consideration of i) the SNT + R i) BB AT S Ll i B A
factors leading to the de-consolidation of abovementioned AIBVBE SR A M HRER TR E AKRK
subsidiary as stated in Note 3 to the consolidated financial = Rii) EUE R R AB B EE M
statements; and ii) the uncertainties brought by the EREC AT EMBET ARR T M
abovementioned legal proceedings, the management has M (41 M EREREREELN
decided to fully write off the investment cost of CERNET Wifi % & i A163,204,0007% 7T ©
Group amounting to HK$163,204,000 as included in the
statement of financial position of the Company (Note 41).
OPERATING LEASES 36. K=HE
THE GROUP AS LESSEE AEBEAEEA
Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases in FARBRAEZEYELEHESTH
respect of office premises during the year amounting to IR & #55,810,0008 7T (—Z— M
approximately HK$5,810,000 (2014: HK$6,118,000). 4 16,118,000 7T) °
Operating lease payments represent rentals payables by REHERBEAEEREETHAE
the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are MERMSHES BHE_T—AF+=
negotiated for a term of two years (2014: two years) with A=+—HBLFE #HANHBEHEAR
a fixed rentals during the year ended 31 December 2015. ME(ZE—NF :WME)  HEETE -
None of the leases included contingent rentals and terms of EYAAEEFHOELYRERFHET LR
renewal were established in the leases. A ©
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RERERR AEBERENUAT A EE
commitments for future minimum lease payments under HN A HESE BN R R RERS
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: Y A IE
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E-hfF —E-mE
+=Z—A=+-8 +=ZA=+—H”
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Within one year —FR 1,816 3,673
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEZEZERF
(BEERME) 4 1,560
1,820 581238

Neo Telemedia Limited P B EEFEEBERL A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

*

B INHEHE

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—B-afF —T-mEF
+=A=t—-A +tZA=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Commitments contracted for but not BRANTEERGZA B
provided in the consolidated financial HE 2 BRI AEREE
statements in respect of P
- Acquisition of property, —WEME BE R
plant and equipment B - 6,639
— Capital contribution to an associate —F—EEERAREE
(Note) (Fe3%) 9,549 =
Note: P 3E -

On 24 April 2015, EREERI K EE AR A 7 (Guangdong
Bluesea Technology Development Company Limited)*
(“Guangdong Bluesea Technology”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a joint venture agreement (the
“JV agreement”) with IR RMEEEHEEEXEREBRA
Al (Shandong Inspur Cloud Computing Industry Investment
Company Limited)* (“Inspur Cloud Computing”) pursuant to
which Guangdong Bluesea Technology and Inspur Cloud
Computing agreed to establish a joint venture (the “JV Company”)
to mainly engage in the applications of cloud computing and
e-commerce businesses. Pursuant to the JV agreement, the
amount of registered share capital of the JV Company shall be
RMB20,000,000 while Inspur Cloud Computing shall account
for a capital contribution of RMB12,000,000 and Guangdong
Bluesea Technology shall account for a capital contribution of
RMB8,000,000. Upon the completion of the capital contribution of
the parties, the JV Company shall be owned as to 60% by Inspur
Cloud Computing and 40% by Guangdong Bluesea Technology
and is accounted for as an associate to the Group.

for identification purpose only

MR-_E—AFENA-+HE EREFRK
ZRARAR ([EREVERE]  ARRZE
EMBAR) BILERAEEEAEEERE
ERAR (DRMEAE I 6 &R ([6
BEpal) B BEREDE R RORBER
BREKY—MAERR ([AERA]) £
EREEAEERARETASZEL -RIE
GEME GEARZEMBREABAEARK
20,000,0007T ' HF R BEFH B RBARE
12,000,000t & & R B S RBHE 1§ R A R
8,000,0007T ° 5] 405 ek T & 1% - & B R EIH
BRBMEERERR SRS I HEE60%
K40% W ABRSIEARE B 2 Bt & R A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

38. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 38. FEIHBEERH

The Group had the following major non-cash transactions AEBRBE_Z—HF+_A=1+—
during the year ended 31 December 2015: HIEFEABUTEZHBREZSH:
(@ As set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial (@) ARSI IS RER MY FES4FTEL - AN

statements, the Company issued 303,000,000 and
196,721,311 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at the
prices of HK$0.425 and HK$0.66, respectively, as the
acquisition considerations for Bluesea Mobile Group
and Million Ace Group.

(b) As set out in note 31(f), the Company issued
3,077,920,793 ordinary shares on 19 June 2015
at HK$0.10 each by way of capitalisation of an
appropriate amount in the share premium account of
the Company.

(c) Upon the completion of the Open Offer, the
shareholder loan of HK$100,000,000 was capitalised
to settle the subscription of 263,157,894 offer shares
by Mr. Lie. For details, please refer to prospectus of
the Company dated 8 December 2015.

A A5 Bl ¥z 3 §%0.4257% T }0.66
7 70 2 {8 #% % 77303,000,0008% &
196,721,311 R B R EE0.10/E 7T
ZEBRIESBBENERES SE R
EXREEZRE-

AT 1M R ARIR=E
—REFANATHALBEEBREARLAR
RARMDEERR 2 EESBET
3,077,920, 793X &R E{E0.10% 7T
ZEBK-

RARBEEZETKE BHRREER
100,000,000/ T #EVEE RN IAE &
| %5 4 51263,157,894 % 2 & i% 19
XMZREFRE-BRAFE F2
MARRIHEA -_ZT—AHF+_A
NAZEEER-

e\

v
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

SR A —
39. SUBSIDIARIES 39. B~ Al
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December FEMBRAAR-_ZE—AF+=A
2015 are as follows: =t —HZFHERDNT:
Place of
incorporation Nominal value of Normal value of Attributable equity
Class of and kind of authorised paid up issued interests attributable
Name of subsidiary shares held legal entity share capital share capital to the Company Principal activities
AR L 4 2 % BEEN
WEARER FERGEN  AERRER EERAEE BRIRAEE AARELER TEER
Directly Indirectly
E# 4
HBFERELH Ordinary PRC, limited liability RMB500,000 RMB500,000 - 70%  Investment consultancy
BRAR company
EaR HE EREEAR AR 500,000 AR 500,000 - 0%  RERH
HRA=MLR T Ordinary PRG, limited liability RMB11,000,000 RMB11,000,000 - 511%  Design and production of traffic
REEARA company signboards and computer

graphics, advertissments and

signal systems equipment
TR PEEREMLRA  AR¥11,000000m  ARH11,000,0007 - 511%  R@ETR THEXESRE

FREGRENRREUE

BERKEBERI Ordinary PRC, limited liabilty RMB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Sale of telecommunication
BRAR company products and services
Lak FE EREMAR  ARE10000000m  AK%10,000,0007 - 100%  HESAERRES
ERER— @R Ordinary PRC, limited liability RMB3,980,000 RMB3,980,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BRAR company
L@k 1B FRELAR AR %3,980,0007T AR #3,980,0007T - 100%  REER
ERESAENR Ordinary PRC, limited liabilty RMB40,000,000 RMB40,000,000 - 75%  Provision of personal broadband
(R ERAT company access services
TR PE BEREAAR  AR¥40000000m  AR¥40,000,0007 - 75%  REEAREEARS
REABLEEEBERAR  Ordinary PRC, limited liabilty RMB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000 = 45%  Sale of telecommunication
company products and services
Lak FE EREMAR  ARE10000000T  AK%10,000,0007T - 45%  HESAERRES
R HERES Ordinary PRC, limited liability RMB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000 - 45%  Provision of VSAT
ZEEARA A company communication services
Lak PE AREMAR  AR¥10000000T  AR¥10,000,0007 - 45%  REVSATERRHS
ERESBHERE Ordinary PRC, limited liability RMB50,000,000 RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Operation of commercial WIFI
EBAF (hote 1,2) company platform, provision of
value-added
telecommunication services
EREEBHEE Lk FE BREFAR AK#50,000000t  AK¥50,000,00070 - 100%  EEMEWATA RIEH
BRAR (K1 k2) BEEARYE

‘,/'7
Annual Report 2015 —E— R £ £

191

AN




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R E

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

39. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. I8 A7l &)
Place of
incorporation Nominal value of Normal value of Attributable equity
Class of and kind of authorised paid up issued interests attributable
Name of subsidiary shares held legal entity share capital share capital to the Company Principal activities
SRR LEER EHEN
WEARER FsRAER  EEERER EERFEE BRTRAEE ARFEEES TEER
Directly Indirectly
HE B

ERMAEHZREERE  Ordinary PRC, limited liability RMB100,000,000 RMB9,900,000 - 70%  Operation of P2P lending
EBAE (hote 1,2 company platform busingss

ERMLENERAEE LAk FE BREMAR  AKE100,000000m  AK9,900,0007T - 70%  SEPPEETA%HK
BRAR (K1 k2)

REMTEEERAR  Ordinary PRC, limited liability RMB50,000,000 RMB3,000,000 = 43%  Design, manufacture and sale of
(note 1, 2) company logistics equipment

PEMRERERAR  EAER RE BEREAAR  ARM50,000,000 AR 3,000,000 - 43%  DRRENRE REREE
(W1 R2)

AITZLLREHSE  Ordinary PRC, limited libility RMB30,000,000 RMB7,750,000 - 45%  Operation of P2P lending
tBREERAF company platform business
(note 1, 2)

AT REHAS TRk PE AREMAR  AR%30000000T  ARM7,750,0007 - 45% EEPPEETREHR
BRBEERAT
(M1 R2)

ENTHEEEERER  Ordinary PRC, limited liability RMB500,000 RMB150,000 - 45%  Operation of P2P lending
EERE (hote 1,2 company platform business

BAGREAEERAR %ER GRS -GN AR #500,0007 AR 150,000 - 45%  BEPPEETAEE
BEAR (fi1ke)

KSZ Technology (HK) Ordinary Hong Kong N/A HK$300,000 - 100%  Trading of mobile phones and
Limited (note 1, 2) tablets

B (FE)ERAR ERR &k TR 300,000 7T - 100% FERTREKES
G

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company EREIARRZMBAT EERAE

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected ZEMB AR AEBARE 2 EEE

the results for the period or formed a substantial portion EFEFESARANEEEEFE T

of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other ZEn - EFZRE MEFFHMHE A F

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in ZHBEHSRBANRILE-

particulars of excessive length.

Note: B 5

1. Subsidiaries acquired or set up during the year ended 1. BEZZT—AF+-A=1+—HLFE
31 December 2015. Further details of acquisitions of W B s Ak Sz 2 M A B - B U B Bt B
subsidiaries are included in note 34. NAlZHE— BN HIFE34 ©

2. Subsidiaries controlled through certain structured 2. BRETHEBURHE(TEBEREE])
arrangements (“Structured Arrangements”), for details of the 2l 2B AR - ARG EIELHE 2
Structured Arrangements, please refer to note 40. 1% B2HM 40 o

Neo Telemedia Limited P B EEFEEBERL A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFF

39. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. M1 B~ A (&
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that AEBEHRBERFIERER ZIFZEM
have material non-controlling interests BRI ZFRER
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned AEERBERNFERER 2IFZEN
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling BARZFFHAEREF 0T
interests:
Place of
incorporation Proportion ownership
and principal interests and Total comprehensive
place of voting rights held by loss/(income) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary business non-controlling interest non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
GRS FERBEREZ PREFERER 2
WEARER RIZEXHE HAEEDRREEEAL 2EER/ (Wi 88 ZiEERER
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

ZE-31f -"Z-QmF CZE-1fF _E-QEUF CZEBE-1f C_T-MF

t=A TZA t=A +=A t=A TZA

=t-H ==k =t+-H ==E =t-H =t-H

HRAZHHmREEN PRC 48.9% 489% 7,716 40,808 5,907 13,623

EBR=NEHTREEMN Gl

Hughes UnifiedNet Holding (China) - Hong Kong 55% 55% 15,765 5,139 (969) 14,796
Company Limited and its
Subsidiaries (Note)

Hughes UnifiedNet Holding (Ching) &%

Company Limited &

EftBAR (M)
ERMAENE Txﬁ ERARAF PRC 30% - (10,658) - 19,265 -
ERMAEHEREEERRAR +E
Individually immaterial subsidiaries 4,584 (46)

with non-controling interests
WARFEERES

EREERHBAR

28,787 28,373

Note: B &
The subsidiaries are all wholly owned by Hughes UnifiedNet HE_ZT-—AFEK-_T—WF+=—A=+—H
Holding (China) Company Limited during the years ended 31 LIEFE - ZEHTB A ¥ B Hughes UnifiedNet
December 2015 and 2014. Holding (China) Company Limited2 & # & °
Summarised financial information in respect of each of BEAEBES EAIEERER 2 M
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling BRRZUBEEMBERINMT AT
interests is set out below. The summarised financial WY BER S EREEEANR R B HEA
information below represents amounts before intragroup REE -

eliminations.
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39. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. T B A Al (&)

EBR=ZMEZEHTREEMERDLF EBR=ZMZEHTREEMERLF

2015 2014
—ZT-AfF —T—-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current assets MEEE 14,128 15,408
Non-current assets FERBEE - 12,863
Current liabilities iE=RE (2,048) (412)
Non-current liabilities FEREEE - =
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 7Zx 2 BB A FE(L#E % 6,173 14,326
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR A 2 5,907 13,623
2015 2014
—E-AHEF —E—MmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Revenue Wz 426 1,047
Expenses sk (15,788) (84,499)
Loss for the year FAEE (15,362) (83,452)
Loss for the year attributable to RAREE AEG
owners of the Company FAEE (7,850) (42,329)
Loss for the year attributable to SRR IR A (S
the non-controlling interests FREE (7,512) (40,507)
Loss for the year FABAE (15,362) (82,836)

| Neo Telemedia Limited HE#EREEERA A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

39. SUBSIDIARIES (Gontinued) 39. MY B~ Al ()

EBR=MZE HRIBEN B R 2 F (Continued)

EBR=ZMZEHTREEMERLF
(&)

2015 2014
—E-RfF —EUF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
Other comprehensive loss attributable to YiN/NEIE 2= DN X )
owners of the Company Hitv2mEE (213) (315)
Other comprehensive loss attributable to SRR A (S
the non-controlling interests Hib > mEEE (204) (301)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FRNEMEEERE (417 616)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to RAREES ANEG
owners of the Company HBEESE (8,063) (42,644)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to FEEIR I A (R
the non-controlling interests ZHEEERE (7,716) (40,808)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FANEHEBEEE (15,779) (83,452)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from RELEHEB RS
operating activities (Rd)/ RAFE (1,084) 14,094
Net cash outflow from investing activities REIEEH 2
ReEmt#8 - (14,579)
Net cash inflow from financing activities REBMEEB 2
RERMAER 767 =
Net cash outflow BemLFE (317) (485)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

39. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. M A Al ()

Hughes UnifiedNet Holding (China) Company Limited Hughes UnifiedNet Holding (China)

and its subsidiaries

Company Limited & E K& A 7

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
—E-AF —ZT—NF
t=A=t+-8B +ZA=1—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHET
Current assets MENEE 8,035 15,244
Non-current assets ERBEE 40,400 57,111
Current liabilities mEAaE (47,928) (38,648)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (2,268) (6,804)
Equity attributable to owners of ARFHEE AEMLER
the Company (776) 12,106
Non-controlling interests e R (985) 14,796
2015 2014
—E-AHEF —E—MmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
Revenue Woas 9,594 34,036
Expenses sk (38,499) (43,380)
Loss for the year FAEE (28,905) (9,344)
Loss for the year attributable to RAREE AEG
owners of the Company FREE (13,007) (4,185)
Loss for the year attributable to SRR R (S
the non-controlling interests FREE (15,898) (5,114)
Loss for the year FABAE (28,905) (9,299)

N
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

39. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. M1 B A ()
Hughes UnifiedNet Holding (China) Company Limited Hughes UnifiedNet Holding (China)
and its subsidiaries (Continued) Company Limited % EH B A7) (&)
2015 2014
—E-fF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
Other comprehensive loss attributable to RAREE ANEG
owners of the Company Hitv2mEE 108 (20)
Other comprehensive loss attributable to SRR A (S
the non-controlling interests Hitv 2 HEEE 133 (25)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FRNEMEEERE 241 (45)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to RAREES ANEG
owners of the Company FHEBEEE (12,899) (4,205)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to R EEEGEE
the non-controlling interests E5iE 4858 (15,765) (5,139)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FANEHEBEEE (28,664) (9,344)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating RELEZB2HS
activities (), mAFHE (5,595) 37,715
Net cash outflow from investing activities REKEEZH S
7 RE (1,074) (28,189)
Net cash inflow from financing activities REBEEEH
BeMAFRE - _
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be ORt) /MAFE (6,669) 9,526
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39. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERMANEVEREEERRAT

39. MY B~ Al ()

ERMAEZEMEREEERRAF

31 December

2015
—E-REF
+t=A=+—H
HK$’000
FHET
Current assets mENEE 100,654
Non-current assets ERBEE 21,595
Current liabilities nEaE (52,421)
Non-current liabilities EmBELE (5,332)
Equity attributable to owners of KARHE AEGEZ
the Company 45,231
Non-controlling interests IR 19,265
2015
—E-RF
HK$’000
FHET
Revenue g 60,282
Expenses < (23,411)
Profit for the period B4 A 36,871
Profit attributable to RAEEEB AERET
owners of the Company 25,810
Profit attributable to FE 452 % A 2k B 7 Vi )
the non-controlling interests 11,061
Profit for the period B4 36,871
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AR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

39. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. M1 B A ()
BRAANZHEREEEEFR2A A (Continued) BRAAZVEREEEEGRLAT (&)
2015
—E—-REF
HK$’000
FERx
Other comprehensive loss attributable to AN &1 %A A FE{h E fth 2 @ &8
owners of the Company (941)
Other comprehensive loss attributable to  JEIERRAE S FE(E Hth 2 EE 18
the non-controlling interests (403)
Other comprehensive loss for the period B R E b & [ &5 18 (1,344)
Total comprehensive income attributable to AN A R A A JE(E 2 E 54258
owners of the Company 24,869
Total comprehensive income attributable to  FE#% A% # 25 B (G 2 E N 2 42 58
the non-controlling interests 10,658
Total comprehensive income for the period 8 /)2 [ M 25 42 28 35,527
Net cash outflow from operating activities 28 5 & & 255 2 I & 7 £ R 58 (6,572)
Net cash outflow from investing activities ~ 2R BB EE) 2R &M H F58 (279)
Net cash inflow from financing activities REMEEZHZRERAFE 12,038
Net cash inflow HWeRAFRE 5,187
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

40. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS 40. LML HE

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has several operating
entities controlled through contractual arrangements
in Hughes China Group, CERNET Wifi Group and
Bluesea Mobile Group (collectively, the “Contractual
Arrangements”).

HUGHES CHINA GROUP

Particulars and main business of the
operating entity

bR EE B XA T B R A A (Beijing China Satcom
Unified Network Systems Technology Co., Ltd) (‘BUN”) is
a limited liability company established under the laws of
the PRC and is owned by three individuals namely Mr. ZHU
Mao Wei ( K%{Z ) (79%), Mr. HONG Cheng Dao (k&)
(15%) and Mr. LIU Wan (282 ) (6%) (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “BUN Shareholders”). BUN is controlled
by the Group through HughesNet China Co., Ltd (“HNC”)
by way of certain structured contracts in relation to
controlling the BUN by HNC (the “HCH Structured
Contracts”). BUN is principally engaged in the business of
VSAT communications.

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHERFEEERA A

R-Z—AFE+-A=+—A A%H
AETMLERDERA 0Z HHEHIR
RET R B E EE SR EEREEE
DEE (578 RS EHRE]) -

KETFEEE
RETRNABRIERH

Rt HEREKEZSRFEMAERAF
([EREE|) A —BIREPBEEEK
VZBREFAQRWHKRKELE
(79%) ~ HEAK 38 5 A (15%) K2 21 B 55 4 (6%)
A (ATHELmZEBRR]) -t
ERARNEEFEBRITEZEMERA
AR @EFE])ASE THEBHINK
R EEsIt REB 2 B AL
(THCH&BMEH ) X 1EHl o db R
EBEEZNEVSATREZER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

40. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

HUGHES CHINA GROUP (continued)

Major terms of the HCH Structured
Contracts

a)  Promissory notes

On 5 March 2010, the BUN Shareholders issued
three promissory notes with a total amount of
USD1,400,000 to China UnifiedNet Holdings Limited
(“China UnifiedNet”) which were then assigned
to Hughes UnifiedNet Holding (China) Company
Limited, the immediate holding company of HNC.
The promissory notes are zero coupon notes with a
nominal interest rate of 5% per annum and a term of

10 years.

b)  Power of attorney

The BUN Shareholders executed an irrevocable
power of attorney which enables HNC to exercise all

the powers of the shareholders of BUN.

c) Exclusive call option agreement

The BUN Shareholders irrevocably and without
any additional conditions grant an exclusive option
to HNC under which HNC shall have the right to
require the BUN Shareholders to transfer the BUN
Shareholders’ equity interest in BUN on demand to

HNC or its designated entity or individual.

AR RME

40. ML HE )

KETHFERER (#)
HCHEEBM S Z T EHR

a)

b)

EITEE
RZE—ZFEF=_FARAAB tR[E
BREMTREBZERERA A
((PEEEET-—OHRBRLER
1,400,000% T Z A& Z4#E - H 2
fEEZE T IRETEBER (PE)
ERAR (RET@REPRZEZE
R AE]) cZEERNEEATEE
B HEZERFRERE5%RFHHAE10
E'Eo

REX T
EREBRRBZ—HAATRE
B ESRITR&PEITEL
REBBRRZFAERES -

BXBEEE hi#E

3 5 388 A SRS A 9B % S A AT P
MERGR T ARABEPE—HBX
EBER BULKETEETBESHE
2t R E BB R BRI AT AL
EsEEEcERIAL 2 ERE
&b B BB R N AL R E B 2 B
e
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

40. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

40. ML HE )

HUGHES CHINA GROUP (Continued) RET B &R E ()

Major terms of the HCH Structured HCHEBH SN Z EEMRN
Contracts (Continued) (#)

Q) A KRR R ERE

d)  Exclusive consulting, technical services and

equipment supply agreement

HNC shall serve as the exclusive provider of
service to BUN, to provide a variety of consulting
and technical support services to BUN for its
business, including in the areas of business strategy,
management, marketing, operations, technology,
procurement, contracting, back office support,
and technical support. HNC shall also serve as the
exclusive provider of satellite communications system
equipment, customer premises equipment and other
equipment to BUN and customers of BUN.

In return for the provision of various exclusive
consulting and technical services, as well as the
satellite communications system equipment, BUN
shall pay HNC a monthly service fee equivalent to
the monthly gross revenue of BUN less any VAT or
service taxes payable.

Equity pledge agreement

The BUN Shareholders agreed to pledge all equity
interests in BUN to HNC as a security for the BUN
Shareholders’ and BUN’s performance of their
obligations under the aforesaid agreements.

Wi

KEEEPERERIERIERZE
KRBHERRERETIERERZRE
AR REMXFTRBAIHER
% BREEERE BEE g 2
BB RE AR REXFR
Bl 85 75 T o R HT AR 4% P B R
ERIEREBRIREBCEFZ
HEBERARRE BPHRHER
Hip R BREER

1E R R Z B K wh o R BT AR 75
IREEBERRRFEZDHR It
B S IR ETAB 48 Fh B AR Y
It RE BT A BU AR E B VAT
SRBEHRIEAE -

HR1EE 7 15 a5

tREBRERAZERTREAES
R B E A Ab A B SR R ) PR AR
ERItREBBRR R REBETT
BER Ll E ORI ZRE -

202 Neo Telemedia Limited FEHEEEBBERAA

N A
N——— 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

40. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

HUGHES CHINA GROUP (continued)

Significance of business of BUN to the
Group

The HCH Structured Contracts enabled the Group to enter
into the broadband satellite communication business and
enhance the Group’s development in the value-added
telecommunication services.

CERNET WIFI GROUP

Particulars and main business of the
operating entities

AT Net Company

IERR—&BEHEAR2AA (A1 Net Technology Company
Limited*) (“A1 Net Company”) is a limited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC and is owned by
Mr. Lian Xin (#8%7) (2%) and Mr. Zhang Xiaosong (3R Ez
R ) (98%) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “A1 Net
Shareholders”). A1 Net Company is controlled by 71 #7 5%
B ORI @ BERINTARZAF (“Zhongxin”) by way
of certain structured contracts (the “CERNET Structured
Contracts”). A1 Net Company is principally engaged in
investment holding.

* for identification purpose only

40. ML HE )

KETHFERER (#)
tFEEZEBHAEBREZE
=¥

HCHERB A NS REE R A\ EHEHE
BEEBRIEAAEERETERE S
B -

EWRREREE
BERBNHERLIEED

R—2 ML Al

ERRX—2EMZERRA ([XR—%
BARADIBRBEFBEEAERLZAER
X A+ 3 HR AR ST A (2%) M SR B R 5T
EO8%)EB (A THBIR—ERAR
R - R—2W®RAFATHER ORI
MEBERMARAR ([HH])UET
FREAN ([EESEBHESR TR
e R—S W AR T ENFREER-

=

203 )

N—— 4

Annual Report 2015 —E— R £ £



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

r & B T R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

40. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS 40. BT HE ()

(Continued)

CERNET WIFI GROUP (Continued)

Particulars and main business of the
operating entities (Continued)

CERNET Wifi

EREGABHMR(ER)BRAF (CERNET Wifi
Technology (Beijing) Company Limited*) (“CERNET
Wifi”) is a limited liability company established under
the laws of the PRC. CERNET Wifi is owned as to 75%
by A1 Net Company and 25% by ERKREEGRE A A
(CERNET Investment Company Limited*) (“CERNET
Investment”) respectively. CERNET Wifi is principally
engaged in computer, software and associated equipment
sales, technology development, transfer, consultancy and
computer system services. CERNET Wifi has entered
into asset leasehold and cooperation contracts with
CERNET pursuant to which CERNET Wifi is entitled to
the economic benefits generated by the assets owned
by CERNET in relation to the personal broadband access
services connecting the higher educational institutions of
the PRC and the related internet content and value-added
telecommunication services (the “Personal Broadband
Access Services”). CERNET Wifi has obtained an Internet
service provider license which enables it to be an Internet
service provider in the PRC.

Major terms of the CERNET Structured
Contracts

a)  \VWoting agreement

The A1 Net Shareholders irrevocably agree to
authorise individuals as designated by Zhongxin to
exercise rights of shareholders of A1 Net Company
including voting rights, nomination and appointment
rights in legal representative, chairman of the board,
general manager and other senior management of A1
Net Company.

EWESNZER @&
REBEENEBRIEED
(%)

TR B SBERE (L) BRAT ([E
WES]) N —ERERBEEER T ZAE
RELAT - BRELHRIEX—2 1
AREBTEHR BRI EERAFES
25% ([BERE ) -BABKIENE
T S RAB RGBS E - B
%R HARENARRYE - BAE
SERBBIEAERERAESD:
BHERESEEKDERES 2 EE
FELMEBEE TS SHE KIED
AAEAEA RS RBBEHBANE R
BEBERSE ((AAESEARE]) W
@R BEESCNEREATE
2 BRI 2 BB B RIS IR 4
EPA

ERGBESNEIERN

a) KREW#E
R— BRI L M E B
HPHEEZALITER—S/A
AR &N BRRER K-
EWRARIEERRAN EER
REENEMEEEEABZRA
KER{EHE-

* for identification purpose only
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

40. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

CERNET WIFI GROUP (Continued)

Major terms of the CERNET Structured
Contracts (Continued)

b)

)

d)

Exclusive call option agreement

The A1 Net Shareholders irrevocably grant an
exclusive option to Zhongxin under which Zhongxin or
its designated entity or individual shall have the right
to acquire the equity interest of A1 Net Company.

Exclusive business operating agreement

Zhongxin shall serve as the exclusive provider of
service to A1 Net Company, to provide a variety of
consulting and technical support services to A1 Net
Company for its business, including in the areas
of business strategy, management, computer and
information technology, website maintenance, staff
training, customer services, and technical support.

In return for the provision of various exclusive
consulting and technical services, A1 Net Company
shall pay Zhongxin a service fee as determined by
Zhongxin.

Equity pledge agreement

The A1 Net Shareholders agreed to pledge all
equity interests in A1 Net Company to Zhongxin as
a security for the A1 Net Shareholders’ and A1 Net
Company’s performance of their obligations under
the aforesaid agreements.

AR RME

40. ML HE )

ERNESRZER @)
ETRAEEANOTEGE @

b)

)

d)

o e B %
R—EPEBERTAREEE TP —
DBFEERE B PHREEE
ZEBIALHERUER -8
RRLZ B

BREE EE %

PHERHESR —EB AR ZHE—IR
BHEBARHRRX -V RRZE
R R RE BREKER
B IR - BRI AE S B - kA
& BTIIAR BP RS MM <

o

1ERBR IR Z Bk R B AR TS
Z B R— SRR SR
RPHEEREE -

REE %

AR—ePERRABERTHIER
R—EWEARFTHORAERE ER
R WEBRRER—EBRRET
BER Ll ET R ZRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

40. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS 40. BT HE ()

(Continued)

CERNET WIFI GROUP (Continued)

Significance of business of CERNET Wifi
to the Group

The CERNET Structured Contracts enabled the Group to
enter into the business in the Personal Broadband Access
Services connecting the higher educational institutions of
the PRC and the related internet content and value-added
telecommunication services.

BLUESEA MOBILE GROUP

Particulars and main business of the
operating entities

BB % 5% R B R A 7l(Bluesea Mobile Development
Limited*) (“Bluesea Mobile”) is a limited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC and is owned by
Ms. Ye Weiping (Z1ZF) (95%) and Mr. Xu Gang (&
) (5%) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Bluesea
Mobile Shareholders”). Bluesea Mobile is controlled by
RETER ORI @B R BR A by way of certain
structured contracts (the “Bluesea Mobile Structured
Contracts”). Bluesea Mobile is principally engaged in
provision of value-added telecommunication services.
Bluesea Mobile has obtained an Internet content provider
license which enables it to be an Internet content provider
in the PRC.

ERNESRZER @)
ERZEBHAERZEEY

BERAEBEANSAREE NERF
BEHRERBNEARTEARS &
BMEBMEANTRIEESERBEZES-

HeBHEE
REERPEBRIERT

FIERBRERRAR ([BEEEH]) A
—MRBRBUEEN L 2 BRETEAR
I B B (4 A (95%) K 1 i 9 A (B%)
(AT 478 (BEBBRR)ME -EE
BaaATHER (R AEREERA
ANETEBUHGYN (RSB aEEY
BB FREH -BERBEEHRE
REEESERE -FEBHEINIFE
BAERNRIREEEER  BK AT R
BN AR -

* for identification purpose only
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

40. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

BLUESEA MOBILE GROUP (Continued)

Major terms of the Bluesea Mobile
Structured Contracts

a)

Equity and Voting agreement

The Bluesea Mobile Shareholders shall irrevocably
grant to the FFTER ORYI) WAEREBR R or
the person as designated by the ¥ EE CFEYI)
4RI ABR A F) an exclusive option to purchase,
subject to and as permitted by PRC laws, their entire
equity interest in Bluesea CMobile by way of one or
more times of exercise of the option at any time, at an
option price which is nil or nominal, or the minimum
price permitted by PRC laws. In addition, the
Bluesea Mobile Shareholders shall in attending to the
management of and exercising his shareholder’s right
in Bluesea Mobile, seek and follow the instructions of

the FHTEM (RY) WERAR QA

0. BT B &)

HERHEE (@)

HBBBHEREaNZEER
N

a) RERRE &%
B /8 7 B B SR PE A A 48 ) 3 ) o
ER(RIDBEMEERAAH
THERCRIDBEHEBRA
AEEZ AT REBRBRE A
BE (EPBRZRZART RERF
AT ERE SRS 2 2 EMAE:
FARBERABRE (REHRE
HEBRKPBEIEEFA < HIEE
18 ) — IR Z IRITERERAE © Leoh -
BB RESEEEFEEH
FATEERF BB ) 2 BRER
FREETHHER ORI WS

REER AT ZIERC
> —;\\0
/4 R\
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

40. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

BLUESEA MOBILE GROUP (Continued)

Major terms of the Bluesea Mobile
Structured Contracts (Continued)

b)

Exclusive service agreement

Bluesea Mobile shall engage the R #Ef (R 43
RIS AR A A as its exclusive service provider. The
RETER ORI BB EHE B R A A shall provide to
Bluesea Mobile technology support, business support
and relevant consultancy services that relate to the
business of Bluesea Mobile including but not limited
to (i) license to Bluesea Mobile the right to use the
intellectual property rights (including but not limited
to patent, trade mark and copyright) owned by the
RHER RYDBEEFER AR according to
the business needs of Bluesea Mobile; (i) develop,
maintain and update the relevant software required
by the business of Bluesea Mobile; (iii) purchase and
rent or obtain the right to use on behalf of Bluesea
Mobile machinery equipment, storage space, related
software and other software facilities required by the
business of Bluesea Mobile; (iv) provide to Bluesea
Mobile professional technical personnel and provide
training to them on behalf of Bluesea Mobile; (v) assist
Bluesea Mobile to collect and research technology
that is relevant to the business of Bluesea Mobile; (vi)
advise on matters relating to the business operations
of Bluesea Mobile raised by Bluesea Mobile, and
provide to Bluesea Mobile business promotion and
market sales services; and (vii) according to the
request of Bluesea Mobile and with the consent of
the FHTER OFI) BLEBHEBR AT, provide to
Bluesea Mobile other recommendations and services
relating to the business of Bluesea Mobile.

Neo Telemedia Limited P B EEFEEBERL A

40. ML HE )

HEEEBEE @)
BERHEEEANZETER

e )

b)

o e B %
HERBHKZEDHER CRI)
BEMBRBARARREBRRER
HE - R ER ORI \EE
RAR KA EEEHIRHEE B
BREER 2 B TR
RARRE R IR - 2R ETRRN)
REFSEE c XBHERAF %
BHETHHER R BER
BRABMER ZABERE (B
BRRRER BRERRE) ZE
R (FE EEREHNFES
B2 X AH 2 AT (iR
FEBEBE N HERERE S
BIERGAB I MERE HEE
] - AR S R B A S R e 2
A (WVRRE BB RREEH
R E R A BRI AR FRME
Al VBBEEB B ERARE
FARBB B X5 2 il ViBLEE
BEMiRL AR BB EBEE
ZEERHER YREEBER
TS B N 45 2 S AR + B (vil)
REFSEE c BRUETHNER
CRYD BB BERARIRAE [
HEBBREEBNEESHEH L
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

40. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

BLUESEA MOBILE GROUP (Continued)

Major terms of the Bluesea Mobile
Structured Contracts (Continued)

c)

Equity pledge agreement

Bluesea Mobile Shareholders shall pledge all their
equity interest in Bluesea Mobile to F#E & (RI)
PR AR AR to guarantee, the performance
of all the obligations of (i) Bluesea Mobile under the
Exclusive Service Agreement, (i) Bluesea Mobile
Shareholders and Bluesea Mobile under the Equity &
Voting Agreement.

REVENUE AND ASSETS SUBJECT TO
THE CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

The revenue and total assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements, in aggregate, are set out below:

0. BT B &)

HeBBEE (®
HBBBHEREaNZEER

e )

o WEEW G
ERER SRR AR TER CEY)
PR AR A R E AL RENER
g 2ERRE LIER THFRER
BT (EFSBRHNBRBYE
BETZRAEE (EERR
B RENER B RE RIS RS
TZHAESE-

BT ZWEREE

BRRHHE 2 Wt R B EESIIIAT

Year ended 31 December

BEE+-A=1T—-HLEE

2015 2014

—E-RF —E—MmF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Revenue g 171,051 952
Net Profit/(loss) R (EBEFRE) 35,651 (183,796)

As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H

2015 2014

—E-HF —T—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Total assets BB E 360,845 6,582

:f'/./'/; AW
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40. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

REASONS FOR USING AND RISKS
ASSOCIATED WITH THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

Under the prevailing laws and regulations in the PRC,
companies with foreign ownership are restricted
from engaging in the provision of value-added
telecommunication services and manufacturing of
telecommunication system equipment for satellites
business in the PRC. As such, the Company relies on
BUN, CERNET Wifi and Bluesea Mobile (“OPCOs”
and each an “OPCO”) to conduct certain parts of the
Group’s businesses in the PRC. The Company manages
to maintain an effective control over the financial and
operational policies of the OPCOs through the Contractual
Arrangements which effectively transfer the economic
benefits and pass the risks associated therewith of the
OPCO to the Company, and as a result, the OPCOs
have been consolidated as subsidiaries of the Group.
The Board wishes to emphasise that the Group relies
on the Contractual Arrangements to control and obtain
the economic benefits from the OPCOs, which may not
be as effective in providing operational control as direct
ownership. The Company may have to rely on the PRC
legal system to enforce the Contractual Arrangements,
which remedies may be less effective than those in
other developed jurisdictions. Any conflicts of interest or
deterioration of the relationship between the registered
holders of the equity interest in the OPCOs and our Group
may materially and adversely affect the overall business
operations of the Group. The pricing arrangement under
the Contractual Arrangements may be challenged by the
PRC tax authority. If the Group chooses to exercise the
option to acquire all or part of the equity interests in any of
the OPCOs under the respective option agreements under
the Contractual Arrangements, substantial amount of costs
and time may be involved in transferring the ownership of
the relevant OPCO held by its registered holder(s) to the
subsidiaries equity-owned by the Company. There can

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHERFEEERA A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

40. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

REASONS FOR USING AND RISKS
ASSOCIATED WITH THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

be no assurance that the interpretation of the Contractual
Arrangements by the PRC legal advisers to the Company
is in line with the interpretation of the PRC governmental
authorities and that the Contractual Arrangements will not
be considered by such PRC governmental authorities and
courts to be in violation of the PRC laws. In addition, the
PRC governmental authorities may in the future interpret
or issue laws, regulations or policies that result in the
Contractual Arrangements being deemed to be in violation
of the then prevailing PRC laws. Despite the above, as
advised by the PRC legal advisers to the Company, the
Contractual Arrangements are in compliance with and, to
the extent governed by the PRC laws currently in force, are
enforceable under, the current PRC laws. The Company will
monitor the relevant PRC laws and regulations relevant to
the Contractual Arrangements and will take all necessary
actions to protect the Company’s interest in the OPCOs.

MATERIAL CHANGES

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report,
there has not been any material change in the Contractual
Arrangements and/or the circumstances under which they
were adopted.

UNWINDING OF THE STRUCTURED
ARRANGEMENTS

Other than that disclosed in note 45, up to the date of this
report, there has not been any unwinding of any Structured
Arrangements, nor has there been any failure to unwind any
Structured Arrangements when the restrictions that led to
the adoption of the Structured Arrangements are removed.

40. ML HE )

RASHZHENERRARR
B ()

BFEF N AR RASERTEER 5
SINep B R A B P AT BE IR i SR R R B AR A
EECEREBE  BHZEANLHR
BRELERFRTHFEER-BEN L
At AR R RBARER S M - %
FENRFBRABHBEIARATEE
B BARBRITPBEIEREHINIT - A
RABAIEBZFANLH 2 PBZE
BERY BRI — ) & BHE R E A
SERNZZFOPCOR A 2 s o

BRI

B EXATRE SN MRS B
REANTHR IRAREEORY
BTSRRI EAREE -

BREBERE

BRIMEEASPTIREBE N BEARE B
ZE BT B B R R IR N B BUR
M SRBIERTFORBIRBROER
TNARERRZFEBIERDE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  41. Bt Ak &

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-lF
+=ZA=+-H +=ZA=+—8
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment N ] 54 226
Investment in subsidiaries REB AR Z&KE 120,513 120,513
120,567 120,739
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEfT B ~ & & R H A
FE USRI 5,290 5,229
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B JB R B FRIR 470,389 53,506
Derivative financial assets TEERMEE - -
Cash and cash equivalents RENREEEY 1,010,873 6,242
1,486,552 64,977
Current liabilities nREAE
Other payables and accruals H i & 1~ ZR08 N B 5T RUE 68,414 47 376
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A~ B JB R B FRIR 10,403 9,706
Convertible notes AR = 157,364 =
236,181 57,082
Net current assets REBEEFH 1,250,371 7,895
Non-current liability kREBEE
Convertible notes CIEd e - 148,768
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (86838 1,370,938 (20,134)
Capital and reserves ERR#HE
Share capital [N 952,884 275,492
Reserves (Note) e (MiaE) 418,054 (295,626)
Total equity FERBE 1,370,938 (20,134)

The financial statements were approved and authorised for ~ IR EAR —_Z—~NEF_A+/\BE=F2 it
issue by the board of directors on 18 February 2016 and /ERREHZ  TH T EEREREE:
signed on behalf by:

CHEUNG Sing Tai ZHANG Xinyu
RER R F
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHERFEEERA A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  41. B & Ak & (@)

(Continued)
Note: The movements of the reserves are as follows: Wak: EEEFBROT
Share Convertible
Share options Warrant notes  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
AREE TRREE
R EE BRERE fe fe i ER Nt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
At 1 January 2014 RZE-NE-A-R 1,024,031 47,084 14,600 7,181 (891,045) 201,801
Total comprehensive loss ENZEBRLE
for the year - - - - (517,151) (517,151)
Share options lapsed BRMERE - (26,427) - - 26,427 -
Placing of shares RERN 19,724 = = - - 19,724
Warrants lapsed BAM xﬁiau - - (14,600 - 14,600 -
De-consolidation of e ARk
a subsidlary HBAR - - - - - -
At 31 December 2014 RZB-IE
TZA=1+-H 1,043,755 20,657 - 7,181 (1,367,169) (295,626)
Share Convertible
Share options Warrant notes  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
AREE TRREEE
KB EE BREGRE ffE ffE 2iER Nt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TAL TEL TEL
At 1 January 2015 RZE-7%-F-A 1,043,755 20,657 - 7,131 (1,367,169) (295,626)
Total comprehensive loss FRREERLE
for the year = = = = (69,441) (69,441)
Issue of shares in relation to HRERBARNRIRA
acquisition of subsidiaries 208,639 - - - - 208,639
Issue of shares upon exercise RiTFRERERIRG
of share options 16,177 (5,617) - - - 10,560
Bonus issue of shares BTHR (307,792) - - - - (307,792)
Open offer of shares AREERD 889,359 - - - - 889,359
Transaction costs attributable AREEEERANE
to open offer (17,645) - - - - (17,645)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1%+=A
=+-H 1,882,493 15,040 - 7,131 (1,436,610) 418,054
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

42. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into the following material
transaction with connected and related parties during the
year.

COMPENSATION OF KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The remuneration of directors and key executives was
stated in Note 14, which is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individual
and market trends.

ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

RETER OR) B RERMABR AT (the “Purchaser”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and ## LLIJ&
BEERAR AT (the “Vendor”) entered into the property
acquisition agreements on 28 August 2014, pursuant to
which the Purchaser had agreed to purchase and the
Vendor had agreed to sell the four office units, namely room
1601, room 1602, room 1603 and room 1604 of Block 4,
Tower 1 located at Smart City, No. 1 Zhi Hui Road, Chan
Cheng District, Foshan, the PRC (the “Properties”) at the
aggregate consideration of RMB17,316,880.

As at 31 December 2014, deposit of RMB17,316,880
(equivalent to approximately HK$21,693,000) were paid to
the Vendor as deposit for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment. The acquisition was completed during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

The Vendor is substantially owned by Mr. Lie, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The Vendor, being an
associate of Mr. Lie, is therefore a connected person
of the Company under the Rule 20.07(1) of the GEM
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated
under the property acquisition agreements constituted a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

42. FER G REEANLRS

Brir A MR Bt T PR EE S
REBRFANRTLIATEREE N EHE
ALERFe

FTEEERBAEZHM

EERTETRABZHFME N E
14 - LHFHEZESEERBEARER
MIZBERETE -

WEMR BERRE

RZZE—NENA=-+/N\B  AQa&
BEWBARRIER OFRY) BERER
AR AR ([BRF]))BEHLRSERER
BRAR (BRI IHEBERE B
- BEFREEEREAHRE LS MLEH
NEAR - BIRERPREEGILERESE
SRS BRI A 1R ZE 1601 ~ 551602
= E1603F K F1604= ([M#]) - 48
R{EAHARYA17,316,8807T °

R-_E—NF+-_A=+—H ERE
B ARMA17,316,8807T (HEE R4
21,693,000/ 7T ) I & 1E AW EE Y 2 - R
EREEzZE WEEREE-_S—H
F+-—A=+—BLEFRZEMK-

BENTERAARFZTERRIIELRE
B-BHRENRINEEZHEAL #R
REIZMR LT AR RISE20.07() G AR R E
BB AT o FIE - RIRAIZR AR RS
0B MEBEMZR MRETZIRS
BRARRZEERS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

42. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

UNDERWRITING OF OPEN OFFER
SHARES

Reference is made to the prospectus of the Company
dated 8 December 2015 and the announcement dated
29 December 2015 in relation to the open offer at the
subscription price of HK$0.38 per offer share on the basis
of one offer share for every two shares held on 7 December
2015 (the “Open Offer”).

Winner Mind Investments Limited (“Winner Mind”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability, was the Underwriter to the Open
Offer. Winner Mind is wholly-owned by Mr. LIE Haiquan
(“Mr. Lie”), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
is therefore a connected person of the Company. The
allotment and issue of 1,425,887,357 untaken shares
to Winner Mind and the payment of the underwriting
commission HK$13,478,000 to Winner Mind pursuant to
the underwriting agreement dated 11 August 2015 (as
supplemented by the supplemental agreements dated 11
and 22 September 2015 and 10 November 2015) entered
into between the Company, Mr. Lie and Winner Mind
(the “Underwriting Agreement”) constituted connected
transactions for the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.
The allotment and issue of the underwritten shares to the
underwriter is exempt from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements.
However, the payment of the underwriting commission to
the underwriter is subject to reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements, which
was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the adjourned extraordinary general meeting
held on 26 November 2015.

42. FER G REEANLRS

(#&)

BELAFERERND

BRAARRRBARAR/R-_T—RF+ A
NBzBEERRBEHMA-_T—0F
TZAZTARZAMH RAREBRR
Z-AF+-AtRASHERBRRIHE
E-BEERNHIEEREREER
0.38E L BRBELITAREE (12
BARE])

Winner Mind Investments Limited
([Winner Mind |) - —fEIR BB 2B
SEFMEZZBRAR BAARBEZ
BEE AARAEERREIEREL
E(IBI%E])2EHRE BRIEER
ARBZ@BEAL - RIERRRFIEAE
KWinner Mind ([B#@& )R =T —h
FNRA+—HilZzB#EHZE (KA
BZE—RAFNAT—HEZ=Z+ZAK
R_ZE—hF+—RTRzRxHaA
78) ([B8#H=E]) mWinner MindB % &
#171,425,887,357 I R ER BB AR 1D A K&
mWinner Mindz 1 8 #H1 € 13,478,000
PETC - HERKBIZER ETRBIIE T AAR 2
—IBRER S o B HE AL R EITRH
MR EEFARIB TR - D6 KRB ARE
HERTE < AT - MR M BHEAS A
PR A RIBIRBERE I
ERZZE—AF+—A=Z+BETZ
RRFRASES ERARNTEARR
i

Annual Report 2015 —E— R £ £

V/ N

215

=




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

r & B T R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

42. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 42. BRI G NEEATR S

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDER

On 11 May 2015, the Company entered into a loan
agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with Mr. Lie, pursuant
to which, Mr. Lie agreed to lend to the Company a loan
of HK$100,000,000 (the “Loan”) for a period of one
year commencing from the drawdown date of the Loan
at an interest rate of 5% per annum. Pursuant to the
Underwriting Agreement, Mr. Lie and the Company agreed
that the aggregate subscription price required to be paid by
Mr. Lie and his associates under their subscription and/or
underwriting obligation of the irrevocable undertakings and
the Underwriting Agreement would be deemed to be paid
by way of the full capitalisation of the Loan in first place and
the remaining balance will be settled in cash (the “Loan
Capitalisation”).

. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2015.

P

(#&)
—REBERREHER

RZE—RAFRA+—H AR AIET%
SN ER B ([BREE]) Bt
5|55 &£ B R & & T 42 51100,000,000/%
TL2ZER ([ZER])  ZERER
HERRRET —F  FHE RE5% - R 8
Wi FEERARRRBENAERE
B2 A TR B Al BB A GE R B i Ak
THRER X HETMEEZNH
BABEELEBERATHERLZER
BIEBIERBBE X REURS 4
THIEBE([EREZER]) -

b

NIEN
[=] *79&
VARNY
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFE

44, CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

PAYABLE

The Group has completed the CERNET Wifi Group
acquisition at a total consideration of HK$163,204,000
on 24 April 2013 (“Completion Date”). Pursuant to
the acquisition agreement, the consideration should be
settled by cash of approximately HK$69,617,000 and
an aggregate maximum amount of HK$124,783,200
(the “Variable Consideration”) shall be payable by
the Company in installments by way of the issue of an
aggregate maximum of 173,310,000 Consideration Shares
if the number of the Users reaches 400,000 within one year
from the Completion Date.

The Company shall review (the “Review”) the performance
of the Business of the CERNET Wifi every three months
during the one year from the Completion Date. The
Company shall pay a portion of the Variable Consideration
to the CERNET Wifi Vendor by way of the issue of such
number of the Consideration Shares at HK$0.72 per
Consideration Share.

At 24 April 2013, based on the directors’ best estimation,
the fair value of amount payable of HK$93,587,000 was
recognised as contingent consideration payable.

At 31 December 2013, the Company performed the
Review on the actual performance of the CERNET Wifi
Group, a fair value gain of HK$93,587,000 was recognised
as the result of Review.

At 23 April 2014, the Company completed the last Review
on the actual performance of CERNET Wifi Group, no
Consideration Shares were issued.

44. B ANE

AREFBER-_Z—=FTWA_-+MA
(IERBH]) T EREFAREEIK
B2 - 48 X {8 5163,204,0007% 7T ° 1R 1 UL
B BEMREAIR$ 469,617,000
P& 7o M fim B FERC B iR AT — F A P &
23 5/400,000 -+ BIZR R RIZAL B TR S
£ 2£173,310,00008 R E D 89 5 = 5 HA
SRS S A $£124,783,200/%8 7T ([ |
BRE]) T

ARFAER B XA RS —FAT=
EAHEBMESREBNERERST —K
([®&]) - ARBABEBRERRER
00.72/8 TTHEITHEH B R ERD R
BEREGETXNBOATEKE-

BEEEZREGMT R —=FK
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_-—F—AF+-H=+—HILFEZE

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 17 February 2016, the Group entered into agreements
(the “Unwinding Agreements”) with A1 Net Company -
the immediate holding company of CERNET Wifi and
a subsidiary of the Company by CERNET Structured
Contracts, the shareholders of A1 Net Company and two
independent third parties (the “Purchasers”) to unwind
CERNET Structured Contracts. Pursuant to the Unwinding
Agreements, among others, 1) CERNET Structured
Contracts under which the Group had obtained control over
CERNET Wifi would be unwound; and 2) the shareholders
of A1 Net Company disposed of their entire interests in A1
Net Company to the Purchasers.

In addition, upon the unwinding of CERNET Structured
Contracts, while the Group will not incur further cost in
relation to CERNET Wifi's legal proceedings, A1 Net has
undertaken to repay the Group its share of any claimed
amount received by CERNET Wifi if the outcome of the
legal proceedings is in favour of CERNET Wifi.

46. APPROVAL FOR CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
18 February 2016.

45, &= R =18
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Financial Summary
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For the 12 months ended 31 December 2015 B ZE_—F—AF+=-HA=1+—HIt+=1EAH

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results LA TN ARNEBE R 2o %EE EELAR

and of the assets and liabilities of the Group:

BME:

RESULTS E
12 months ended
12 months 12 months 18 months 30 June
ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 HEAAZTHLE
December December December T8 A
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
BZ EZE HE
—E-RE —E-NE —E-—=F
+=A T=A T=A
=t+-H E—F =t+-AH
t+=f@A IE+=fEA ETNAEA —T——& —T——f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT TET THET THT
(Restated)
CEL
Tumover BEE 1,914,902 34,550 61,067 100,180 27,163
Cost of sales HEMKK (1,813,983) (23,628) (29,900) (9,396) (5,359)
Gross profit e 100,919 10,922 31,167 90,784 21,804
Other income and gains Hib WA KMz 537 755 20,528 3,180 12,025
Seling and marketing costs HERTIBEERR (18,775) (2,718) (5,270) (1,741) (2,846)
Administrative and other expenses THREMER (87,695) (118,345) (124,706) (112,489) (57,686)
Impairment loss recognised in FEERAZAEEE
respect of goodwil - (254,966) (301,997) (541,458) -
Net loss on de-consolidation of BUB&GRE AR—
a subsidiary WBARZEEFE - (174,024) = = =
Change in fair value of contingent FEN R ARELZ
consideration receivable ATHEES - - - 33,972 =
Change in fair value of contingent ERAAREZ
consideration payable AYEZ - - 93,587 183,415 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FLER EERERL
of intangible asset REEE (6,378) (84,802) (23,769) (109,316) -
Loss on early redemption of REBETARRE
convertible notes BiE - - - (1,59) =
Change in fair value of derivative TESREEY
financial assets ATEEZD - (711) (5,495) = =
Change in fair value of BREEZ
convertible notes ATEE - - - 702 (329)
Share of loss of an associate JEf—fREE ARER - - (335) = =
Loss from operation BEXBER (11,392 (623,889) (316,290) (454 547) (27,032)
Finance costs BEKR (24,541) (23,373) (11,986) (1,306) (222)
Loss before taxation BREATER (35,933) (647,262) (328,276) (455,852) (27,254)
Income tax (expense)/credit FEH (%) /B (8,322 14,770 2,758 35,630 (3,809)
Net loss for the year/period R/ HAEEFE (44,255) (632,492) (325,518 (420,222) (31,063)

s
?/,"x\ \
V) R\
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For the 12 months ended 31 December 2015 #HZ_—FT— A&+ -A=+—Hit+=1EH

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

At 31 December At 30 June

Rt=A=t+-8 RAB=1H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-1f —E-mE —ZT-=% —E-CF —Z——%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THEL THL FHET THL
(Restated)
(&E5)
Non-current assets ERBEE 345,487 99,259 628,598 440,054 1,120,388
Current assets RHEE 1,384,081 48516 114,890 254,265 171,196
Current liabilties mEARE (373,971) (95,272) (58,318) (73,494) (360,552)
Net current assets/(liabilties) RYEE,/ (BFE)FE 1,010,110 (46,756) 56,372 180,771 (189,356)
Non-current liability EnBARE (36,737) (155,572) (183,606) 9,772) (45,705)
Net assets/(liabilties) BE/ (BE)F8 1,318,860 (103,069) 501,564 611,053 885,327

Neo Telemedia Limited FEFEEEBBRA A
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